
This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted 
sources. 

Validzic, Ana (DPH) < ana.validzic@sfdph.org > has opened the link you sent to 
"Tenderloin Linkage Center Walkthrough Visits"! 

If this is unexpected, you can open your document and manage its sharing permissions 
by clicking here . 

. ~ This link only works for the direct recipients of this message. 

~. Tenderloin Linkage Center Walkthrough Visits 

Microsoft respects your privacy. To learn more, please read our Prlva(Y. Statement 
Microsoft Corporation, One Microsoft Way, Redmond, WA 98052 

Notification Settings 
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Daniel Cooperman 

RE: Tour of Tenderloin Linkage Center 

January 26, 2022 at 4:42 PM PST 

To: Collen, Emily (HOM) 

Cc: Lim, Victor (DEM) 

Great, thank you so much. Following up w/ Dir Dufty and will reach out once his schedule is 
clear. 

Daniel Cooperman 
Sr. Manager of Social Service Partnerships 
San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit 
510.381.1897 
2150 Webster St Oakland, CA 94612 

From: Cohen, Emily (HOM) <emily.cohen@sfgov.org> 
Sent: Monday, January 24, 2022 3:37 PM 
To: Daniel Cooperman <daniel.cooperman@bart.goV> 
Cc: Lim, Victor (DEM) <victor.lim@sfgov.org> 
Subject: RE: Tour of Tenderloin Linkage Center 

Hey Daniel, 

We'd be happy to give you and Bevan a tour. We do tours Wednesday through Friday between 
3:00 p.m. and 5:00 p.m. 

I'm including Victor from DEM on this email as he is helping to coordinate all the tour requests. 

Thank you! 
Emily 

From: Daniel Cooperman <daniel .coogerman@bart.gov> 
Sent: Monday, January 24, 2022 9:31 AM 
To: Cohen, Emily (HOM) <emil~;..cohen@sfgov.org> 
Subject: RE: Tour of Tenderloin Linkage Center 

Thanks Emily! I'll let you know shortly. 
Happy Monday! 

Daniel Cooperman 
Sr. Manager of Social Service Partnerships 
San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit 
510.381.1897 
2150 Webster St Oakland, CA 94612 

From: Cohen, Emily (HOM) <emilY..CQhen@sfgov.org> 
Sent: Friday, January 21, 2022 1 :58 PM 
To: Daniel Cooperman <daniel.coogmma11@bartgov> 
Subject: RE: Tour of Tenderloin Linkage Center 
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Hi Daniel, 

Yes, I'd be happy to set up a tour on the Linkage Center. 

Can you please send me some days/times that work for you and Director Duffy? 

Thanks 
Emily 

From: Daniel Cooperman <danlel.coogerman@bartgoV> 
Sent: Friday, January 21, 2022 10:13 AM 
To: Cohen, Emily (HOM) <emily.co!1en@sfgov.org> 
Subject: Tour of Tenderloin Linkage Center 

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted 
sources. 

Hey Emily, 
Happy New Year! Hope all is well. I was hoping to set up a tour (covid permitting) of the new 
center for our crisis intervention staff as well as Director Dufty. Is that possible? 
Thanks in advance. 

Daniel Cooperman 
Sr. Manager of Social Service Partnerships 
San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit 
510.381.1897 
2150 Webster St Oakland, CA 94612 
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Lenrow, Laurie (DPH) 

Automatic reply: Shand, Lloyd (DEM) shared "Linkage Center Walkthrough Request - SCRT & EMS6" with you. 

February 25, 2022 at 9:54 AM PST 

To: Lim, Victor (DEM) 

As of 2/7 /22 I have been deployed to the Tenderloin Linkage Center and will not be conducting 
any LHH business until my return from deployment, date TBD. 

For urgent LHH behavioral health clinical issues, please call the Psychiatry urgent pager: 415-327-
5130. 

For other LHH matters please call the LHH Psychiatry Main Line at 628-217-7331. 
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Safarzadeh, Parisa (DEM) 

TL Emergency Initiative Overview and FAQ 

February 01, 2022 at 2:56 PM PST 

To: HOMmedia, (HOM); DPH-Press; Harris, Zoe (DPH); Machuca-Grebe, Denny (HOM); Bouck, Deborah (HOM); 
Cohen, Emily (HOM); Hawkes, Alison (DPH); Mendoza, Nubia (DEM); Um, Victor (DEM); Baxter, Jonathan (FIR); 
Thompson, Marianne (ECN); SFPDMediaRelations, (POL); Cretan, Jeif (MYR); Lynch, Andy (MYR) 

Cc: Hogan, Kristin (DEM); Zamora, Francis (DEM); Carroll, Maryellen (DEM); Bechelli, Adrienne (DEM) 

All: 

Attached is the TL Emergency Initiative Overview + FAQ. 

I will also add to the TL JIG google drive folder here: 
httgs ://drive.google. com/drive/folders/1 eo0e5HgGbv3 HgukJDTwk8gXaS HsO-Jc! 1 ?usp=sr,ari ng 

Please note: this is intended to be a living document with ongoing updates. If you have any 
questions or edits, please let me know asap. 

Thanks! 
Parisa 
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Safarzadeh, Parisa (DEM) 

For Tomorrow's PIO Call @ 11 :30 

January 27, 2022 at 7:45 PM PST 

To: Lim, Victor (DEM) 

Agenda: 

Welcome and hello! 

Tenderloin JIC Update (Victor): 
1. SF has continued to make progress on the TL Emergency Initiative. Since opening doors 

on 1 /28, the Tenderloin Linkage Center has: 
a. Welcomed 1 , 180+ guests 
b. Linked 499 guests to short and long-term services 
c. Actively planned center expansion hours to 24/7 and increase guest capacity 

2. Share TL Emergency Initiative website: httgs://sf.gov/information/learn-about-tenderloin­
emergency-initiat ive 

DPH Communications Update: 
1. Alison Hawkes and/or Noel Sanchez 
2. Questions 

DEM Situational Awareness Update: 
1. Nubia Mendoza DEM 

Department Roundtable: 
1 . Open-up for other agencies to report out 
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Zamora, Francis (DEM) 

Final Slides, Talking Points & Q&A 

February 08, 2022 at 1 :49 PM PST 

To: Carroll, Maryellen (DEM) 

Cc: Bechelli, Adrienne (DEM); Lim, Victor (DEM); Roman, Marisol (DEM) 

Mary Ellen: 

Please see the final slide deck, talking points for the slide deck and Q&A for the hearing. Many 
of questions will be fielded by DPH (Linkage Center), HSH (Housing Placements) and SFPD 
{Law Enforcement). However, if it is about the overall Tenderloin Emergency Initiative then you 
can respond. 

Francis Zamora 
Chief of Staff 
San Francisco Department of Emergency Management 
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Lim, Victor (DEM) 

Accepted: D11 Supervisor Safai - Tenderloin Linkage Center Walkthrough 

February 04, 2022 at 3:24 PM PST 

To: Roman, Marisol (DEM) 
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Lim, Victor (DEM) 

Accepted: PIO Staffing: Opening of Tenderloin Linkage Center 

January 17, 2022 at 10:49 AM PST 

To: Safarzadeh, Parisa (DEM} 
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Leger, Cheryl (BOS) 

From: Lim, Victor (DEM) 
Sent: 
To: 
Cc: 

Thursday, June 16, 2022 4:55 PM 
Gina Mcdonald; SOTF, (BOS) 
DEM Records Request 

Subject: RE: Case 22035 - Supporting emails/texts Dept. Of Emergency Management 

Hello Ms. McDonald, 

I will now resend the second email from yesterday, and will include your Yahoo, 
Muckrock, and gina@MothersAgainstDrugDeaths.org emails on the email. 

Please let me know if the new email you provide receives the documents. Thank you. 

Victor Wai Ho Lim, MPA I ~1$5~ 
Liaison to Electeds & Board of Supervisors 
Government & AAPI Affairs Manager 
External Affairs Officer I 9~~1~51&~~ 
Department of Emergency Management I - Ji"$/Jfit~,~IJ.fcJ 
415-554-4827 direct I .a:t, 
415-7 48-0028 cell I -:f ;fl 
415-558-2712 media line I 1':9l 

From: Gina Mcdonald <gina.mcdee@yahoo.com> 
Sent: Thursday, June 16, 2022 2:35 PM 
To: SOTF, (BOS) <sotf@sfgov.org>; Lim, Victor (DEM) <victor .. lim@sfgov.org> 
Cc: DEM Records Request <RecordsRequestDEM@sfgov.org> 
Subject: Re: Case 22035 - Supporting emails/texts Dept. Of Emergency Management 

Hi Mr Lim, 

I believe they all came through on Muckrock. I do have an alternative email that you can use that should work. 

Please try gina@MothersAqainstDrugDeaths.org 

Thanks 

Gina 
On Thursday, June 16, 2022 at 02:26:14 PM PDT, Lim, Victor (DEM) <victor.lim@sfgov.org> wrote: 

Hello Ms. McDonald, 

Did you receive it on the Muckrock platform? It might just be a Yahoo email 
issue. Please confirm and let us know. Thank you. 
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Victor Wai Ho Lim, MPA I #1$$i!i 

Liaison to Electeds & Board of Supervisors 

Government & AAPI Affairs Manager 

External Affairs Officer I 9~~1~5JiHJ ~ 
Department of Emergency Management I - ff$ff!it~Ilfc:i 
415-554-4827 direct I 1[t, 

415-7 48-0028 cell I -=¥-m 

415-558-2712 media line I it~! 

From: Gina Mcdonald <gina.mcdee@yahoo.com> 
Sent: Thursday, June 16, 2022 2:24 PM 
To: SOTF, (BOS) <sotf@sfgov.org>; Lim, Victor (DEM) <victor.lim@sfgov.org> 
Cc: DEM Records Request <RecordsRequestDEM@sfgov.org> 
Subject: F<e: Case 2~03!:> - !Supporting emails/texts Dept. Of Emergency Management 

I am not receiving them through this yahoo email but am c:11.>le to access them on Muckrock. Not sure why they are not 
coming through on here. 

Is Cheryl or the task force able to receive them? 

Gina McDonald 

On Thursday, June 16, 2022 at 02:00:32 PM PDT, Lim, Victor (DEM) <victor.lim@sfgov.org> wrote : 

Hello Ms. McDonald, 

I just resent the first of the two emails from yesterday, and included your original 
fVluckrock email address. 
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Please let me know if that went through. I will process with the same process if you 
successfully received the email. Thank you. 

Victor Wai Ho Lim, MPA I #{~Ji 

Liaison to Electeds & Board of Supervisors 

Government & AAPI Affairs Manager 

External Affairs Officer I $7~~t~5JiHJ~ 
Department of Emergency Management I - nifrnffi~/II!fc:i 
415-554-4827 direct I Hti 

415-7 48-0028 cell I ~~ 

415-558-2712 media line 11l:9l 

From: Gina Mcdonald <gina.mcdee@yahoo.com> 
Sent: Thursday, June 16, 2022 12:14 PM 
To: SOTF, (BOS) <sotf@sfqov.org>; Lim, Victor (DEM) <victor.lim@sfgov.org> 
Cc: DEM Records Request <RecordsRequestDEM@sfgov.org> 
Subject: Re: Case 22035 - Supporting emails/texts Dept. Of Emergency Management 

Can you please try sending to this email again in a new email chain. Sometimes that clears it up. 

Also CC the muckrock since that is for public viewing . 

Thanks so much Mr. Lim! 

Gina McDonald 

On Thursday, June 16, 2022 at 11:52:37 AM PDT, Lim, Victor (DEM) <Victor.lim@sfoov.org> wrote: 
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Ms. McDonald, 

I sent it directly to this Yahoo email address you are currently using. Would you like 
me to send it to the original Muckrock email to see if it goes through? 

Please let me know. Thanks! 

Victor Wai Ho Lim, MPA I #i¥5i!i 

Liaison to Electeds & Board of Supervisors 

Government & MPI Affairs Manager 

External Affairs Officer I >7~~tt5*~-~-
Department of Emergency Management I - n!finlffi~, ~Ilfi.5:l 
415-554-48?7 direct I Ati 

415-7 48-0028 cell I -=¥-~ 

415-558-2712 media line 11'~ 

From: Gina Mcdonald <gina.mcdee@yahoo.com> 
Sent: Thursday, June 16, 2022 11 :38 AM 
To: SOTF, (BOS) <sotf@sfgov.org>; Lim, Victor (DEM) <victor.lim@sfgov.org> 
Cc: DEM Records Request <RecordsRequestDEM@sfgov.org> 
Subject: Re: Case 22035 - Supporting emails/texts Dept. Of Emergency Management 

Hello Mr. Lim, 

I have not received anything yet. Are you sending them directly to this email address or uploading to my original request that I sent through 
the Muckrock site? 

Thanks, 



Gina McDonald 

On Thursday, June 16, 2022 at 11:25:15 AM PDT, Lim, Victor (DEM) <victor.lim@sfgov.org> wrote: 

Hello Ms. McDonald, 

Thank you for your follow up email. 

I wanted to check if you received my two emails send yesterday afternoon with our first 
two batches of additional responsive records. 

We sent the two emails at approximately 4:48PM and 4:50PM. However, I received a 
delivery error message but I was not sure if both emails failed to deliver. 

Could you kindly let me know if you were able to receive one or both of the 
emails? Thank you. 

Victor Wai Ho Lim, MPA I *w5i 
Liaison to Electeds & Board of Supervisors 

Government & AAPI Affairs Manager 

External Affairs Officer I 5'~~tt;J&~~ 
Department of Emergency Management I = ;I"$ ff!%!, i'IIJaJ 
415-554-4827 direct 11H,'R 

415-748-0028 cell I~~ 

415-558-2712 media line 11':Pl 
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From: Gina Mcdonald <gina.mcdee@yahoo.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, June 8, 2022 2:52 PM 
To: Lim, Victor (DEM) <victor.lim@sfgov.org>; SOTF, (BOS) <sotf@sfgov.org> 
Subject: Re: Case 22035 - Supporting emails/texts Dept. Of Emergency Management 

Hello Mr. Lim, 

I am checking in on your progress on this request. Have you been able to connect with the IT person that we spoke about at the Task Force 
hearing and/or obtain the communication that I requested? 

Please advise. 

Cheryl, 

What is the timeline on how this works? Do we wait for another hearing? 

Thanks so much! 

Best, 

Gina McDonald 

On Tuesday, May 31, 2022 at 08:49:14 AM PDT, SOTF, (BOS) <sotf@sfgov.org> wrote: 
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Dear Ms. McDonald and Mr. Lim: In the future please provide documents in pdf format. It is much easier to work with . 
Thank you. 

Cheryl Leger 

Assistant Clerk, Board of Supervisors 

Cheryl .Leger@sfgov.org 

Tel: 415-554-7724 

Fax: 415-554-5163 

https://u rl .avanan. click/v2/ www.sfbos.org . YXAzOnN mZHQy0mE6 bzphZjkwYi k4M2VmNT dmZWZh N2 EO M DZmOT 
FiNjMwMzkxYio20mJiN mE6ZmE4NDl2Zjkx2Dc3YjU 1 MTcOMWM4MGZmMTgyYzY5MDdiYzc3NDljMzFINTY2YzRkMGU 
wM212MzBmOG U4M2NkM DpOOIQ 

1998. 

::; Click here to complete a Board of Supervisors Customer Service Satisfaction form. 

The Legislative Research Center provides 24-hour access to Board of Supervisors legislation, and archived matters since August 

Disclosures: Personal information tilat is provided in communications to the Board of Supervisors is subject to disclosure unde,- the 
Ca/ifomia Public .Records Act and the San Francisco Sunshine Ordinance. Personal information provided will not be 
redacted. Members of the public are not required lo provide personal identifi;ing infonnation when they communicate with the Board 
of Supef\Jisors ancl its commiltees. All written or om/ communications that members of the public submit to the Clerk's Office 
regarding pending legislation or hearings will be made available to all members of the pt1blic for inspection and copying. Tile Clerk's 
Office does not redact any information from these submissions. This means that personal information-including names, phone 
numbers, addresses ancl similar information that a member of the public elects to submit to the Board and its committees-may 
appear on lhe Board of Supe1visors website or in other public documents that members of lhe public may inspect or copy. 

From: Gina Mcdonald <gina.mcdee@yahoo.com> 
Sent: Monday, May 30, 2022 9:50 PM 
To: SOTF, (BOS) <sotf@sfgov.org>; Lim, Victor (DEM) <victor.lim@sfqov.org> 
Subject: Case 22035 - Supporting emails/texts Dept. Of Emergency Management 
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This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted sources. 

Hello Mr. Lim and Sunshine Board, 

Below are a few of the emails we discussed at the last meeting regarding my Sunshine Task Force complaint 
#22035. I am providing photos as I am not aware of your policy regarding attachments. 

These are a few examples provided by the Mayors office, DPH and text messages between SF Controller Ben 
Rosenfield and Mary Ellen Carroll of DEM. 

As we talked about during the hearing, this is only a sample of what I received from other agencies, and am 
only providing a few a specified by the task force board. There are hundreds. 

Please let me know if I can provide further info if needed. 

Mr. Lim, were you able to connect to the IT people to broaden the request as suggested by the task force? 

Thank you, 

Gina McDonald 
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Leger, Cheryl (BOS) 

From: Lim, Victor (DEM) 
Sent: Thursday, June 16, 2022 4:59 PM 
To: gina@MothersAgainstDrugDeaths.org; Gina Mcdonald; 125534-94670199 

@requests.muckrock.com; SOTF, (BOS) 
Cc: DEM Records Request 
Subject: 
Attachments: 

FW: Case 22035 - Supporting emails/texts Dept. Of Emergency Management 
1170 Market Lease .pdf; 1170_Market_Street_ 12-30-21_Final_with_Exhibits.pdf; SF 
Linkage Center Flyer Temp WHITE FINAL.pdf; Alternatives to Policing Report -
attachement.pdf 

Dear Ms. McDonald, 

We are resending you the second batch of documents originally emailed out yesterday, 
6/15/2022 at 4:50PM. 

Please confirm receipt of email. Thank you. 

Victor Wai Ho Lim, MPA I 1*fi5t 
Liaison to Electeds & Board of Supervisors 
Government & AAPI Affairs Manager 
External Affairs Officer I 9~f~H~5Jii~~ 
Department of Emergency Management I - ti"$~ ~ ~I!fcJ 
415-554-4827 direct I B.~ 
415-7 48-0028 cell I ~~ 
415-558-2712 media line I ~~l 

From: Lim, Victor (DEM) 

Sent: Wednesday, June 15, 2022 4:50 PM 
To: Gina Mcdonald <gina.mcdee@yahoo.com>; SOTF, (BOS) <sotf@sfgov.org> 
Subject: RE : Case 22035 - Supporting emails/texts Dept. Of Emergency Management 

Hello Ms. McDonald, 

Here is our second batch of responsive records for today. More to come in the future. 

Thank you. 

Victor Wai Ho Lim, MPA I 1*1i5t 
Liaison to Electeds & Board of Supervisors 
Government & AAPI Affairs Manager 
External Affairs Officer I $1~~t~5Jii~~ 
D rt tfE M tl - :::!/:;' ' llli,,g,~IEHE=. epa men o mergency anagemen .=. ,m m11~'"'' 1§. J..r./CJ 

415-554-4827 direct I B.ti 
415-7 48-0028 cell I ~fl 
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415-558-2712 media line 11':9¥ 

From: Lim, Victor (DEM) 
Sent: Wednesday, June 15, 2022 4:48 PM 
To: Gina Mcdonald <gina.mcdee@yahoo.com>; SOTF, (BOS) <sotf@sfgov.org> 
Subject: RE: Case 22035 - Supporting emails/texts Dept. Of Emergency Management 

Hello Ms. McDonald, 

Thank you for following up with our office. 

Please see attached copies of additional responsive records we have located on our 
follow-up searches. 

Due to the voluminous nature of the records, we will provide the copies of responsive 
records on a rolling basis. 

Thank you. 

Victor Wai Ho Lim, MPA I #1$5~ 
Liaison to Electeds & Board of Supervisors 
Government & AAPI Affairs Manager 
External Affairs Officer I 9~~t~5*-'W~ 
Department of Emergency Management I - nim ~~, ~Ilra:i 
415-554-4827 direct I ~~ 
415-7 48-0028 cell I -¥~ 
415-558-2712 media line I 1'9l 

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

I am checking in on your progress on this request. Have you been able to connect with the IT person that we spoke about 
at the Task Force hearing and/or obtain the communication that I requested? 

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

Dear Ms. McDonald and Mr. Lim: In the future please provide documents in pdf format. It is much easier to work with. 
Thank you. 

Cheryl Leger 

Assistant Clerk, Board of Supervisors 

Cheryl.Leqer@sfgov.org 

Tel: 415-554-7724 

Fax: 415-554-5163 

https ://url.avanan. click/v2/ www .sfbos.org . YXAzOnN mZHQyOmE6bzphZjkwYjk4M2VmNT d mZWZhN2 EOMDZmOT 
FjNjMwMzkxYjo20mJiNmE6ZmE4NDl2ZjkxZDc3YjU1 MTcOMWM4MGZmMTgyYzY5MDdiYzc3NDljMzFINTY2'¥zRkMGU 
wM212MzBmOGU4M2NkMDpOOIQ 

1998. 

" Click here to complete a Board of Supervisors Customer Service Satisfaction form. 

The Legislative Research Center provides 24-hour access to Board of Supervisors legislation, and archived matters since August 

Disclosures: Persona! information that is pro\lided in communications to the Board of SupeNisors is subject to disclosure uncler the 
California Public Recorcls Act and the San Francisco Sunshine Ordinance. Personal information provided will not be 
redactecl. lvlembers of the public are not required to provide personal identifying information when they communicate with tile Board 
of Superlisors and its committees. All written or oral communications that members of the public submit to the Cle11('s Office 
regarding pending legislation or hearings !•till be made a•,1ailable to all members of the public for inspection and copying. The Cleri<'s 
Office does not redact any info1maiion frr;;m these submissions. This means that personal infonnalion-inctuding names, phone 
numbers, addresses and similar information that a member of the public eiects to submit to the Board and its committees-may 
appear on the Board of Supervisors website or in oth,'3r public documents that members cf the public may inspect or copy. 

From: Gina Mcdonald <gina .mcdee@yahoo.com> 
Sent: Monday, May 30, 2022 9:50 PM 
To: SOTF, (BOS) <sotf@sfgov.org>; Lim, Victor (DEM) <vi.ctor.lim@sfgov.org> 
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
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DocuSign Envelope ID: 3F187184-6C3A-44E1-9FC3-01035EB 1 C30E 

129106632.5 

LEASE 

between 

1170 Market Street LLC, 
as Landlord 

and 

CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO, 
as Tenant 

For the lease of 
11 70 Market Street, San Francisco, California 

January 3, 2022 
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DocuSlgn Envelope ID: 3F187184-6C3A-44E1-9FC3-01035EB1C30E 

LIST OF EXHIBITS 

EXHIBIT A-Floor Plans of Premises 
EXHIBIT B - Notice of Commencement Date 
EXHIBIT C - Proclamation By The Mayor Declaring The Existence Of A Local Emergency 

dated December 17, 2021, First Supplement to Mayor Proclamation Declaring 
The Existence Of A Local Emergency dated December 27, 2021 and Motion 
M2 l- l 83, Board of Supervisor Resolution Concurring in Proclamation of Local 
Emergency-Drug Overdoses in the Tenderloin, approved 12/23/2021. 

129106632.5 
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DocuSign Envelope ID: 3F187184-6C3A-44E1-9FC3-01035EB 1 C30E 

OFFICE LEASE 

THIS OFFICE LEASE (this "Lease"), dated for reference purposes only as of January 3, 2022, 
is by and between 1170 Market Street LLC, a California lim ited liability company 
("Landlord"), and the CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO, a m un icipal corporation 
("City" or "Tenant"). 

Landlord and City hereby agree as follows: 

I. BASIC LEASE INFORMATION 

The fo llowing is a summary of basic lease i.nformat ion (the "Basjc Lease Information"). 
Each item below is deemed to incorporate all of the terms in this Lease pertaining to that item. If 
there is any confl ict between the infonnation in this Section and any more specifi c provision o f 
this Lease, the more specific provision will control. 

Lease Reference Date: 

Landlord: 

Tenant: 

Building (Section 2. 1 ): 

Premises (S ection 2. 1 ): 

Rentable Area of Premises (Secti on 2. l): 

Term (Section 3) : 

Extension Options (Section 3.4): 

Base Rent (Section 4.1 ): 

Use (Section 5.1): 

Leasehold Improvements (Section 6): 

Utilities (Section 9.1 ): 

129106632.5 
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January 3, 2022 

1170 Market Street, LLC 

CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO 

1170 Market Street, San Francisco, CA 

Entire Building 

Approximately 37,102 rentable square feet 

Estimated commencement date: 
January 3, 2022 

Expiration date: June 30, 2022 

Three (3) add itional Lenns of two (2) months 
each, exercisable by City by notice to Landlord 
given not less than th irty (30) days in advance, 
with rent of Seventy- Five Thousand Dolin.rs 
($75,000) per month. 

Monthly payments: $75,000 ($2.022 per sq. ft.) 

Operation of a linkage center for City 
p rogran1s and services, as described in 
Section 5.1 

None 

Those utilities listed in Section 9. 1 as Landlord 
responsibili ty will be provided by Landlord; all 
utility costs are included in Base Re:ht except 
electrical consumption on each floor (which is 
separately metered , which will be reimbursed 
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Services (Section 9.2): 

Notice Address of Landlord (Section 24.1 ): 

Landlord's Key Contact: 

Landlord Contact Telephone No.: 

Tenant's Notice Address (Section 24 .1 ): 

with a copy to: 

and to : 

Tenant's Key Contact: 

Tenant Contact Telephone No.: 

Tenant's Alternate Contact: 

Alternate Contact Telephone No. : 

129106632.5 

2 

by City as part of the monthly Rent. 

Those services described as Landlord 
responsibility in Section 9.1, except City will 
provide janitorial and security services at no 
cost to Landlord 

1170 Market Street, LLC 
1801 Van Ness Avenue, Suite 320 
San Francisco, CA 94109 
Attn: Haig G Mardikian, Manager 
Email: Betty@haigmardikian.com 
(415) 986-0785 

Robin Levitt 
Robin@haigrnardikian.com 

( 415) 722-303 8 

Real Estate Division 
25 Van Ness Avenue, Suite 400 
San Francisco, California 94102 
Attn: Director of Property 

Re: 1170 Market Street 

Email: Andricu.p~niek@sfguv.org 

Department of Emergency Management 
I 011 Turk Street 
San Francisco, CA 94102 
Attn: Adrienne Bechelli, Deputy Director 

Re: 1170 Market Street 

Email: Adrienne. bechelli@sfgov.org 

Office of the City Attorney 
City Hall, Room 234 
1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place 
San Francisco, CA 94102-4682 
Attn: Real Estate & Finance Team 

Re: 1170 Market Street 
Email: Charle . . swlLivan(cl),sfcityatty.org 
Fax No. (415) 5540-4757 

Adrienne Bechelli 

( 415) 554-4843 

Andrico Q. Penick 

(415) 554-9860 
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Brokers (Section 24.8): Steven A. Anderson, JLL 

2. PREMISES 

2.1 Lease Premises 

Landlord leases to City and City leases from Landlord, subject to the provisions of this 
Lease, those premises in the building identified in the Basic Lease Information (the "Building") 
and shown on the floor plans attached as Exhibit A (the "Premises"). The Premises contain the 
rentable area specified in the Basic Lease Infoonation, and all of the floors of the Building. As 
used in this Lease, the term "rentable area" means that measurement of interior floor area 
computed in accordance with the Office Buildings: Standard Methods of Measurements" 
(ANS I/B0tv1A Z65.l -2017) "METHOD B", adop ted by the Building Owners and Managers 
Association (the "HOMA Standard"). For clari ty, Base Rent is not determined based upon 
rentable area of the Premises. The Building, the land on which the Building is located, and all 
other improvements on or appurtenances to the land are referred to collectively as the 
"Property." 

2.2 Common Areas 

City has the exclusive right to use the lobbies, corridors, elevators, stairways, and other 
publ ic areas of the Building and the Prope1t y (collectively, 'the ' Common Areas'), and the 
exclusive right o f access to and from the Premises by the mai n entrances to the Building and the 
Property, subject to Landlord ' s 1ight and obligation to make repairs and provide services as set 
forth in this Lease. 

2.3 Condition of the Premises on Delivery 

Landlord will deli ver the Premises to City in · as is-' condition, demised water tight, with 
all Bui lding Systems (as defined in Section 8.1 (Landlord s Repairs)) in operable order, and all 
other systems in and serving the Premises in operable condition, and the Premises, the Building, 
and the Common Areas in compliance with all applicable Laws, as provided in Section 10.1 
(Landlord's Compliance with Laws; Premises Condition). 

2.4 Disability Access 

California Civil Code Section 1938 requires commercial landlords to disclose to tenants 
whether the property being leased has undergone inspection by a Ce1tified Access Specialist 
C'CASp") to detennine whether the property meets all applicable construction-related 
accessibility requirements. Landlord discloses (i) Landlord has not been issued a disability 
access inspection certificate as described in California Civil Code ("CC") Section 55.53(e), (ii) 
pursuant to CC Section 1938, that Land lord has not ordered, performed, or caused to be 
perform ed, a Certi fi ed Access Spe1.;ialist ("C A.Sp") inspection of the Premises (sometimes 
refo1n d to as ·'premises" or "subject premises' ' fo r the herein disclosures) and (i ii) Landlord 
makes the following statutory disclosure per CC SectLon 1938 (the required "CASp 
Disclosure"): 

"A Certified Access Specialist (CASp) can inspect the subject premises and detennine 
whether the subject premises comply with all of the applicable construction-related 
accessibility standards under state law. Although state law does not require a CASp 
inspection of the subject prernfaes, the commercial prope1ty owner or lessor may not 
prohibi t the lessee or tenan t fr >m obtaining a CASp inspection of the subject premises for 
the occupa11cy or potential occupancy of the lessee or tenant, i f req uested by the Lessee or 
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tenant. The parties shall mutually agree on the am mgements for the time and manner of 
the CASp inspection, the payment of the fee for the CASp inspection and the cost of 
making any repairs necessary to correct violations of construction-related accessibility 
standards within the premises." 

If City elects to obtain an inspection, City and Landlord will mutually agree on the 
arrangements for the time and manner of the CASp inspection. The payment of the CASp 
inspection fee and the cost of any repairs necessary to correct violations of construction-related 
accessibility standards shall be borne by the City. 

3. TERM 

3.1 Term of Lease 

The Premises are leased for a tenn (the "Term") commencing on the date that Landlord 
has delivered and City has accepted the Premises in the condition required under this Lease 
(Effective Date). The Tern, will end on the expiration date specified in the Basic Lease 
Infonnation, or the date that this Lease is earlier tenninated under the provisions of this Lease, 
unless City extends the Tenn pursuant to Section 3.4 (Extension Options). 

3.2 Commencement Date and Expiration Date 

The dates that the Term commences and expires under this Lease are the 
"Commencement Date" and the "Expiration Date." If the Commencement Date occurs on a 
date olher than the Estimatet.1 Cornmencem cnl Dale provided in the Basic Lcnse Information, 
then Landlord will promptly deli ver to Ci~ a notice substantially in the fom1 of the attached 
Exhibit B confirming the actual Commencement Date, but Landlord's failure to do so will not 
affect the dates of commencement or expiration of the Term. 

3.3 Delay in Delivery of Possession 

Landlord will use diligent and good faith efforts to deliver possession of the Premises in 
the condition required under this Lease, on or before the Estimated Commencement Date. If 
Landlord is unable to deliver possession of the Premises by the Estimated Commencement Date, 
then, subject to the provisions of this Section below, the validity of this Lease will not be 
affected by Landlord's inability to deliver possession except that City's obligat ions to pay Rent 
will not commence until the Commencement Date. lf the Commencement Date is later or earlier 
than the Estimated Commencement Date, this Lease will still expire on the Expiration Date, 
unless sooner tem1inated under the provisions under this Lease. If Landlord is unable to deliver 
possession of the Premises to City as required under this Lease within fifteen (15) days after the 
Estimated Commencement Date, then, by written notice to Landlord, City may terminate this 
Lease, without any further liability to Landlord or City. 

3.4 Extension Options 

Landlord grants City the right to extend the Tc1m (the "Extension Options") for the 
additional terms specified in the Basic Lease lnfo1mation (the "Extended Terms"). The 
Extended Terms will be on all of the terms and conditions contained in this Lease. Landlord 
acknowledges and agrees that City's exercise of an Extension Option will be conditioned on and 
subject to the Board of Supervisors and the Mayor enacting a resolution, at their respective sole 
and absolute discretion, approving and authorizing the extension ("Exercise Approval"). 
Accordingly, City's exercise of each Extension Option will occur, if at all, in two steps. City 
may exercise an Extensi.on Option, if at all, by giv ing first written notice to Landlord of the 
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City's intent to extend U1e Lease (the «Exercise Notice') no later than thirty (30) days before 
expiration of the Term· provided , however, if there is an uncured Event of Default on the date 
City gives an Exercise Notice, then Landlord may reject City's Exercise Notice if City fails to 
cure the Event of Default within ten ( l 0) days after Landlord's w1itten demand for City to cure 
the Event of Default. City will have twenty (20) days after the date the City delivers the Exercise 
Notice to Landlord to obtain Exercise Approval. City makes no representation or warranty at the 
time of gi ving the Exercise Notice that City will receive Exercise Approval, and Landlord agrees 
that the Lease will not be extended if the City does not receive Exercise Approval for any reason 
or cause, including any alleged failure of advocacy. lf th.e Exercise Approva.t is not received 
within the twenty (20)-day period, then Landlord may reject City's exercise upon written notice 
to City at any time before City receives the Exercise Approval. On receipt oftheExerc1se 
Approval, Tenant shall notify Landlord and the Ex.tension Option wi.11 be deemed exercised and 
binding on the parties. If City extends the Tem1 as provided in this Section, then the w9rd 
"Tem1" will mean and include any Extended Terms. 

4. RENT 

4.1 Base Rent 

Beginning on the Commencement Date, City will pay to Landlord the monthly Base Rent 
specified in the Basic Lease Information (the "Base Rent"). The Base Rent is payable each 
month at the address specified for Landlord in the Basic Lease Infonnation, or other place as 
Landlord may designate in writing on not less than thirty (30) days advance notice. City wil.l 
pay the Base Rent monthly within thirty (30) days after invo.ice from Landlord and without any 
deductions or setoff except as otherwise provided in this Lease. At Landford's election, Base 
Rent shall be sent electronically to an ACH account designated by Landlord. 

4.2 Intentionally Omitted 

4.3 Base Rent for the Extended Term 

During any Extended Term, the Base Rent will remain the same ($75,000 per month). 

4.4 Additional Charges 

City wi\1 pay to Landlord any charges or other amounts required under this Lease as 
additional rent ("Additional Charges"), including charges for Additional Services under 
Section 4 . 18 and for floor electrical as set forth in Section 9.1. All Additional Charges are 
payable to Landlord at the place where the Base Rent is payable. The Base Rent and Additional 
Charges are sometimes co11ectively referred to 'Rent." 

4.5 Intentionally Omitted 

4.6 Intentionally Omitted 

4. 7 Intentionally Omitted 

4.8 Operating Costs and Real Estate Taxes 

This Lease is fully serviced except janitorial, security and floo r electrical as set forth in 
Article 9. Thus, the Base Rent includes all fees and charges for Tt:nant's use and occupancy of 
the Premises, and there will be no other pass throughs to Tenant for operating expenses, taxes, or 
assessments except as set forth above. 
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4.9 Intentionally Omitted 

4.10 Intentionally Omitted 

4.11 Intentionally Omitted 

4.12 Intentionally Omitted 

4.13 Intentionally Omitted 

4.14 Audits 

After not less than five (5) business days' notice to Landlord, City may audit the books 
and records of the Building related to the Additional Services, the floor electrical costs or any 
charges made by Landlord to City under this Lease. If the audit discloses any discrepancies that 
would result in a reduction of moneys paid to Landlord, Landlord will immediately refund to 
City the amount of any overpayment by City. City will pay the cost of the audit, but if an audit 
discloses any discrepancies that shows an overpayment of five percent (5%) or more, then 
Landlord will pay the costs of the audit. 

4.15 Records 

Landlord will maintain at the Building or at its offices in San Francisco in a safe, 
complete, and organized manner all of its records related to this T ,ease, the floor electrical billing, 
Additional Services under Section 4. 18, and any other charges paid by City under this Lt.a::.c, f u1 
at least three (3) years after Lhe Expiration Date or earlier tcrn1ination of the Term. Landlord will 
maintain the records on a current basis and in sufficient detail to facilitate adequate review and 
audit. All books and records will be available for inspection, copying, and audit by City and its 
representatives, at City's expense, subject to the provisions of Section 4.14 (Audits). 

4.16 Payments by City 

Landlord acknowledges that City cannot make any payments to Landlord unless 
Landlord is qualified as an approved vendor in City's financial and payment system. Therefore, 
City will not be in default of any monetary obligation under this Lease and no interest or late 
charge will apply, if Landlord is not an approved vendor with City. More infonnation about 
being an approved vendor with City is available at 
https://sfoitvpartner.sfgov.org/Vendor/ BecomeSupplier. All Rent that has accrued while 
Landlord was not an approved vendor will be payable within twenty (20) after City receives 
Landlord's written notice and the Contract Monitoring Division confoms that Landlord has been 
approved as a City vendor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, pursuant to the Mayor's Declaration 
of Emergency attached as Exhibit C (the Emergency Declaration"), the City will waive all 
requirements necessary to become a City approved vendor except that Landlord must provide to 
the City, in advance of the Commencement Date, its W-9 Taxpayer Identification and 
Certification Form, its San Francisco Business Tax ID infonnation and any similar infonnation 
or documents reasonably requested by the City in order to comply with tax repmting 
requirements. 

4.17 Landlord's Compliance with City Business and Tax Regulations Code 

Landlord acknowledges that under Section 6.10-2 of the San Francisco Business and Tax 
Regulations Code, the City Treasurer and Tax. Collector may require the withholding of 
payments to any vendor that is delinquent in the payment of any amounts that the vendor is 
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required to pay the City under the San Francisco Business and Tax Regulations Code. If, under 
that authority, any payment City is required to make to Landlord under this Lease is withheld, 
then City will not be in breach or default under this Lease, and the Treasurer and Tax Collector 
will ,tuthori.ze release ofany payments withheld under this parabi-raph to Landlord, without 
interest, late fees, penalties, or other charges, upon Landlord coming back into compliance with 
its San Francisco Business and Tax Regulations Code obligations. 

4.18 Additional Services 

City may request that Landlord provide or arrange for additional services for the 
Premises, which Landlord may provide or arrange in its reasonable discretion. tf Landlord elects 
to provide the requested additional services and City has approved the cost and scope of those 
services in advance (the ' Additional Services") then City will pay Landtord as Additional 
Charges· the cost of those Additional Services at the agreed upon price. Landlord may not 
contract for or provide any services (and City will not be obligated to pay for such services) 
without City's prior w1itten approval of the cost of the Additional Services (which n'lay be the 
known costs, or an hourly rate and maximum number of hours, or a cost estimate with a not-to­
exceed maximum amount) in writing before Landlord incurs any costs. City will pay for the cost 
of the Additional Services within thirty (30) days after receipt of an invoice with supporting data, 
sent with the next rent invoice. Any additional tenns for the Additional Services will be 
memorialized by a written agreement, which, upon execution by Landlord and City, will be 
considered a part of this Lease. 

5. USE 

5.1 Permitted Use 

City may use the Premises for general office uses, and the operation of a Link.age Center 
for City programs and services and for no other use without Landlord's prior written consent 
which may not be unreasonably withheld conditioned, or delayed . The Premises may not be 
used for any overn ight residential purposes including, without limitation, any overnight sleeping 
or "hoteling" accommodations. The Linkage Center is a component of the Tenderloin 
Emergency Intervention Plan that aims to mitigate the wi.despread open-air drug use and lack of 
easi ly accessible pop-up resources for people in need in the Tenderlo in. This center is a 
services-focused location where people can voluntarily go to find respite from the streets and 
gain access to a wide variety ofresources from the City and its partners. The purpose of this 
Linkage Center is to: 

1. Provide a safe, welcoming space for people who suffer from substance use disorder in the 
Tenderloin to go where they can access hygiene resources and social space. 

2. Be a "one stop shop" for people who are ready to access City health and human services 
resources to link to those services easily and quickly. 

5.2 Intentionally Omitted 

5.3 Interference with Access 

Landlord will provide to City uninterrupted access to the Building and the Premises 
twcnly-four (24) hours per clay, seven (7) days per week, including <lLLr ing any power outages 
<lffecting the Premises or any portion of the Building; but Landlord may after consultation with 
City's Administrator, intenupt City's access to the Premises or the Building iftherc is an 
immediate threat that \-viii render the Premises, the Common Areas, or any other portion of the 
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Building unsafe for human occupancy. If City's use of any of the Premises is interrupted because 
the Premises, the Common Areas, or any other portion of the Building is unsafe for human 
occupancy due to Landlord ' s failure to comply with its obligations under this Lease, or for any 
reason not caused by the City, its Agents or Invitees then Landlord will immediately undertake 
all necessary steps to correct the condition. If the condition impairs City's ability to carry on its 
business in the Premises, then the Rent will be abated based on the extent to which the condition 
interferes with City' s ability to normally and safely carry on its business at the Premises. If the 
condition continues for thirty (30) days or more after City's use is interrupted or impaired then, 
without limiting any of its other rights under this Lease, City may terminate this Lease, unless 
Landlord supplies City with evidence that City's normal and safe use will be restored within 
thirty (30) days after the date City's use was interrupted or impaired, and City's full use is 
actually restored within that thirty (30)-day period. City acknowledges that, since it effectively 
has access to and control of the entire usable and occupiable portions of the Building, City will 
control and be responsible for security and access to the Building. Nothing in this Section will 
limit City's rights with respect to any disruption due to casualty under Section 12 (Damage and 
Destruction). 

6. LEASEHOLD IMPROVEMENTS 

6.1 Intentionally Omitted 

6.2 Intentionally Omitted 

6.3 Installation of Telecommunications and Other Equipment 

Landlord and City ac:r-.no\i.rledg~ that Landlord will not install tf':]t>:r.nmmnni~Rtinns, nfltr1, 
and computer cabling facilities and eq_uipment. City is responsible for installing those faci lities 
and equipment to the extent needed and setting up its own Wi-Fi network. Landlord will furnish 
access to City and its consultants and contractors to the main communications. service serving the 
floor(s) on which the Premises are located and all other parts of the Building where access is 
needed for proper installation of Wi-Fi and/or communication facilities and data equipment 
including wiring. City will have the right to install Wi-Fi and/or communication facilities and 
data equipment. City and Landlord will use their good faith cffot1s to coordinate any all 
activities to allow t the installation of Wi-Fi and/or communication fadlities and data equipment 
to be completed in a timely and cost-effective manner. Upon the expiration or termination of 
this Lease, City shall remove any communications and data equipment that City installs in the 
Premises. 

6.4 Construction of Improvements that Disturb or Remove Exterior Paint 

Landlord, on behalf of itself and its successors, assigns, and Agents, will comply with all 
requirements of the San Francisco Building Code Chapter 34 and all other applicable local, state, 
and federal laws, including the California and United States Oc upational and Health Safety Acts 
and their implementing regulations, when Landlord disturbs or removes exterior or interior 
lead-based or "presumed" lead-based paint (as defined below). Landlord and its Agents must 
give to City three (3) business days' prior written notice of any disturbance or removal of 
exterior or interior lead-based or presumed lead-based paint. Landlord acknowledges that the 
required notification to the Department of Building Inspection regarding the disturbance or 
removal of exterior lead-based paint under San Francisco Building Code Chapter 34 does not 
constitute notification to City as Tenant under this Lease and similarly that notice under this 
Lease does not constitute notice under San Francisco Building Code Chapter 34. Further, 
Landlord and its Agents, when disturbing or removing exterior or interior lead-based or 
presumed lead-based paint, will not use or cause to be used any of the following methods: 
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(a) acetylene or propane burning and torching; (b) scraping, sanding, or grinding without 
containment barriers or a High Efficiency Patticulate Air filter(' HEPA") local vacuum exhaust 
too l; (c) hydroblasting or high-pressure wash '11\'l.thout containment barriers; (d) abrasive blasting 
or sandblasting without containment barriers or a HEPA vacuum exhaust tool; and (e) heat gµns 
operating above l, I 00 degrees Fahrenheit. Landlord will comply with the requirements of 
California Code of Regulations Title 17 when taking measures that are designed to reduce or 
eliminate lead hazards. Under this Section, paint on the exterior or intciior of buildings built 
before January l , 1979 is presumed to be lead-based paint unless a lead-based paint test, as 
defined by San Francisco Building Code Chapter 34 demonstrates an absence oflead-based 
paint on the interior or exterior surfaces of the buildings. Under this ScctLoo, lead-based paint is 
'"disturbed or removed" if the work or alteration involves anv action that creates friction, 
pressur~, heat, or a chemical reaction on any lead-based or p~·esumed lead-based paint on a 
surface so as to abrade, loosen, penetrate, cut through, or eliminate paint from that surface. 

7. ALTERATIONS 

7.1 Alterations by City 

City may not make or permit any alterations, installations additions, or improvements 
(collectively, 'Alterations") to the Premises without first obtaining Landlord's written consent, 
which Landlord will not unreasonably withhold, condition or delay. Installation of furnishings, 
fixtures, equipment, or decorative improvements that do not affect the Building Systems or 
structural integrity of the Building, and the repainting and recarpeting of the Premises do not 
constitute Alterations and do not require Landlord s consent. Any Alterations permitted under 
this Lease will be made at City's cost in compliance with applicable Laws (as defined in 
Section 10. J (Landlord 's Compliance with Laws)). Without cost to itself, Landlord will 
cooperate with City in securing building and other permits and authorizations needed for any 
penni.tted Alterations. Landlord will not be entitled to any construction or other administrative 
fee in connection with any Alteration. City will no t be requi.red to remove any Alterations on the 
expiration or sooner termination of this Lease unless Landlord notifies City in writing at the time 
Landlord approves the Alterations that they must be removed. City is not required to remove 
any improvements not requiring Landlord's consent. 

7 .2 Title to Improvements 

Except for City's Personal Propetty (as defined i11 the next Section), all appurtenances, 
fixtures , improveme11ts, equipment additions, and other property permanently instaUed in the 
Premises as of the Commencement Date or during the Te1m will be and will remain Landlord's 
property. City may not remove Landlord's property without Landlbrd"s written approval. 

7.3 City's Personal Property 

(a) All furniture, furnishings equipment trade fixtures, and articles of 
movable person.al property installed in the Prernises by or for City and that can be removed 
without structural damage to the Premises (collectively, '·City's Personal Property ') are and 
will remain City's prope11y. If City requests, Landlord may assist City by ordering and installing 
City's Personal Property and City will reimbw-se landlord for all fees, costs, and e:penses 
approved by City in advance within thirt (30) days uftcr receipt of an invoice with supporting 
documentation and submitted ,vith the next rent invoice; provided, hov.·ever, that City may elect 
to provide any deposit or other expense required at the time of ordering City' s Personal Property. 
To the extent possible, any maintenance contract or wa1Tanty in connection with the purchase or 
lease of tangible personal property will be 01 tional (namely, City may, but is not required to 
purchase a maintenance contract or warranty). To the extent feasible, Landlord and any vendors 

9 

129106632.5 

2567 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 3F187184-6C3A-44E1-9FC3-01035EB1C30E 

of Landlord will separately itemize any shipping charges. Although Landlord may order and 
install City's Personal Property, all items will remain City's Personal Property and not be 
considered Leasehold Improvements or constitute any component of the Leasehold 
Improvements. With regard to any personal property purchased by Landlord on behalf of City or 
leased by City under this Lease, (a) Landlord represents that it is fully compliant with the 
California Sales and Use Tax Law and warrants to City that Landlord that it will fulfill its use tax 
obligations under that law with respect to the subject transaction; (b) Landlord will accept a Use 
Tax Direct Payment Exemption Certificate in lieu of any use tax payment if the City, in its sole 
discretion, elects to provide such Certificate to Landlord; ( c) If the City pays use tax to Landlord, 
Landlord will remit the entire amount of the use tax payment to the state and provide the City 
with a receipt in accordance with the California Sales and Use Tax Law; and (d) Landlord will 
be liable to the City for all amounts of use tax paid to Landlord that Landlord fails to remit to the 
State. This obligations of Landlord under the foregoing sentence will survive and tennination or 
expiration of the Lease. 

(b) At any time during the Tenn, City may remove any of City's Personal 
Property, and City will repair any damage to the Premises resulting from that removal. On the 
expiration or earlier tennination of this Lease, City will remove City's Personal Property from 
the Premises in accordance with Section 20 (Sun-ender of Premises). Landlord acknowledges 
that some of City' s Personal Property may be financed by an equipment lease financing 
otherwise subjected to a security interest, or owned by an equipment company and leased to City 
("Secured Personal Property"). Landlord recognizes the rights of any supplier, lessor, or 
lender who has an interest in any items of Secured Personal Property to enter the Premises and 
remove that Secured Personal Property at any time during the Tenn or within thirty (30) days 
after the Expiration Date. Un City's reasonable request, Landlord will execute and deliver any 
document ri.=.quin:.d by any 5UJJplic1, le~~u1, ul' k;udc::1 i11 l-uw1t:diu11 with the: iw,ldllatiuu uf auy 
items of Secured Personal Property in the Premises, under which Landlord waives any rights it 
may have or acquire with respect to the Secured Personal Property, so long as the supplier, 
equipment supplier, lessor, or lender agrees that it (i) will remove the Secured Personal Property 
from the Premises within thirty (30) days after the Expiration Date (and if it does not remove the 
Secured Personal Property within that time the equipment supplier, lessor, or lender will have 
waived any rights it may have had to the Secured. Personal Propc1ty), and (ii) will repair any 
damage caused by the removal of the Secured Personal Property. 

7.4 Alteration by Landlord 

Landlord will use its best efforts to minimize interference with or disruption to City's use 
and occupancy of the Premises during any alterations, installations, additions, or improvements 
to the Building. Landlord will promptly remedy any interference or disruption on receiving 
City's notice thereof. 

8. REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE 

8.1 Landlord's Repairs 

City acknowledges that the Building is ctm-ently in acceptable condition ("Current 
Condition"). At its cost, Landlord will repair and maintain the exterior and structural portions of 
the Building in its Ctmerrt Condition, including only the roof, foundation, bearing and exterior 
walls and subfl.ooring, and the heating, ventilating, air conditioning, plumbing, electrical, fire 
protection , life safety, security, and other mechanical, electrical, and communications systems of 
the Building (collectively, the "Building Systems"). Without limiting the foregoing, City will 
maintain the Building in its Cuncnt Condition , normal wear and tear excepted and will provide 
exterior graffiti removal with reasonable frequency. 
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8.2 City's Repairs 

Subject to Landlord's warranty under Section 10.1 (Premises Condition), and Landlord's 
repair and maintenance obligations under tbis Lease, City wi l.l repair and maintain at its cost the 
interior portions of the Premises and will keep the Premises in good working order and in a safe 
and sanitary condition, except for ordinary wear and tear and damage by casualty or 
condemnation. City wi ll make any required repairs and replacements to the interior of the 
Premises (a) at City's cost, (b) by contractors or mechanics selected by City and reasonably 
approved by Landlord, (c) so that the interior portions of the Premises will be at least 
substan tially equal in quality, value, and utility to the original work or installation before the 
damage, (d) in a maimer and using equipment and materials that will not materially interfere 
with OT impair the operations, use, or occupation of the Building or the Building Systems, and 
(e) in compliance with all applicable Laws, including any applicable contracting requirements 
under City's Charter and Administrative Code. At all times during the Term, promptly after 
City's reasonable notice Landlord will provide City and its Agents with access to those porti0ns 
of the Building that are necessary to maintain or repair the telecommunications and data and 
computer cab I ing facilities and equipment installed by City, if any. 

8.3 Liens 

City will keep the Premises free from liens arising out of any work performed, material 
furnished, or obligations incurred by City during the Term. Landlord may post on the Premises 
any notices pem1itted or required by Laws or that are needed for the protection of Landlord, the 
Premises, or the Building from mechanics ' and material suppliers' liens. City will give 
Landlord at least five ( 5) days' prior written notice of commencement of any repair or 
construction by City on the Premises. 

9. UTILITIES AND SERVICES 

9.1 Landlord's Provision of Utilities 

Landlord will furnish only the following utilities and services to the Premises at no cost 
lo City, except as set forth in (b) below: (a) J,cating, air conditioning, and ventilation twenty-four 
(24) hours a day, se en (7) days a week ("Dailv Basis'); (b) clech-ic current up to the existing 
eh:;ctrical capacity of the Building, on a Daily Basis except tl,at City wil.l reimburse Landlord for 
floor electrical (without markup) based upon actual costs, as evidenced by electric bills from 
PG&E; (c) elevator service on a Daily Basis; and (d) water for lavatory, kitchen, and drinking 
purposes on a Daily Basis. DUii ng the Tenn, Landlord will provide freight elevato.r service on 
City s reasonable request. Without limiting Landlord ' s obligations under this Section, Landlord 
wi.ll furnis h all utilities and service requi red under this Lease in a manner consistent with 
utilities and services normally provided in comparable buildings in the San Francisco Civic 
Center District. 

9.2 Services 

At its cost, City will provide such janitorial and security services that City requires during 
the Term. 

9.3 Conservation 

Landlord may establish reasonable measures to conserve energy and water, including 
automatic light shut off after hours and efficient lighting fom,s on unused floors, including but 

11 

129106632.5 

2569 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 3F187184-6C3A-44E1-9FC3-01035EB1 C30E 

not limited to the basement, so long as these measures do not unreasonably interfere with City's 
use of the Premises. 

9.4 Disruption in Essential Utilities or Services 

If any failure, stoppage, or interruption of any utilities or services to be furnished by 
Landlord occurs, Landlord will immediately notify City of the failure, stoppage, or intenuption; 
diligently attempt to restore service as promptly as possible; and keep City apprised of its effo11s. 
If Landlord is unable to supply any of the Building's sanitary, electrical, heating, air 
conditioning, water, elevator, fire protection and hazard detection and alarm, or other essential 
services serving the Premises ( collectively, "Essential Services") and, if such failure, stoppage 
or interruption is not caused by City, its Agents or Invitees, and that inability of Landlord impairs 
City's ability to carry on its business in the Premises for (a) one (I) or more business days and it 
is in Landlord's reasonable control to restore the Essential Services or (b) five (5) or more 
consecutive business days if the failure is not within Landlord's reasonable control and City, in 
fact, does not use or occupy that portion of the Premises, then the Rent will be abated based on 
the extent that the lack of the Essential Services impairs City's ability to nonnally carry on its 
business in the Premises, or, alternatively at City's election, City may provide the Essential 
Services and offset the reasonable cost against the Rent next due under this Lease. The 
abatement or right to provide the Essential Services and offset against Rent will continue until 
the Essential Services have been restored so that the lack of any remaining Essential Services no 
longer materially impairs City's ability to caITy on its business in the Premises. Landlord will 
use .ifs reasonable and diliget1:t efforts to restore disrupte;:tl Esst:nLial Se1 viL:i::s as suu11 as 
practicable. If the failu re to provide any Essential Services occurs for any reason (other than acts 
or om1ss1ons of City solely as Tenant but not City in its regulatory role), City'g Agents or 
.Invitees) for more th,in thir1y (30) ciays, and that failure interferes with City's ability to nonnally 
can-yon its business in the Premises and City, in fact, does not use or occupy that portion of the 
Premises, then, without limiting any of its other rights or remedies under this Lease or at law or 
in equity, City may tenninate this Lease on written notice to Landlord, unless Landlord supplies 
City with evidence teasonably satisfactory to City tha't the Essential Services will be reliably 
restored within forty-five (45) days after the date City's use was first inte1Tuptcd, and the 
Essential Services are actually restored and reliable within the forty-five (45)-day period. City 
will no t be entitled to any abatement of Rent or right to tenninate if Landlord's inability to 
supply Essential Services to City results solely to the negligent acts or omissions of City (solely 
as Tenant but not City in its regulatory role) and City's Agents. 

10. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS; PREMISES CONDITION 

10.1 Landlord's Compliance with Laws; Premises Condition 

Subject to City's obligation under Section 8.? (City's Repairs), Landlord will at all times 
during the Tenn maintain, at its cost, the Property, Building, Common Areas, and the Building 
Systems in compliance with applicable present or future federal, state, local, and administrative 
laws, mlcs, regulations, orders, and requirements (collectively, "Laws"). Landlord represents 
and warrants to City, and covenants with City, as follows: to Landlord's actual knowledge, 
without inquiry: (a) the physical structure, fixtures, and pemrnnent improvements of the 
Premises (including the Leasehold [mpro ve1uents) a.nd all portions of the Property and the 
Building along the path of travel to the Premises (including the Building entrances, Common 
Areas, restrooms, e levators, lobbies telephone banks, and drinking fountains) are now, and as of 
the Commencement Date will be, in compliance with the requirements of the Americans With 
Disabilities Act of 1990, California Code of Regulations Title 24, and all other applicable Laws 
intended to provide equal accessibility for persons with disabilities (collectively, "Disabilities 
La,vs"); (b) the Building is nol an unreinforced masonry building, and is now, and as of the 
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Commencement Date will be, in compliance with all applicable Laws relating to seismic safety 
(collectively,' Seismic Safety Laws"); (c) the Building, the Common Areas; and Building 
Systems serving the Premises are now, and as of the Commencement Date will be, in full 
compliance with all applicable Laws relating to fire and life safety (including the San Francisco 
High-Rise Sprinkler Ordinance) (collectively ''Life Safety Laws"); (d) the Building, the 
Conunon, Areas, and Building Systems serving tl1e Premises are now, and as of the 
Commencement Date will be, in compliance with all other applicab le Laws; and (e) there are not 
now, and as of the Commencement Date will not be, any material physical or mechanical defects 
in the Premises, Building, or the Building Systems that would materially adversely affect City's 
intended use of the Premises. 

10.2 City's Compliance with Laws 

City will use the Premises during the Tenn in compliance with applicable Laws, as 
modified or waived by the Emergency Declaration (Exhibit C), except that City will not be 
required to make any structural alterations, additions, or other modifications in order to comply 
witl1 applicable Laws unless tl1e modifications are necessary solely because of any Alterations to 
the Premises made by City under Section 7 (Alterations) and the modifications are not otherwise 
Landlord' s responsibility under this Lease. City will be responsible for complying with any 
requirement of the Disabilities Laws relating to the placement of City's fumitute or other City 
Personal Property and the operation of any programs in the Premises, other tban any requirement 
relating to the physical structure, fixtures, and permanent improvements of the Premises or 
pOJtions of the Property or Building along the path of travel to the Premises, which are 
Land lord s obligation as provided in Section I 0.1 (Premises Condition). 

11. SUBORDINATION 

(a) Subject to subsection (b) below, this Lease is subject and subordinate at all 
times to the following (each an Encumbrance ): (i) any reciprocal easement agTeements, 
ground leases, or other underlying leases that may later be executed affecting Landlord s interest 
in the Property (or any portion of it), and (ii) the lien of any mortgages or deeds of trust and 
renewals, modifications, consolidations, replacements, and extensions of any of the foregoing 
that may be executed by Landlord at any time in any amount for which any part of the Property 
any ground lease, or Lmder!yi_ng lease, or Landlord's interest or estate in them is subject. Bllt, if 
the 1:,rround lessor, mortgagee, trustee, or J1older of any mortgage or deed of trust (each an 
"Encumbrancer") elects to have City' s interest in this Lease be superior to it Encumbrance, 
then, on City s receipt of a notice from the Encwnbrancer this Lease will be deemed supeiior, 
whether this Lease was executed before or after the date of the Encumbrance or the date of its 
recording. The provisions of this subseclion I l (a) are self-operative and no furrher instrumet1l will 
be required. At Landlord s request, however, City will enter into a subordination , 
nondisturbance, m1d attomment agreement(' SNDA") with Encumbrancer in a fonn reasonably 
acceptable to City and Encurnbrancer evidencing the subordination or superimity of this Lease. 
City's covenant w1der this subsection (a) to subordinate this Lease to any Encumbrance is 
conditioned on each ser1ior instnnnent containing the commitments in subsection (b) below. 

(b) If any mortgage or deed of tmst to which this Lease is subordinate is 
foreclosed or a deed in lieu of foreclosure is given to the mmtgagee or beneficiary, or if any 
ground lease or underlying lease to which this Lease is subordinate is tenninatcd then this Lease 
will not be barred, terminated, cut oft: or foreclosed and the Tights and possession of Ci ty under 
this Lease will not be disturbed unless an Event of Default has occurred and is continuing. City 
will attom to and become the tenant of the successor-in-interest to Landlord, provided that City 
has received proper written notice of the succession and the name and address of the successor 
landlord. The provisions of this Section l l(b) are self-operative and no further instrument will be 
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required. Landlord agrees, however, upon request by City and in a form reasonably acceptable to 
City to cause any Encumbrancer to execute an SNDA evidencing the foregoing non-disturbance 
provisions together with the priority or subordination of this Lease with respect to any such 
Encumbrance. 

12. DAMAGE AND DESTRUCTION 

(a) If the Premises, the Building, or any Building Systems are damaged by 
fire or other casualty, and the resulting damage or destruction will take more than 60 days to 
repair; then either party can terminate the Lease upon 30 days written notice to the other party. 
If the parties do not terminate the Lease within 30 days then the Lease continues in full force and 
effect for the portions of the Premises unaffected by the damage/destruction, with the Rent 
abated as set forth in Section 5.3. 

(b) The parties intend that the provisions of this Section fully govern their 
tights and obligations in the event of damage or destruction. Accordingly, Landlord and City 
each waives and releases any right to terminate this Lease in whole or in part under 
Section 1932, subdivision 2, Section 1933, subdivis ion 4, and Sections 1941 and 1942 of the 
Civil Code of California or under any similar Law now or later in effect, to the extent those 
rights are inconsistent with the provisions of this Section. 

13. EMINENT DOMAIN 

13.1 Definitions 

"Taking" means a taking or damaging, including severance damage, by eminent domain, 
inverse condemnation, or for any public or quasi-public use under law. A Taking may occur 
pursuant to the recording of a final order of condemnation, or by voluntary sale or conveyance in 
lieu of condemnation, or in settl ement of a cbndemnation action. 

"Date of Taking" means the earlier of (a) the date on which title to the portion of the 
Property taken passes to and vests in the condemnor or (b) the date on which City is 
dispossessed. 

"Award" means all compensation, sums, or anything of value paid, awarded or received 
for a Taking, whether under any judgment, agreement, settlement, or otherwise. 

13.2 General 

If during the Tenn or during the period between the execution of this Lease and the 
Commencement Date, there is any Talcing of all or any part of the Premises or the Building or 
any inte rest in this Lease, the rights and o bligations of the parties wil l be determ ined under this 
Section. Ci ty and Landlord intend that the provisions of this Secti on go vern fu lly in the event of 
a Taking and accordingly, Landlord and City each waives any right to tern1inatc this Lease in 
whoteorinpartunderSections 1265. 110, 1265.120, 1265.130and 1265 .140ofthe California 
Code of Civil Procedure or under any similar Law now or later in effect. 

13.3 Total Taking; Automatic Termination 

If there is a total Taking of the Premises, then this Lease will terminate as of the Date of 
Taking. 
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13.4 Partial Taking; Election to Terminate 

(a) If there is a Taking of any portion (bl\.t less than all) of the Premises, then 
this Lease will terminate in its entirety if all of the following exist: (i) the paitial Taking, in 
City's reasonable judgment, renders the remaining portion of the Premises untenaotable or 
unsuitable for continued use by City for its intended pliJl)OSes or other.vise materially adversely 
affects C ity' s normal operations in the Premises or access to tbe Premises, (ii) the condition 
rendering the Premises untenantable or unsuitable or that materially adversely affects City' s 
nonnal operations or limits access to the Premises either is not curable or is curable but Landlord 
is unwilling or unable to cure the condition, and (iii) City elects to terminate. 

(b) If a partial Taking of a substantial p01tion of the Building ocours, a but 
subsection (a) above does not app ly, then within thirty (30) days after the Date of Taking either 
City or Landlord may terminate this Lease by w1itten notice to the other, provided that, as a 
condition to City' s right to tenninate the portion of the Building taken must, in City's reasonable 
judgment, render the Premises unsuitable for continued use by City for its intended purposes or 
otherwise materially adversely affect City's nonnal operations in the Premises or access to the 
Premises. 

(c) If either party elects to terminate this Lease under this Section, then this 
Lease will terminate on the later of the thirtieth (30111

) day after the written notice is given or the 
Date of Taking. 

13.5 Termination of Lease; Rent and Award 

On temtination of this Lease in its entirety under Section 13.3 (Total Taking: Automatic 
Tennination) or under Section l3.4 (Partial Taking; Continuation of Lease), then: (a) City s 
obligation to pay Rent will continue up until the date of te1mination and then will cease, and 
(b) Landlord will be entit led to the entire Award, except that City will receive any portion of the 
Award for U1e unamortized cost of any Leasehold Improvements paid for by City and any Award 
made specifically for City's relocation expenses or the inten-uption of or damage to City's 
business or damage to City s Persona l Property. 

13.6 Partial Taldng; Continuation of Lease 

If there is a partial Taking of the Premises and this Lease is not terminated in its entirety 
tmder Section l3.4 (Partial Taking· Continuation of Lease) above, then this Lease will terminate 
as to the portion of the Premises taken, but wil l remain in effect as to the portion not taken and 
the rights and obligations of the parties wilJ be as follows: (a) Rent will be equitably reduced 
depending on the configuration or the Premises and the portion taken (for instance if the area of 
the Prem.ises taken has no special or significant use, then the reduction may be by an amount that 
is in the same ratio to the Rent as the area of the Premises taken bears to the area of the Premises 
before the Date of Taking), and (b) Landlord will be entitled to the entire Award in connection 
therewith, provided that City will receive any portion o the Award fo r the unamortized cost of 
any Leasehold Improvements paid for by City in the portion of the Premises taken and any 
Award made specifically for City' s relocation ex penses or the interruption of or damage to City's 
business or damage to City's Personal Prope1iy. 

13.7 Temporary Taking 

Notwithstanding anything to contrary in this Section, if a Taking of the Premises occurs 
fot sixty (60) consecutive days or fewer, this Lease will remain unaffected by the temporary 
Taki ng, and City will continue to pay Rent and to perfom1 all of the terms. conditions, and 
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covenants of this Lease. In the event of a temporary Taking, City will be entitled to receive that 
portion of any Award representing compensation for the use or occupancy of the Premises during 
the Term up to the total Rent owing by City and any out-of-pocket costs incurred by City due to 
the temporary Taking for the period of the Taking. 

14. ASSIGNMENT AND SUBLETTING 

Except as provided in this Section, City may not directly or indirectly sell, assign, 
encumber, pledge, or otherwise transfer or hypothecate all or any part of its interest in or rights 
with respect to the Premises or its leasehold estate created by this Lease or pennit all or any 
po11ion of the Premises to be occupied by anyone other than itself or sublet all or any portion of 
the Premises, without Landlord's p1ior written consent in each instance, which will not be 
unreasonably withheld, conditioned, or delayed. From time to time, on notice to Landlord, but 
without Landlord's consent, City may transfer this Lease or use and occupancy of all or any of 
the Premises to any department, commission, or agency of the City and County of San Francisco 
for uses permitted by applicable Law. 

15. DEFAULT; REMEDIES 

15.1 Events of Default by City 

Any uf lhe following will <..:uuslitute an "Event of Default" by City: 

(a) City frtils tn m;:ike any timely payment of Rent and to cure the nonpayment 
w1thtn five(:>) business days after receipt of written noLict: of nonpayrm:nl f'r rt\ La11dlurd, 
provided that for the first monthly payment of Rent at the beginning of the Term, City will have 
twenty (20) days after written notice from Landlord to cure any nonpayment. 

(b) City's abandons the Premises (within the meaning and under the 
requirements of California Civil Code Section 1951.3). 

(c) City's failure to perfonn any other of its covenants or obligations under 
this Lease (not involving the payment of money) and failure to cure the non-performance within 
thitty (30) days of the date of receipt of Landlord's notice of the failure, provided that if more 
than thirty (30) days are reasonably required for the cure, no Event of Default ;,viii occur if City 
commences the cure within the thirty (30)-day period and diligently prosecutes the cure to 
completion. 

15.2 Landlord's Remedies 

On the occuuencc and during the continuance of any Event of Default by City, Landlord 
will have all rights and remedies available under law or granted pursuant to this Lease, including 
the following: 

(a) The rights and remedies provided by California Civi l Code Section 1951.2 
(damages on termination for brea1,;h), including the right to terminate City s right to possession 
of the Premises and to recover the worth at the time of award of the amount by which the unpaid 
Rent for the balance of the Term after the time of award exceeds the amount of rental loss for the 
same period that City proves could be reasonably avoided, as computed under subsection (b) of 
Section 1951.2. 

(b) The rights and remedies provided by California Civil Code Section 1951.4 
(continuation of lease after breach and abandonment), which all ows Landlord to continue this 
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Lease in effect and to enforce all of its 1ights and remedies under this Lease, including the right 
to recover Rent as it becomes due, for so long as Landlord does not terminate City's right to 
possession, if City has the right to sublet or assign, subject only to reasonable limitations. 

15.3 Landlord's Default 

If Landlord fails to perfonn any of its obligations underthis Lease, then (without limiting 
any of City's other cure rigl1ts under this Lease), at its sole option, City may cure the default at 
Landlord 's expense if the default continues after ten ( 10) days after the date City gives notice to 
Landlord of City s intention to perform the cure. However, if a default occurs because of a cause 
beyond Landlord s control ( excluding any financial inability to perfom1), and Landlord cannot 
with due diligence cure the default within the ten ( l 0)-day period, then the ten (10)-day period 
will be extended if, promptly on receipt of City s notice, Landlord advises City of Landlord 's 
intention to take all steps required to cure the default, and Landlord promptly commences the 
cure and diligently prosecutes the cure to completion. Slit if any default by Landlord continues 
for thirty (30) days and impairs City' s ability to carry oo its normal business in the Premises and 
City, in fact, does not use o·r occupy that portion of the Premises, then City may tenninate this 
Lease on written notice to Landlord within thirty (30) days after the expiration of the thi1ty (30)­
day period. Subject to the other provisions of this Lease relating to abatement of Rent, if 
Landlord fails to cure any default within the ten (10)-day cure period provided above (as it may 
be extended as provided above), then, whether or not City elects to cure Landlord's default the 
Rent will be abated based on the extent to which the default makes a portion of the Premises 
unusable but only to the extent City was actually using that portion of the Premises at the time 
of the damages. City' s ri.ghts under this Section and Lmder any other provisions of this Lease 
will no t limi t in any way any of its other rights and remedies under this Lease or at law or in 
equity. 

16. INDEMNITIES 

16.1 City's Indemnity 

City will indemnify, defend , and hold harmless ("Indemnify') Landlord and its Agents 
from and against any and all daims, losses, damages, costs, and expenses, including reasonable 
attorneys fees (collectively, '·CJ aims") incu1Ted as a resu lt of (a) default by City in the 
perfonnance of any obligations under this Lease or any breach of any representations or 
wan-anties made by City under this Lease, or (b) any willful misconduct or negligent acts or 
omissions of City or its Agent or lnvitees in, on, or aboLtt the Premises or the Propeiiy, or (c) 
any thi rd party lawsuits against Landlord based in who le or in part on the operation of a Linkage 
Center in the Building or the presence of people in need -in or around the Building; provided, 
however City will not be obligated to Indemnify Landlord or its Agents to the extent any Claim 
arises out of the acts or omissions by Landlord or its Agents. In any action or proceeding 
brought against Landlord or its Agents because of a Claim lndernnifted by City under this 
Section, at its sole option, City ma-y elect to defend the Claim by attorneys in City's Office of the 
City Attorney, by other at torneys selected by City, or both. City will have the right to control the 
defense and to determine the settlement or compromise of any action or proceeding provided 
that Landlord will have the right, but not the obligation, to patiicipate ill the defense of the Claim 
at its sole cost. City's obligations under this Secti o11 wi ll survive the tem1ination of the: Lease. 

16.2 Landlord's Indemnity 

Landlord v·ill Indemnify City and its Agents against any and all Claims in1..,u1Ted as a 
result of (a) any default by Landlord in the performance of any of its obligations under this Lease 
or any breach of any representations or watTanties made by Landlord under this Lease, or (b) any 
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willful misconduct or negligent acts or omissions of Landlord or its Agents in, on, or about the 
Premises or the Property; provided, however, Landlord will not be obligated to Indemnify City 
or its Agents to the extent any Claim mises out of the acts or omissions of City or its Agents or 
[nvitees . [n any action or proceeding brought against City or its Agents because of a Claim 
Indemnified by Landlord under this Section, at its sole option, Landlord may elect to defend the 
Claim by attomeys selected by Landlord. Landlord will have the right to control tbe defense and 
to determine the settlement or compromise of any action or proceeding provided that City will 
have tbe right, but not the obligation, to participate in the defense of any Claim at its sole cost. 
Landlord's obligations under this Section v.(ill survive the termination of this Lease. 

17. INSURANCE 

17.1 City's Self-Insurance 

Landlord acknowledges that City maintains a program of self-insurance and City is not 
be required to cruTy any insurance with respect to this Lease. City assumes the risk of damage to 
any of City's Personal Property, except for damage caused by Landlord or its Agents. 

17.2 Landlord's Insurance 

(a) At all times duting the Tenn, Landlord will keep the Building insured 
against damage and destruction by fire, vandalism malicious mischief sprinkler danu1ge . 
(include earthquake sprinkler leakage) and other perils customarily covered under a cause of 
loss-special fom1 property insurance policy in an amount equal to one hum.ired percent ( 100%) of 
the fut! insurance !'eplacement \/illue (replncement cost new, including debris removal an<l 
demolition) . Upon City' s request Landlord will provide to City a certificate of insurance issued 
by the insurance carrier, evidencing the required insurance. The certificate must expressly 
provide that the policy is not cancelable or subject to reduction of coverage or otherwise subject 
to 111orlification except after thirty (30) <lays ' prior w1itten notice to City (or, if the insurer refuses 
to provide notice to the City then Landlord will provide ~uch fhirty (30)-day prior notice to 
City). Landlord waives any rights against City for loss or damage to the Premises or any other 
part of the Prope1ty to the extent covered by Landlord's property insurance. 

(b) ln addition at no cost to City, Landlord will procure and keep in effecL at 
all times during the Tenn in urance as follows: (i) commercial general liabili ty insurance with 
limits not less than One Million Dollars($ 1,000,000) each occurrence corobi.ned single I imit for 
bodily injury and prope1iy damage, including contractual liability, independent contractors, 
broad-fom1 property damage fire damage legal liability (of not less than Fifty Thousand Dollars 
(SS0,000)), personal injury, products and completed operations, and explosion, collapse, and 
underground (XCU); and (ii) worker's compensation insurance in the amounts required by 
applicable Laws and employer s liability with limits not less than One Million Dollars 
($1~000,000) each accident. All insurance policies required by this Lease to be maintained by 
Landlord must be endorsed to provide for thirty (30) days· prior written notice of cancellation for 
any reason, intended non-renewal, or reduction in coverage to Landlord and Cit, (or, if such 
endorsement is not available from the insurer, Landlord will provide such notice to City). 

17.3 Waiver of Subrogation 

Notv,1ithstanding anything to the contrary in this Lease, Landlord waives any right of 
recovery against City for any loss or damage relating to the Building or the Premises or any 
operations or c ntents in the Building whether or not the loss is caused by City's fault or 
negligence, to the extent the loss or damage is covered by Landlord insurance that is required 
under this Leas.:.: or nny excess t:overage otherwise held by Landlord or its Agents. Landlord will 
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obtain a waiver of subrogation endorsement from applicable insurance carriers issuing policies 
relating to the Building or the Premises, but Landlord's failure to do so will not affect the above 
waiver. 

18. ACCESS BY LANDLORD 

Landlord reserves for itself and any of its designated Agents the right 1o enter the 
Premises at all reasonable times and, except in cases of emergency (in which event Landlord will 
give any reasonable notice), after giving City at least twenty four (24) hours ' advance written 
notice, to (a) inspect the Premises, (b) supply any service to be provided by Landlord under this 
Lease, {c) show the Premises to any prospective purchasers, mortgagees or, dwi ng the la5t six (6) 
months of the Tenn, tenants, (d) post notices of non-responsibility, and (e) alter, improve, or 
repair the Premises and any portion of the Building, and, for that purpose, Landlord may erect, 
use and maintain necessary structures in and through the Premises where reasonably required by 
the work to be performed, provided that U1e entrance to the Premises may not be blocked. 
Landlord may not interfere with City's use of the Premises. 

19. ESTOPPEL CERTIFICATES 

From time to time during the Term, by not less than thi1iy (30) days ' prior written notice 
to the other party, either party may request the other party to execute, acknowledge, and deliver 
to the persons or entities designated by the other party a certificate stating: (a) the 
Commencement Date and Expiration Date of this Lease, (b) that this Lease is unmodified and in 
full force and effect (cir, if there have been modifications, this the Lease is in ful l force and effect 
as modified and stating the modifications), (c) that there are no defaults under t1ris Lease (or if 
so, specifying the same) and (d) the date to which Rent has been paid. 

20. SURRENDER OF PREMISES 

On the expiration or sooner termination of this Lease, City will surrender the Premises to 
Landlord in its CmTent Condition, excepting reasonable use and wear and damage by fire or 
other casualty or condemnation. Within ten ( 10) days after the Expiration Date, City will 
remove from the Premises all of City's Personal Property and any Alterations City desires or is 
required to remove from the Premises under the provisions of Section 7. l (A lterations by City). 
City will repair (or at City's option) pay to Landlord the cost of repairing any damage to the 
Premises or the Building resulting rom that removal or City's use of the Building under the 
Lease. City's obligations under this Section will survive the expiration or earlier tcnnination of 
this Lease. 

In order to document the condition of the Premises at the start and at the end of the Term 
(at the end, fo llowing City s removal of Personal Property and any Alternations), Landlord and 
Tenant agree ro conduct a walk-through at a muh1ally agreeable ti.roe but tn no event later than 3 
days fo ll owing the request of either party with representatives of both Landlord and City 
present. The parties may docwnent the condition with video photographs and/or 0th.er evidence 
or w1itten materials that describe and document any issues relative to the condition of the 
Property. If Landlord believes that City must make any repairs to the Premi8es upon the 
expiration or termination of this Lease, Landlord shall notify City of such rCJ)airs with in thirty 
(30) days fo llowing the Lease expiration or tennination, together with reasonable backup 
documentation to show that City caused the damage that Landlord believes City should repair 
(the "Premises Repait· Notice ). To the extent there is any dispute regarding the condition of 
the Premises, the pa1iics agree to meet and confer in good faith for a pe1iod o f not less than 30 
days following Land lord's delivery of the Premises Repair 1 otice. As to those repairs contai ned 
in the Premises Repair Notice that the parties agree are the responsibility of the City, then City 
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will repair (or at City's option) pay to Landlord the cost of repairing any damage to the Premises 
or the Building. The repair period shall not be construed as a holdover of the City's occupancy 
of the Premises. 

21. HAZARDOUS MATERIALS 

21.1 Definitions 

As used in this Lease, the following terms are defined below: 

"Environmental Laws" means any Law relating to industrial hygiene, environmental 
conditions, or Hazardous Material, whether now in effect or later adopted. 

"Hazardous Material" means any material that, because of its quantity, concentration, 
or physical or chemical characteristics, is deemed by any federal, state, or local govenunental 
authority to pose a present or potential hazard to human health or safety or to the environment. 
Hazardous Material includes any material or substance defined as a "hazardous substance," or 
"pollutant" or "contaminant" under the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation 
and Liability Act of 1980 ("CERCLA", also commonly known as the Superfund Jaw), as 
amended (42 U.S.C. Section 9601 et seq.), or under California Health & Safety Code 
Section 25316; any "hazardous waste" listed under California Health & Safety Code 
Section 25140; any asbestos and asbestos containing materials whether or not those materials are 
prut of the stiucture ofU1e BuildiHg or an::: uatwally uccuniug substam.:es on 01 about the 
Property; and petroleum, including crude oil or any fraction thereof, natural gas, or natural gas 
li(l\110~. 

"Release" when used with respect to Hazardous Material includes any actual or imminent 
spiHing, leaking, pumping, pou1ing, emitting, emptying, discharging, injecting, escaping, 
leaching, dumping, or disposing into or inside the Building, or in, on, under, or about the 
Property. 

21.2 Landlord's Representations and Covenants 

Landlord represents and warrants to City that the following statements are true and 
correct and will be true and correct as of the Commencement Date: (a) the Property is not in 
violation of any Environmental Laws; (b) the Property is 11ot now, and has not been, used for the 
manufacture use, storage discharge, deposit transportation, or di sposal of any Hazardous 
Material, except for the use of Hazardous Material in limited quantities as are customarily used 
in offices, which limited use is and has been in compliance with Environmental La\.vs; (c) the 
Property does not consist of any landtill or contain any underground storage tanks; (d) the 
Building does not contain any asbestos-containing materials or have building mate1ials that 
contain any other Hazardous Material, and the Premises or the common areas of the Building do 
not contain any lead-based paints; (e) there is and has been no Release of any Hazardous 
Material in the Building or in, on, under or about the Property; and (f) the Property is not subject 
to any claim by any governmental regulatory agency OT third party related to the Release of any 
Hazardous Material, and there is no inquiry by any governmental agency (including the 
California Department of Toxic Substances Control or the Regional Water Quality Control 
Board) with respect to the presence of Hazardous Material in the Building or in, on, under, or 
about the Property, or the migration of Hazardous Material from or to other real property. 
Subject to City's obligations under this Section below, Landlord will maintain the Property 
throughout the Tenn in compliance with all Environmental Lmvs that could affect the health, 
safety, and welfare of City's employees or City's use, occupancy, or enjoyment of the Premises 
for their intended purposes. 
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21.3 Landlord's Environmental Indemnity 

Without limiting Landlord's Indemnity in Section 16.2 (Landlord's Indemnity), Landlord 
will [ndentni fy City and its Agents against any and all Claims arisi11g during or after the Tenn 
(a) as a result of any breach of any of Landlord' s representations, wa1Tanties, or covenants in the 
preceding Section, or (b) in connection with any presence or Release o f Hazardous Material in 
the Building or on under, or about the Pro perty, unless City or its Agents caused the Release. 

21.4 City's Covenants 

Neither City nor its Agents or Invitees will cause any Hazardous Material to be brought 
on, kept, used, stored, generated, or disposed of in, on or about the Premises or the Property, or 
transported to or from the Premises or the Property, in violation of any Environmental Laws. 

21.5 City's Environmental Indemnity 

If City breaches its obligations contained in the preceding Section 21.4 (City's 
Covenants), or if City or its Agents cause the Release of Hazardous Material from, in, on, or 
about the Premises or the Prope11y, then City will Indemnify Landlord against any and all Claims 
arising during or after the Term as a result of the Release, except to the extent Landlord or its 
Agents is responsible for the Release. The foregoing Indemnity will not include any Claims 
resulting from the non-negligent aggravation by City, its Agents, or Invitees of physical 
conditions of the Premises, or other parts of the Property, existing before City's occupancy. 

22. Intentionally Omitted 

23. CITY PROVISIONS 

23.1 MacBride Principles - Northern Ireland 

The provisions of San Francisco Administrative Code Section 12F are incorporated into 
this Lease by this reference and made part of this Lease. Landlord confinns that Landlord has 
read and understood that City urges companies doing business in Nmthem Ireland to resolve 
employment inequities and to abide by the MacBride Principles, and urges San Francisco 
companies to do business with corporations that abide by the MacBride Principles. 

23.2 Controller's Certification of Funds 

The terms of this Lease are governed by and subject to the budgetary and fiscal 
provisions of City's Chatter. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Lease, 
there will be no obligation for the payment or expenditure or money by City under th is Lease 
unless the Controller of the City and County of San Francisco ~rst certifies, under Section 3. 105 
of City's Charter, that there .i_ a val.i d appropriation from which the expenditure may be made 
and that unencumbered funds are available from the appropriation to pay the expenditure. 
Without limiting the foregoing, if in any fiscal year of City after the fiscal year in which the 
Term of this Lease commences, sufficient funds for the payment of Rent are not approp1iated, 
then City m ay terminate this Lease, without penalty liability, or expense of any kind to City, as 
of the last date on which sufficient funds are appropriated. City will use its reasonable efforts to 
give Landlord reasonable advance notice of the termination. 
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23.3 Prevailing Wages and Working Conditions 

Any undefined, initially-capitalized tenn used in this Section has the meaning given to 
that term in San Francisco Administrative Code section 23.61. Landlord will require its 
Contractors and Subcontractors performing (i) labor in the construction of a "public work" as 
defined in California Labor Code Section 1720 et seq. (which includes certain construction. 
alteration, maintenance, demolition, installation, repair, carpet laying, or refuse hauling if paid 
for in whole or part out of pub I ic funds), or (ii) Covered Construction at the Premises to (A) pay 
workers performing the work nol less than the Prevailing Rate of Wages, (B) provide the same 
hours, working conditions, and benefits as in each case are provided for similar work performed 
in San Francisco County, and (C) employ Apprentices in accordance with San Francisco 
Administrative Code Section 23.61 (collectively, "Prevailing Wage Requirements"). Landlord 
will cooperate with City in any action or proceeding against a Contractor or Subcontractor that 
fails to comply with the Prevailing Wage Requirements. 

Landlord will include, and require its Contractors and Subcontractors (regardless of tier) 
to include, the Prevailing Wage Requirements and the agreement to cooperate in City 
enforcement actions in any Construction Contract with specific reference to San Francisco 
Administrative Code Section 23.6 l. Each Construction Contract must name the City and County 
of San Francisco, affected workers, and employee organizations formally representing affected 
workers as third party beneficiari es for the limited purpose of enforcing the Prevai.ling Wage 
Requirements, including the right to file charges and seek penalties against any Contractor or 
Subcontractor in accordance with San Francisco Administrative Code Section 23.61. Landlord's 
failure to comply with its obligations under this Section will constitute a material breach of this 
Lt:asc.:. A ConLractor's or Subcontra<.: Lor's failure Lu comply with this Section will enable City to 
seek the remedies specified in San Francisco Administrative Code Section 23 .61 against the 
hreaching party. 

23.4 Non Discrimination in City Contracts and Benefits Ordinance 

(a) Covenant Not to Discriminate 

In the perfo1mance of this Lease, Landlord will not to discriminate against any 
employee of Landlord, any City employee working with Land.lord, any applicant for employmen t 
with Landlord, or against any person seeking accommodations, advantages, facilities, privileges 
services, or membership in all business, social, or other establishments or organizations on the 
basis of the fact or perception of a person's race, color, creed, religion, national origin, ancestry, 
age, height, weight, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, domestic partner status, marital 
status, disability or Acquired Immune Deficiency Syndrome or HIV status (AIDS/HIV status), or 
association with members of those protected classes, or in retaliation for opposition to 
discrimination against those classes. 

(b) Subcontracts 

Landlord will include in all subcontracts relating to the Premises a non­
discrimination clause appli cable to the subcontractor in substantially the fom1 of subsection (a) 
above. Ln add ition, Landlord will incorporate by reference in all subcontracts the provisions of 
San Francisco Administrative Code Sections 12B.2(a), 12B.2(c)-(k), and 12C.3 and require all 
subcontractors to comply with those provisions. Landlord's failure to comply with the 
obligations in this subsection will constitute a material breach of this Lease. 

(c) Non-Discrimination in Benefits 
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Landlord does not as of the date of this Lease, and will not during the Tenn, in 
any of its operations in San Francisco, on real property owned by City or where the work is 
being performed for City or elsewhere within the United States, discriminate in the provision of 
bereavement leave, family medical leave, health benefits, membership or membership discounts , 
moving expenses, pension and retirement benefits, or travel benefits, as well as any benefits 
other than the benefits specified above, between employees with domestic paitners and 
employees with spouses, and/or between the domestic partners and spouses of the employees, 
where the domestic partnership has been registered with a governmental entity under state or 
local law authorizing that registration, subject to the conditions set forth in San Francisco 
Administrative Code Section 12B.2(b). 

(d) CMD Form 

As a condition to this Lease, Landlord will execute the "Chapter l2B Declaration: 
Nondiscrimination in Contracts and Benefits" fom1 (Form CMD-128-101) with supporting 
documentation and secure the approval of the form by the San Francisco Contract Monitoring 
Division (the' Ci\rlD"). Lafldlord represents that before execution of the Lease: (i) Landlord 
executed and submitted to the CMD Form CMD-12B-101 with supporting documentation, and 
(ii) the CMD approved the form. 

(e) Incorporation of Administrative Code Provisions by Reference 

The provisions of San Francisco Administrative Code Chapters 12B and 12C 
relating to non-discrimination by parties contracting for the lease of property to City are 
incorporated into this Section by reference and made a part of this Lease as though fully set 
forth . Landlord will comply fully with and be bound by all of the provisions that apply to this 
Lease under Administrative Code Chapters 12B and l 2C1 Lncluding the remedies provided in 
those Chapters . Without limiting the foregoing, Landlord understands that under San Francisco 
Administra tive Code Section 12B.2(h) a penalty of Fifty Dollars ($50) for each person for each 
calendar day during which that person was discriminated against in violation of the provisions of 
this Lease may be assessed against Landlord and/or d ·ducted from any payments due Landlord. 

23.5 Intentionally Omitted 

23.6 Intentionally Omitted 

23.7 Intentionally Omitted 

23.8 Sunshine Ordinance 

In accordance with San Francisco Administrative Code Section 67.24(e), contracts, 
contractors' bids, leases, agreements, responses to Requests for Proposal', and all other records 
of communications between City and persons or firms seeking co11tracts will be open to 
inspection immediately after a cont·act has been awarded. Nothing in this provisio11 requires the 
disclosure of a private person s or organization s net worth or other proprietary financial data 
submitted for qual ifi cation for a contract lease, agreement, or other benefit until and unless that 
person or organization is awarded the contract, lease, agreement or benefit. Infonnation 
provided that is covered by th.is Section will be made available to the public on request. 

23.9 Conflicts of Interest 

Through its execution of this Lease, Landlord acknowledges that it is fami liar with the 
provisions of City's Campaign and Governmental Conduct Code Article III, Chapter 2 and 
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California Government Code Section 87100 et seg . and Section l 090 et seq., and certifies that it 
does not know of any facts that would constitute a violation of those provisions. [f Landlord 
becomes aware of any such fact during the Tenn of this Lease, Landlord will immediately notify 
City. 

23.10 Notification of Prohibition on Contributions 

By executing this Lease, Landlord acknowledges its obligations under Sect.ion l . 126 of 
the City's Campaign and Governmental Conduct Code, which prohibits any person who leases, 
or seeks to lease, to or from any department of the City any land or building from making any 
campaign contribution to (a) a City elected official if the lease must be approved by that official, 
(b) a candidate for that City elective office, or (c) a committee controlled by that elected official 
or a candidate for that office, at any time from the submission of a proposal for the lease until the 
later of either the termination of negotiations for the lease or twelve (12) months after the date 
the City approves the lease. Landlord acknowledges that the foregoing restriction applies only if 
the lease or a combination or se1ies ofleases or other contracts approved by the same individual 
or board in a fiscal year have a total anticipated or actual value of one hundred thousand dollars 
(S 100,000) or more. Landlord further acknowledges that (i) the prohibition on conh·ibutions 
applies to each prospective patty to the lease; any person with an ownership interest of more than 
10 percent ( 10%) in Landlord· any subcontractor listed in the lease; and any committee that is 
sponsored or controlled by Landlord; and (ii) within thirty (30) days of the submission of a 
proposal for the Lease, the CiLy depa1tment with whom Landlord is leasing is obligated to submit 
to the Ethics Commission the parties to the lease and any subcontractor. Additionally, Landlord 
certifies that it has infonned each such person of the limitation on contributions imposed by 
Section 1.126 by the time it submitted a proposal for the lease, and has provi<le<l the uames of the 
persons required to be informed to the City depmtment with whom it is leasing. 

23.11 Preservative-Treated Wood Containing Arsenic 

Landlord may aotpurchase preservative-treated wood products containing arsenic in the 
pcrf01mance of this Lease unless an ex.emption from the requirements of Environment Code 
Chapter 13 is obtained from the Department of Environment under Environment Code 
Section 1304. The tem1 "preservative-treated wood containing arsenic" means \vood treated 
with a preservative that contains arsenic, elemental arsenic, or an arsenic copper combination, 
including chromated copper arsenate preservative, ammoniac copper zinc arsenate preservative, 
or ammoniacal copper arsenate preservative. Landlord may purchas.e preservative-treated wood 
products on the list of environmentally preferable alternatives prepared and adopted by the 
Department of Environment. This provision does not preclude Landlord from purchasing 
preservative-treated wood containing arsenic for saltwater immersion. The tenn "sat hvater 
immersion'' means a pressure-treated wood that is used for construction purposes or facilities 
that are partially or totally immersed in saltwater. 

24. GENERAL PROVISIONS 

24.1 Notices 

Except as otherwise specifically provided in this Lease, any notice given under this Lease 
must be in writing and given by delive1ing the notice by email (sent during normal business 
hours (Monday through Friday, 9:00 am - 5:00 pm, ex.eluding City holidays; if email is sent after 
normal business hours by either party, the notice will be deemed sent at 9 :00 am the next 
business day) or in person or by commercial courier, or by sending it by first-class mail, certified 
mail, return receipt requested, or Express Mail, return receipt requested, with postage prepa id to: 
(a) City at City's address set fo1ih in the Basic Lease lnfom1ation ; or (b) Landlord at Landlord's 
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address set forth in the Basic Lease Information; or (c) any other address designated by as either 
Landlord or City as its new address for notices by notice given to the other in accordance with 
this Section. A properly addressed notice transmitted by one of the foregoing methods will be 
deemed received upon confirmed delivery, attempted delivery, or rejected delivery. Notices may 
also be given by email to the email address number set forth in the Basic Lease [nforn1ation or 
any other email address as may be provided from time to time, provided the sender concurrently 
sends notice by one of the other specified means, in which event notice shall be deemed given 
when the email is sent. 

24.2 No Implied Waiver 

No failure by either paity to insist on the st1ict perfom1ance of any obligation of the other 
party under this Lease or to exercise any right, power, or remedy after a breach of this Lease will 
constitute a waiver of any breach or of tenn, covenant, or condition. No acceptance of full or 
pai1ial Rent by Landlord while City is in default will constitute a waiver of the default by 
Landlord. No express written waiver of any default or the performance of any provision if this 
Lease will affect any other default or performance, or cover any other period of time, other than 
the default, performance, or time specified in the express waiver. One or more written waivers 
of a default or the performance of any provision of this Lease will not be deemed to be a waiver 
of a subsequent default or performance. The consent of Landlord or City given in one instance 
under the tenns of this Lease will not relieve the other party of any obligation to secure the 
consent to any other or future instance under the terms of the Lease. 

24.3 Amendments 

The terms and provisions of this Lease may only be changed waived, discharged or 
terminated by a written instrument signed by both parties. No wai ver of any breach will affect or 
alter this Lease, and each and every term, covenant, and condition of this Lease will continue in 
full force and effect with respect to any other then-existing or subsequent breach. Whenever this 
Lease requires or permits City's consent or approval, the Director of-Property, or his or her 
designee, will be authorized to provide the consent or approval, except as otherwise provided by 
applicable Law, including the Charter of the City and County of San Francisco. City's 
agreement to any amendments or modifications to this Lease (including the exhibits) may be 
made on the sole approval of the Director of Property, or his or her designee; provided, however, 
materia l amendments or modi ft cations to this Lease (a) changing the legal description of the 
Premises, (b) increasing the Term, (c) increasing the Rent (d) changing the general use of the 
Premises from the use authorized under Section 5.1 (Pe,mitted Use) , and (e) any oilier 
amendment or modification that materially increases City's liabilities or financial obligations 
under this Lease will also require the approval of City's Board of Supervisors. 

24.4 Authority 

Landlord represents and warrants to City that it is the sole owner of the Property and the 
execution and deli very of this Lease by Landlord does not violate any provision of any 
agreement or m1y app licable Laws. If Landlord is a corporation, limited liability company or a 
partnership, each person executing this Lease on behalf of Landlord, by their signature 
co . eoanL and \.varrants that Lartd!ord is a duly mtthorized and ex.isting entity that Landlord is 
qualified lo do business ln California, that Landlord has the full right and authority to enter into 
this Lease, and that each person signing on behalf of Landlord is authorized to do so. On City's 
request, Landlord will provide City with evidenee (easonably satisfactory to City confirming 
these representations and warranties. 

24.5 Parties and Their Agents; Approvals 
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If applicable, the word "Landlord" will include the plural as well as the singular. The 
tenn "Agents" when used with respect to either party includes the agents, employees, officers, 
and contractors of the party, and the te1m "Invitees" when used with respect to City will include 
the clients, customers, in vi tees, guests, licensees, assignees, or subtenants of City including, 
without limitation, those parties described in Section 5.1 who are being provided services. All 
approvals, consents, or other detenninations permitted or required by City under this Lease, 
including City' s exercise of any option, must be made by or through City's Director of Property 
unless otherwise provided in this Lease, subject to any applicable limitations in City' s Charter. 
If there is more than one entity that comprises Landlord, the obligations and liabilities under this 
Lease imposed on Landlord are joint and several. 

24.6 Interpretation of Lease 

The captions preceding the articles and sections of this Lease and in the table of contents 
have been inserted for convenience of reference only and will in no way define or limit the scope 
or intent of any provision of this Lease. Except as otherwise specifically provided in this Lease, 
wherever Landlord or City is required or requested to give its consent or approval to any matter 
or action by the other, the consent or approval will not be unreasonably wi thheld or delayed and 
the reasons for disapproval of consent will be stated in reasonable detail in writing. Provisions in 
this Lease relating to number of days will be calendar days, unless otherwise specified. If the 
last day of any period to give notice, reply to a notice, or to take any other action occurs on a 
Saturday, Sunday, or a bank or City holiday, then the last day for taking the action or giving or 
replying to the notice will be the next succeedin g business day. The words "include" or 
"including · or simiJar words will not be construed to limit any general term, statement, or other 
math::1· in ll1is Lt:ast: or any of its allauh ~d ex.bibi ls, whdhc::r m_-n~L la.11guag~ of 11011-limi Lat ion, 
guch ag "without limitation" or eimilar worde, are uged. 

24.7 Successors and Assigns 

Subject to the provisions of Section 14 (Assignment and Subletting), the tern1s, 
covenants, and conditions contained in this Lease will bind and inure to the benefit of Landlord 
and City and, except as otherwise provided in this Lease, their personal representatives and 
successors and assigns. There are no third-p,u-ty beneficiaries to this Lease. 

24.8 Brokers 

Except for Landlord ' s broker Steven A. Anderson, neither party has had any contact or 
dealings or communications regarding leasing the Premises through any licensed real estate 
broker or other person who could claim a right to a commission or finder ' s fee in connection 
with the lease of the Premises, except for the broker, if any, identified in the Basic Lease 
Information. That broker's commission is Landlord's sole responsibility under a separate written 
agreement between Landlord and the broker, and City has no liability for that commission. If 
any other broker or finder perfects a claim for a commission or finder's fee based on any contact, 
dealings, or communication, the party through ,.vhom the broker or finder makes his claim will 
be responsible for the commission or fee and will Indemnify the other party from any and all 
Claims incutTed by the indemnified party. The provisions of this Section will survive any 
termination of this Lease. 

24.9 Severability 

If any provision of this Lease or it application to any person, entity, or circumstance is 
found to be invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of this Lease, or the application of the 
provision to persons, entities, or circumstances other than those as to which it is invalid or 
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unenforceable, will not be affected by that finding, and each other provision of this Lease will be 
valid and be enforceable to the full extent pe1mitted by Law, except to the extent that 
enforcement of this Lease without the invalidated provision would be umeasonable or 
inequitable under all the circumstances or would frustrate a fundamental purpose of this Lease. 

24.10 Governing Law 

This Lease will be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of 
California and City s Charter. Any legal suit, action, or proceeding arising out of or relating to 
this Lease shall be instituted in the Superior Court for the City and County of San Francisco, and 
each party agrees to the exclusive ju1isdiction of such court in any such sui t, action, or 
proceeding (excluding bankruptcy matters). The parties irrevocably and unconditionally waive 
any objecti0n to the laying of venue of any suit, action, or proceeding in suc:h court and 
irrevocab ly waive and agree not to plead or claim that any suit, action, or proceeding brought in 
San Francisco Superior Court relating to this Lease has been brought in an inconvenient forum. 
The Patties also unconditionally and irrevocably waive any right to remove any such suit, action 
or proceeding to Federal Court. 

24.11 Entire Agreement; Incorporation of Exhibits 

The pa1t:ies intend that this Lease (including all of the attached exhibits, which are made a 
part of this Lease by this reference) are the fina l expression of their agreement with respect to the 
lease of the Premises and may not be contradicted by evidence of any prior or contemporaneous 
written or oral agreements or understandings. The pruties further intend that this Lease will 
constitute the complete and exclusive statement of its tem1s and that no extrinsic evidence 
whatsoever (including prior drafts and changes) may be introduced in any judicial, 
administrative, or other legal proceeding involving this Lease. 

24.12 Holding Over 

If City holds over in possession of the Premises after the expiration of the Term with 
Landlord's consent, that holding over will not b: deemed to extend the Term or renew this 
Lease, and City' s tenancy will continue as a month-to-month tenar1cy until the tenancy is 
terminated by either party by giving least thi1ty (30) days' prim written notice of tenrunation. 
The month-to-month tenancy will be on al l tne Lenns and conditions of this Lease and at the 
monthly Base Rent in effect during the last month of the Term or as Landlord and City may 
mutually agree in writing. If City holds over without Landlord's consent, the rent payable by 
City during the period of holding over will be one hundred ten percent ( I l 0%) of the monthly 
Base Rent in effect during the last month of the Tenn of this Lease, and the tenancy will 
otherwise be on the terms and conditions contained in this Lease. 

24.13 Cumulative Remedies 

All rights and remedies of either party set forth in this Lease are cumulative, except as 
otherwise specifically provided in this Lease. 

24.14 Time of Essence 

Time is of the essence for all provisions of this Lease. 

24.15 Survival of Indemnities 
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Tennination of this Lease will not affect the right of either party to enforce any 
indemnities and representations and wan-antics given or made to the other party, and it will not 
affect any provision of this Lease that expressly states it will survive termination. With respect 
to each of the indemnities contained in this Lease, the indemnitor has an immediate and 
independent obligation to defend the indemnitees from any claim that actually or potentially falls 
within the indemnity provision even if the claim is or may be groundless, fraudulent, or false, 
and the obligation to defend arises at the time the claim is tendered to the indemnitor by the 
indemnitee and continues at all times until resolved. 

24.16 Signs 

City may erect or post exterior signs on or about the Premises with Landlord's prior 
approval. Landlord reserves the right to review and approve the placement, design, and plan for 
before erecting or posting any sign, which review and approval will not be unreasonably 
withheld or delayed. Interior signs not visible from the exte1ior of the Premises are pennitted as 
provided under Arlicle 7 (Alterations). 

24.17 Quiet Enjoyment and Title 

Landlord covenants and represents that it has full right, power, and authority to grant the 
leasehold estate as provided in this Lease, and covenants that City, on paying the Rent and 
performing the covenants contained in this Lease, will peaceably and quietly have, hold, and 
enjoy the Premises and all related rights during the Term as against all persons or ~ntities or on 
account of any action, inaction, or agreement of Landlord or its A.gents. With.out limiting the 
prov1s1ons of ~cctton 16.2 (Landlord's Indemnity), Landlord will lndemnify City ond its Agents 
against Claims atising out of any assertion that would interfere with City's right to quiet 
enjoyment as provided in this Section. 

24.18 Bankruptcy 

Landlord represents and warrants to City that Landlord has neither filed nor been the 
subject of any filing of a petition under the federal bankruptcy law or any federal or state 
insolvency laws or laws for composition of indebtedness or for the reorganization of debtors, 
and, to ihe best of Landlord's knowledge, no such filing is threatened. City's leasehold estate 
under this Lease includes all rights to receive and enjoy all services, facilities, and amenities of 
the Premises and the Building as provided in this Lease. If any of the services, facilities, or 
amenities are terminated, or materially limited or restricted because of any such case or 
proceeding, or for any other reason, City may (a) contract directly with any third-party provider 
of those services, facilities, or amenities, and (b) offset against the Rent all reasonable costs and 
expenses incurred by City in obtaining those services, facilities, or amenities. 

24.19 Transfer of Landlord's Interest 

Landlord may transfer its interest in the Property, the Building, or this Lease to any other 
financially responsible person or entity. If Landlord transfers its interest in the PropeLiy, the 
Building, or this Lease to another other financially responsible person or entity, then Landlord 
will be relieved of Landlord's obligations under this Lease accruing from and after the date of 
the transfer when (a) Landlord has provided notice to City of the name and address of Landlord's 
successor, (b) Landlord has provided City with supporting documentation reasonably acceptable 
to City demonstrating the transferee's financial ability to assume this obligations transferred to it 
by Landlord, (c) Landlord has transferred the Security Deposit to the transfcree0 and (d) 
Landlord has delivered to City an express written assumption by the trans foree of al I of 
Landlord's obligations under this Lease. 
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24.20 Non-Liability of City Officials, Employees, and Agents 

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Lease, no elected or appointed board, 
commission, member, officer, empl.oyee, or other Agent of City will be personally liable to 
Landlord, its successors, or its assigns for any City defaul t or breach or for any amount that may 
become due to Landlord or its successors or assigns, or for any obligation of City under this 
Lease. 

24.21 Counterparts 

This Lease may be executed in two or more counterparts, each of which will be deemed 
an original, but all of which taken together will constitute one and the same instrument. 

24.22 Effective Date 

This Lease \.Vill become effective on the date (the "Effecti-ve Date') that this Lease is 
duly executed by Landlord and City as authorized by the Emergency Declaration (Exhibit C). 

24.23 Certification by Landlord 

By executing this Lease, Landlord certifies that neither Landlord nor any of its officers or 
members have been suspended, disciplined, or disbam;:d by, or prohibited from contracting with, 
any federal, state, or local governmental agency. If Landlord or any of its officers or members 
have been suspended, disbarred, disciplined, or prohibited from contracting with any 
governmental agency, it will immediately notify City of that fact and the reasons for the 
suspension, disbarment discipline, or prohibition together witb any relevant facts or infonnation 
requested by City. Tf there is any suspension. disbam1ent, discipline, or prohibition that may 
result in the termination or suspension of this Lease, City may terminate this Lease on W1itten 
notice to Landlord. Landlord acknowledges that this certification is a material tenn of this 
Lease. 

24.24 Intentionally Omitted 

24.25 Intentionally Omitted 

24.26 Cooperative Drafting 

This Lease bas been drafted through a cooperative effort of both parties, ,md both parties 
have had an opportunity to have the Lease reviewed and revised by legal Land lord. No party 
will be considered the drafter of this Lease and no presumption or rule that an ambiguity will be 
construed against the party drafting the clause will apply to the interpretation or enforcement of 
this Lease. 

24.27 Contractor Vaccination Requirements 

Landlord shall comply with the requirements of the 38th Supplement to Mayoral 
Proclamation Declaring the Existence of a Local Emergency dated February 25, 2020, and the 
Contractor Vaccination Policy for City Contractors issued by the City Administrator 
("Contractor Vaccination Policy"), as those documents may be amended from time to time. The 
requirements stated in the Contractor Vaccination Policy are material terms and conditions of 
this Lease, which include but are not limited to, the following: 
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(a) Landlord shall identify its Covered Employees who are or will be perfonning 
Work or Services under this Lease, and shall infonn them of the COVID-19 vaccination 
requirements stated in the City's Contractor Vaccination Policy and the Emergency Declaration. 

(b) Landlord shall maintain a list of its Covered Employees by name and position, 
which list shall not include the employees' vaccination status. Landlord shall update the list as 
needed to show all current Covered Employees, and Landlord shall provide that list to the City 
on request. 

(c) Landlord shall be responsible for detern1ining the vaccination status of any 
Covered Employees working under this Lease, including any subcontractors working for 
Landlord . Landlord shall ensure that its covered subcontractors submit required information to 
the Landlord respecting their compliance with the Contractor Vaccination Policy. 

(d) In conjunction with this Lease, Landlord has submitted to the City the Attestation 
Form confinning its compliance with the Contractor Vaccination Policy. 

(e) Attachment A to the Attestation Form: 

(i) If Landlord has previously submitted Attachment A to the Attestation 
Form identifying Covered Employee for whom the Landlord has granted a medical or religious 
vaccination exemption, Landlord shall ensure the fonn is continuously updated with the names 
of newly identified exempt Covered Employees and that such updates are promptly provided to 
City. 

(ii) lf Landlord has not previously submitted Attachment A to the Attestation 
Form identifying Covered Empk>yec for whom the Landlord has granted a medical or religious 
vaccination exemption but does so after contract execution, Landlord shall ensure the fom1 is 
continuously updated with the names of newly identified Exempt Covered Employees and that 
such updates are promptly provided to City. 

(iii) With respect to subsections (i) and (ii) above, Landlord shall first 
coordfr1ate with the City to confim, that the City can safely accommodate at its worksite any 
Covered Employee for whom the Landlord has granted a medical or religious vaccination 
exemption, which may include ensuring chat exempt employees who are accommodated comply 
with any required health and safety protocols. 

NOTWITHSTANDING ANYTHING TO THE CONTRARY CONTAINED IN THIS LEASE, LANDLORD 
ACKNOWLEDGES THAT NO OFFICER OR EMPLOYEE OF CITY HAS AUTHORITY TO COMMIT CITY TO 
THIS LEASE UNLESS CITY'S BOARD OF SUPERVISORS HAS DULY ADOPTED A RESOLUTION OR THE 
MAYOR ADOPTS AN EMERGENCY DECLARATION AUTHORIZING CONSUMMATION OF THE 
TRA.NSACTION CONTEMPLATED BY THIS LEASE. THEREFORE, ANY OBLIGATIONS OR LIABILITIES OF 
CITY UNDER THIS LEASE ARE CONTINGENT ON ADOPTION OF THAT RESOLUTION OR EMERGENCY 
DECLARATION , AND THIS LEASE WILL BE NULL AND VOID UNLESS CITY'S MAYOR AND BOARD OF 
SUPERVISORS ADOPT A RESOLUTION OR EMERGENCY DECLARATION AS SET FORTH ABOVE. 
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Landlord and City have executed this Lease as of the date first written above. 

LANDLORD: 

CITY: 

RECOMMENDED: 

Adriene Bechelli 
Deputy Director 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

DAVID CHIU, City Attorney 

By: 
@=:·;~ 

C5&16;:9!lC72F40E,, 

Charles Sullivan 
Deputy City Attorney 

[29106632.5 

1170 Market Street LLC, a California limited 
liability company 

By G;:~~~J;~'"" 
• 1)(;80~-=--.. --- - - --- -

Its: 
Manager 

By: - ---- ---- ----- ­

Its: 

CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO, 
a municipal corporation 

~OocuSigncc by: 

By: L=~"'""· ~~~---=,--- -----
ANDRICO Q. PENICK 
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EXHIBIT A 

Legal Description of Property/Floor Plans 

AVAILABLE NOW 

4,527 RSF I Lower Level 

SUITE FEATURES 

Full height office use ceiling 

• 5 Large multipurpose rooms 

• Showers 

STEV(N A AN:DCRSON CH~ RllE H. NHI 
STEY£.AN0ERS0N.AM Jll ,COM CH~RLIE H/\NhFIN4i'AM JLL COM 
LICENSE 10086931g LICENSE 11Jl996l21 

+-1 4J.! 395 7265 +l 415 395 4!H1 

Market Street (©))Jlt 

A-1 
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AVAILABLE NOW 

3,939 RSF !Ground Floor 

SUITE FEATURES 

7 Rooms 

Open area 

Separate Plaza entry (optional) 

High ceilings 

STCVEN A.. ANDCRSON CHA ALIE HANAFIN 

STEVE ANDERSON.Ahil Jll COM CHI\Rl\E HJ\Nfl.FIN@,\"1 JLL.COM 

LICENSE .-0086!ill89 LICE.NSE f0l95612l 

d 415 395 7265 H 415 395 OS!. 
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D 

L 
Market Street (©))JLt 
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1170 fY/ tA-r/rd S t:red 
I 

AVAILABLE NOW 
L_L_L_L 

4,734 RSF j2•d F Io o r 11111 

,++++-l 
SUITE FEATURES L_L_L_L_L __J 

• 4 Private offices r-1 1TTT l . Open area L_J ~_LJ__L_j . 111-! . Floorto ceiling arched windows DL_L_L_L _J 
"' N r-1 1111- "' a: 

~-1 r-+++-l z 
=> 

L_J L....L_L_L _J 

r-1 11111 

r-1 L+++ 
,J c=J EJ L_L_L J 

r-1 rTJT 
L_ J L J__ L I 

STCVCN A ANO CASON CltAJIU~ t1ANAri!~ 

STEVE AND£RS0Ni)AM JLL CO.I,( CHARLIE HANf\F IN.,U1 JLL.COM 

LICEN5E 1100&693.SIJ LICENSE 101996121 

-,.J •HS 393 1265 t-l 41.!I 395 051 

Market Street ((0))11[ 

A-3 
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AVAILABLE NOW 

4,734 RSF J3 ' d Floor 

SUITE FEATURES 

4 Large rooms 

2 Small offices 

STCV[N A. ANDERSON 

STEYE.,\NDERSONl)AM JLL COM CHl\~LIE H"NI\FJN(il/\M JLL.COM 

llCENSE 100869389 LICENSE ii'Ol!l9612l 

+l 415 39S 726S +L 415 395 ~951 

129106632.5 
A-4 

2593 

k-" 
I 

/ 

J 
l· . f----+---fr -,· - ~- - -

C 

M--""T"""--~ .--,( 

m 
N 
m a: 
z 
::, 

Market Street (@)Jl[ 
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AVAILABLE NOW 

4,734 RSF 14TH Floor 

SUITE FEATURES 

• 3 Large rooms 

• 4 Private offices 

• Open area 

STCV[~ ~ AIIQCRSOW i,,~, AH ~•••o~~•MJLLcoM 
UCENSE 'l'!'JOIJ61JJ&t 

+l 415 ~95 726.5 

129106632.5 

.:,,~jl;. J!. '1Ad., riN 
, 11,;jjL);; HMIAfl •eA M.J LL C·C~ 

LICENSE lf01996121 
H 415 395 ·051 

A-5 
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·~· . ·.J .. ::r 

.... 
' • 5 .... 

-. . 
~ :1- , ~ '~ " 

... : ...-:• --

5TH FLOOR 

A-6 
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1110 /¥/{)Vka S-trta 

i 
AVAILABLE NOW 

4,734 RSF 16TH F loo r 

_I 
SUITE FEATURES 

Excellent Natural Light 

1l 
. Efficient side-core and column free layout 
. 4 Large meeting rooms 

2 Private Offices "' N 

"' a: 
z 

F 
::> 

( ) 

. I 

ti 
·~"""""""",:::'~~.~~,,,,,,,,~-::!'~,:::/" 

STCYEH A- ANDERSON CHARLIE HANAFIN 
STEYE.ANDERS0N$AM.JLL COM CHI\RLIE.HANAFINIIAM Jll COM 
LICENSE ,ooasgJa ,9 LICENSE •OL9'612l 
.;. 1 415 39!5 1215 f-1 ·H.S :us 4951 

Market Street 
(@)JLt 

A-7 
129106632.5 
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AVAILABLE NOW 

4,966 RSF /7TH Floor 

SUITE FEATURES 

14 Rooms 

Private balconies 

Kitchenette 

Open area 

STCY[N A, ,UIDCRSON CHARLIE HAHI\FIN. 

STEVE.ANOE~SOH§JAM Jll.CO\f CHARLIE HA"41\FIU4M.M JLL.COM 

LICENSE fllOOl69389 U CENSE f01996121 

•l .415 395 1265 +1 •US 39.5 4951 

129106632.5 

.. 
// 

.~. ,-. _,{}·' 
,i====..:=== = ~'-="..-' 

Market Street (©))JL[ 

A-8 
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EXHIBIT B 

Notice of Commencement Date 

[Date) 

Mr. Andrico Q. Penick 
Director of Property 
Real Estate Division 
City and County of San Francisco 
25 Van Ness A venue, Suite 400 
San Francisco, California 94102 

RE: Acknowledgement of Commencement Date, Lease Between 1170 Market Street, 
LLC (Landlord), and the CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO 
(Tenant), for premises known as 1170 Market Street, San Francisco, CA 94102 

Dear Mr. Penick: 

This letter confirms that for all purposes of the Lease, the Commencement Date ( as 
defined in Section 3 .2 of the Lease) is , 2022. 

Please acknowledge your acceptance of this letter by signing and returning a copy of this 
ltttct. 

Accepted and Agreed: 

By: - ---------­
Andrico Q. Penick 
Director of Property 

Dated: --- ----- - -

129106632.5 

Very truly yours, 

By: _____ _ _ ____ _ 
T itle: -----------
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OFFICE OF THE MAYOR 

SAN FRANCISCO 

LONDON N. BREED 
MAYOR 

PROCLAMATION BY THE MAYOR DECLARING 
THE EXISTENCE OF A LOCAL EMERGENCY 

Drug Overdoses in the Tenderloin 

WHEREAS, California Government Code Sections 8550 et seq., San Francisco Charter 
Section 3 .100(14 ), and Chapter 7 of the San Francisco Administrative Code empower the 
Mayor to proclaim the existence of a local emergency, subject to concurrence by the 
Board of Supervisors as provided in the Charter, in the case of an emergency threatening 
the lives, property or welfare of the City and County of San Francisco (the "City") or its 
citizens; and 

WHEREAS, Deaths from drug overdose are at epidemic levels in San Francisco. While 
the problem has gotten worse over the past few years and particularly over the course of 
the pandemic, recently the threat to public health, safety and welfare has become much 
e1·~vr.r :-inti mnrr. immirnm1-in lhc Tcmk:rloi11 (11:, defined below) and demands emcrp;cncy 
action; and 

WHEREAS, Deaths attributable to drug overdose in San Francisco have increased over 
200% since 2018. In 2020, over 700 individuals died from drug overdoses. Tht: number 
of deaths in 2020 from drug overdose far exceeded the number of individuals who died of 
COVID-19; and 

WHEREAS, The COVID-19 pandemic exacerbated the overdose epidemic in 
San Francisco. In the eight months before the Health Officer issued the Shelter-In-Place 
Order (March 2020), the median number of weekly overdose deaths was 10, which 
increased to 15 after the Order, representing a 50% increase. During this period, there 
was a significant increase in the number of people experiencing homelessness dying from 
drug overdoses; and 

WHEREAS, A main contributor to the rapid rise in drug overdoses and deaths in 
San Francisco is the recent increase in the prevalence of fentanyl in the illegal drug 
market. Fentanyl is highly addictive and potent, and it is more likely to lead to overdose 
than other drugs in common use today. There has been a significant increase in the 
deaths attributable to fentanyl since the onset of the COVID-:19 pandemic. Fentanyl was 
a factor in more than 70% of overdose deaths between January and October 2021, an 
increase of nearly 20% since 2019. Over the past year, the San Francisco Police 

2600 
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OFFICE OF THE MAYOR 
SAN FRANCISCO 

LONDON N. BREED 
MAYOR 

Department has confiscated over 23 kilos of fentanyl - more than four times the year 
before; and 

WHEREAS, As the situation with the COVID-19 pandemic has begun to improve, the 
drug overdose crisis in the City has continued unabated. Between January and November 
2021, nearly 600 San Franciscans died of a drug overdose; and 

WHEREAS, The Tenderloin neighborhood and the surrounding area, including the 
South of Market neighborhood, are the epicenter of the overdose crisis in the City. 
Between January and October 2021, 21 % of overdose deaths occurred in the Tenderloin, 
with an additional 20% of deaths occurring in the South of Market neighborhood. These 
areas make up only 7% of the City's population; and 

WHEREAS, Contacts between clients and the City's non-profit partners running needle 
exchange programs in the Tenderloin increased nearly 30% in the period between July 
and September 2021 compared to the previous three months; and 

WHEREAS, The crisis in the Tenderloin has worsened in recent months. One of the 
City's non-profit partners reported an over 35% increase in the distribution of Narcan in 
the Tenderloin between October 2021 and November 2021. Narcan is used to revive 
someone experiencing an overdose; and 

WHEREAS, Emergency medical calls for service designated as calls for a "sick person" 
in the Tenderloin have increased more than 150% between June and November 2021 
compared to the same period in 2020, and medical calls for service for all reasons during 
this time period also increased, indicative of serious public health issues likely 
attributable to the opioid crisis in the area; and 

WHEREAS, Other indicators of the opioid crisis in the Tenderloin are also present; 
street conditions in the Tenderloin and surrounding area have deteriorated in recent 
months. Calls to 311 concerning human waste, needles, and garbage on streets and 
sidewalks increased significantly between the fall of 2020 and the fall of 2021; and 

WHEREAS, There was a 38% increase in calls to the City's Street Overdose Response 
Team between October and November 2021, and a 44% increase in calls regarding drug 
overdoses in the same period; and 
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OFFICE OF THE MAYOR 
SAN FRANCISCO 

LONDON N. BREED 
MAYOR 

WHEREAS, The rapidly deteriorating conditions in the Tenderloin caused by the opioid 
crisis put the lives of San Franciscans at serious risk, and the City must take action 
beyond the City's ordinary response capabilities, including re-appropriating resources to 
address the crisis, directing personnel from City departments to assist with the response, 
implementing crisis response sites for individuals to obtain medical help and services, 
and quickly procuring goods and services to address the crisis; and 

WHEREAS, Conditions of extreme peril to the safety of persons and property have 
arisen; and 

WHEREAS, The Mayor proclaims that all of these conditions of extreme peril warrant 
and necessitate the proclamation of the existence of a local emergency, 

NOW, THEREFORE, 

I, London N. Breed, Mnyor of the City and County of Sc1n Francisco, proclc1im the 
existence, effective immediately on December 17, 2021 and for limited duration specified 
below, of an emergency within the City threatening the lives, property or welfare of the 
City and County and its citizens. 

It is further ordered that: 

(1) All City officers and employees take all steps requested by the Executive Director of 
the Department of Emergency Management to address the emergency conditions of the 
overdose and overdose death crisis in the Tenderloin. For purposes of this Proclamation, 
the "Tenderloin" means the San Francisco Police Department's Tenderloin District and 
the additional area within a one-block perimeter of that District. 

(2) All City officers and employees take all steps requested by the Executive Director of 
the Department of Emergency Management to qualify the City for reimbursement from 
the Federal Emergency Management Agency and for other state and federal relief as may 
be available to reimburse the City for the expenses it incurs in addressing this emergency. 

(3) Notwithstanding any other restriction in local law except Charter Section 9 .118, City 
departments entering agreements related to the City's response to the emergency, 
including contracts for the procurement of commodities or services, contracts for public 
works, and grant agreements, shall comply with the procedural requirements of 
Section 21.15 of the Administrative Code (for agreements that are otherwise subject to 
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OFFICE OF THE MAYOR 
SAN FRANCISCO 

LONDON N. BREED 
MAYOR 

Chapter 21 or Chapter 21 G) or Section 6.60 of the Administrative Code (for agreements 
that are otherwise subject to Chapter 6). Civil Service Commission approval of such 
agreements is waived. Within 30 days of execution of the agreement departments must 
report any agreement that would have required approval by the Civil Service Commission 
to the Civil Service Commission. 

(4) Temporary facilities implemented for purposes of offering services as part of the 
emergency response, such as public health, behavioral health, social, or housing services, 
as recommended by the Director of the Department of Emergency Management or the 
Director's designee and authorized by the Mayor or the Mayor's designee, shall be 
allowed in the Tenderloin, including on any City sidewalks or parks; any provision in 
City law that limits or restricts the City's deployment of such facilities is waived, and any 
applicable local requirements for public notice, the filing or approval of a permit 
application, or payment of fees related to that response are waived. 

I further proclaim and order that: 

By the terms of this emergency declaration the City's government is organized under the 
provisions of the Incident Command System (ICS), which system forms an essential part 
of the City's Emergency Response Plan and is located in the Emergency Operations 
Center of the City and County of San Francisco. All City departments are ordered to 
cooperate strictly with the requests for material and personnel resources that may 
emanate from the ICS staff of the City. Under Charter Section 3.100(14), the Mayor may 
direct department personnel and resources, including reallocating and expending 
available funds within a department's budget or among and between departments, and 
expending available unappropriated funds, as necessary to meet the emergency. At least 
once every 30 days during this emergency, and again within 30 days after the termination 
of the emergency, the Controller shall report to the Board of Supervisors any transfer of 
appropriated or unappropriated funds adopted pursuant to this proclamation; 
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OFFICE OF THE MAYOR 
SAN FRANCISCO 

And I further proclaim and order that: 

LONDON N. BREED 
MAYOR 

This declaration of a local emergency shall continue to exist for no longer than 90 days 
from the effective date of this Proclamation and may be terminated earlier by the Mayor 
or the Board of Supervisors. 

DATED: December 17, 2021 
London N. Breed 
Mayor of San Francisco 
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OFFICE OF THE MAYOR 
SAN FRANCISCO 

LONDON N. BREED 
MAYOR 

FIRST SUPPLEMENT TO MAYORAL PROCLAMATION DECLARING THE 
EXISTENCE OF A LOCAL EMERGENCY DATED DECEMBER 17, 2021 

Drug Overdoses in the Tenderloin 

WHEREAS, California Government Code Sections 8550 et seq., San Francisco Charter 
Section 3. I 00(14 ), and Chapter 7 of the San Francisco Administrative Code empower the 
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

WHEREAS, On December 17, 2021, the Mayor issued a Proclamation (the 
"Proclamation") declaring a local emergency to exist in connection with drug overdoses 
in the Tenderloin; and 

WHEREAS, To quickly address the overdose crisis in the Tenderloin and mount a 
response that will reduce the overdoses and deaths occurring on our streets, the City must 
hire employees to fill vacant positions in the Department of Public Health, the Human 
Services Agency, az:id the Department of Homelessness and Supportive Housing who will 
participate directly in the emergency response. Employees in these departments will 
provide behavioral health and substance abuse services, housing services, street outreach, 
overdose response, and other services aimed at helping individuals in danger of overdose 
death. It is in the public interest to waive local law that could delay the rapid hiring of 
employees to fill these crucial emergency response needs; and 

WHEREAS, Also to address the emergency, the City plans to open a linkage center in 
the Tenderloin, at least initially on a temporary basis, where individuals in crisis may go 
to be connected to City services for mental health and substance abuse treatment, 
housing, and other benefits and for referral to medical attention, with the goal of breaking 
the cycle of addiction and reducing the prevalence of drug overdoses in the Tenderloin. 
To quickly implement the opening of such a facility, it is in the public interest to suspend 
local law that would delay the execution of a short-term lease of an appropriate location 
for this purpose; and 

WHEREAS, Conditions of extreme peril to the safety of persons and property continue 
to exist; 
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OFFICE OF THE MAYOR 
SAN FRANCISCO 

NOW, THEREFORE, 

LONDON N. BREED 
MAYOR 

I, London N. Breed, Mayor of the City and County of San Francisco, proclaim that there 
continues to exist an emergency within the City and County threatening the lives, 
property or welfare of the City and County and its citizens; 

In addition to the measures outlined in the Proclamation, it is further ordered that: 

(1) The Human Resources Director or designee is delegated authority during the local 
emergency to temporarily waive provisions of Civil Service Commission Rules and 
provisions of the Charter regarding hiring, if the Human Resources Director deems in 
writing that such waiver is necessary or appropriate to expedite the hiring of employees 
in the Department of Public Health, the Human Services Agency, and the Department of 
Homelessness and Supportive Housing who will perform duties in direct response to the 
drug overdose emergency in the Tenderloin, induding behavioral heallh empluyets. 

(2) Upon recommendation of the Executive Director of the Department of Emergency 
Management, the Director of Real Estate is authorized to enter into a lease on behalf of 
the City as tenant for real property necessary to establish facilities to respond to the drug 
overdose emergency in the Tenderloin. Any such lease shall be for a period not to 
exceed the 90-day emergency term specified in the Proclamation, unless the Director of 
Real Estate determines that the City is unable to secure a suitable property without 
agreeing to a longer term not to exceed a total of six months. Except for Charter Section 
9 .118, the Director of Real Estate may waive any provision of City law that would limit 
or delay execution of a lease authorized by this Order, including, without limitation, 
Chapter 23 of the Administrative Code. If a lease executed by the Director of Real Estate 
under this Order provides the City an option to extend the term beyond a six-month 
period, the City's decision to exercise such option shall be subject to such approvals as 
may be required by Chapter 23 of the Administrative Code and any other applicable law, 
including, without limitation, prior approval by the Board of Supervisors. 

DATED: December 27, 2021 

n \govemlas202I \96900~2101572821 doc 

London N. Breed 
Mayor of San Francisco 

2 
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FILE NO. 211320 MOTION NO. M21-183 

1 [Concurring in Proclamation of Local Emergency- Drug Overdoses in the Tenderloin] 

2 

3 Motion concurring in the December 17, 2021, Proclamation by the Mayor Declaring the 

4 Existence of a Local Emergency in connection with the sudden increase in drug 

5 overdoses in the Tenderloin, and concurring in actions taken to meet the emergency 

6 to: 1) require City employees and officers to take all steps requested by the Executive 

7 Director of the Department of Emergency Management ("DEM") to address the 

8 emergency conditions; 2) require all City employees and officers to take all steps 

9 requested by the Executive Director of DEM to qualify the City for funding as may be 

10 available to reimburse the City for the expenses it incurs in addressing this emergency; 

11 3) allow departments to procure services, goods, and public works relating to the 

12 emergency using emergency procurement procedures, and waive any applicable 

13 requirement of Civil Service Commission approval of such contracts; and 4) allow the 

14 implementation in the Tenderloin of temporary facilities for purposes of offering 

15 services as part of the emergency response, and waive any provision in City law that 

16 limits or restricts the City's deployment of such facilities, and any applicable local 

17 requirements for public notice, the filing or approval of a permit application, or 

18 payment of fees related to that response. 

19 

20 WHEREAS, On December 17, 2021, Mayor London N. Breed declared a local 

21 emergency to exist in connection with the sudden increase of drug overdoses in the 

22 Tenderloin; and 

23 WHEREAS, The Mayor has transmitted a copy of that Proclamation Declaring the 

24 Existence of a Local Emergency ("Proclamation") to the Board of Supervisors, and such copy 

25 is on file with the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors in File No. 211320; and 

Clerk of the Board 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS Page 1 
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1 WHEREAS, Government Code, Sections 8550 et seq. and Charter, Section 3.100 

2 provide for the concurrence by members of the Board of Supervisors in such emergency 

3 declaration and in actions taken by the Mayor to meet the emergency; and 

4 WHEREAS, Deaths from drug overdose are at epidemic levels in San Francisco; while 

5 the problem has gotten worse over the past few years and particularly over the course of the 

6 pandemic, recently the threat to public health, safety and welfare has become much graver 

7 and more imminent in the Tenderloin and demands emergency action; and 

8 WHEREAS, Deaths attributable to drug overdose in San Francisco have increased 

9 over 200% since 2018, and in 2020, over 700 individuals died from drug overdoses; the 

1 O number of deaths in 2020 from drug overdose far exceeded the number of individuals who 

11 died of COVID-19; and 

12 WHEREAS, The COVID-19 pandemic exacerbated the overdose epidemic in San 

13 Francisco; in the eight months before the Health Officer issued the Shelter-In-Place Order 

14 (March 2020), the median number of weekly overdose deaths was 10, which increased to 15 

15 after the Order, representing a 50% increase; and 

16 WHEREAS, A main contributor to the rapid rise in drug overdoses and deaths in San 

17 Francisco is the recent increase in the prevalence of fentanyl in the illegal drug market; there 

18 has been a significant increase in the deaths attributable to fentanyl since the onset of the 

19 COVID-19 pandemic, with fentanyl serving as a factor in more than 70% of overdose deaths 

20 between January and October 2021, an increase of nearly 20% since 2019. 

21 WHEREAS, As the situation with the COVID-19 pandemic has begun to improve, the 

22 drug overdose crisis in the City has continued unabated; between January and November 

23 2021, nearly 600 San Franciscans died of a drug overdose; and 

24 

25 

Clerk of the Board 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS Page 2 

2608 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 3F187184-6C3A-44E1-9FC3-01035EB1C30E 

1 WHEREAS, Between January and October 2021, 21 % of overdose deaths occurred in 

2 the Tenderloin, with an additional 20% of deaths occurring in the South of Market 

3 neighborhood; and 

4 WHEREAS, Contacts between clients and the City's non-profit partners running needle 

5 exchange programs in the Tenderloin increased nearly 30% in the period between July and 

6 September 2021 compared to the previous three months; and 

7 WHEREAS, The crisis in the Tenderloin has worsened in recent months; one of the 

8 City's non-profit partners reported an over 35% increase in the distribution of Narcan (which is 

9 used to revive someone experiencing an overdose) in the Tenderloin between October 2021 

1 O and November 2021; and 

11 WHEREAS, Emergency medical calls for service designated as calls for a "sick person" 

12 in the Tenderloin have increased more than 150% between June and November 2021 

13 compared to the same period in 2020, and medical calls for service for all reasons during this 

14 time period also increased, indicative of serious public health issues likely attributable to the 

15 opioid crisis in the area; and 

16 WHEREAS, Other indicators of the opioid crisis in the Tenderloin are also present; 

17 street conditions in the Tenderloin and surrounding area have deteriorated in recent months, 

18 and calls to 311 concerning human waste, needles, and garbage on streets and sidewalks 

19 increased significantly between the fall of 2020 and the fall of 2021; and 

20 WHEREAS, There was a 38% increase in calls to the City's Street Overdose Response 

21 Team between October and November 2021, and a 44% increase in calls regarding drug 

22 overdoses in the same period; and 

23 WHEREAS, The rapidly deteriorating conditions in the Tenderloin caused by the opioid 

24 crisis put the lives of San Franciscans at serious risk, and the City must take action beyond 

25 the City's ordinary response capabilities, including re-appropriating resources to address the 

Clerk of the Board 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS Page 3 
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1 crisis and directing personnel from City departments to assist with the response, which the 

2 Proclamation authorizes the Mayor to do under Charter, Section 3.100(14); and 

3 WHEREAS, The Mayor has found the aforesaid conditions of extreme peril justify and 

4 require a proclamation of the existence of a local emergency; and 

5 WHEREAS, As part of the Proclamation, the Mayor took additional steps to meet the 

6 emergency by ordering four actions to meet the emergency; and 

7 ·WHEREAS, For purposes of the Proclamation, the Tenderloin is defined as the San 

8 Francisco Police Department's Tenderloin District and the additional area within a one-block 

9 perimeter of that District; now, therefore, be it 

1 O MOVED, That the Board of Supervisors concurs with the Proclamation by the Mayor 

11 Declaring the Existence of Local Emergency issued on December 17, 2021, and, be it 

12 FURTHER MOVED, That the Board of Supervisors concurs with the following actions 

13 taken by the Mayor to meet the local emergency, as such actions are described in full in 

14 December 17, 2021 Proclamation and summarized as follows: 

15 Action 1: Requiring all City officers and employees to take all steps 

16 requested by the Executive Director of the Department of Emergency Management ("DEM") to 

17 address the emergency conditions of the overdose and overdose death crisis in the 

18 Tenderloin ; 

19 Action 2: Requiring all City officers and employees to take all steps 

20 requested by the Executive Director of DEM to qualify the City for reimbursement from the 

21 Federal Emergency Management Agency and for other state and federal relief as may be 

22 available to reimburse the City for the expenses it incurs in addressing this emergency; 

23 Action 3: Allowing departments to procure services, goods, and public works 

24 relating to the emergency using emergency procurement procedures, waiving any applicable 

25 requirement of Civil Service Commission approval of such contracts, and requiring 

Clerk of the Board 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS Page 4 
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1 departments to report to the Civil Service Commission any agreement that would have 

2 required its approval; 

3 Action 4: Allowing the implementation in the Tenderloin, including on any 

4 City sidewalks or parks, of temporary facilities for purposes of offering services as part of the 

5 emergency response, such as public health, behavioral health, social, or housing services, as 

6 recommended by the Director of DEM or the Director's designee and authorized by the Mayor 

7 or the Mayor's designee, and waiving any provision in City law that limits or restricts the City's 

8 deployment of such facilities, and any applicable local requirements for public notice, the filing 

9 or approval of a permit application, or payment of fees related to that response. 

10 

11 n:\govemlas2021 \9690021\01572328.docx 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 
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City and County of San Francisco 

Tails 

Motion: M21-183 

City Hall 
1 Dr Carlton B Goodlett Place 
San Francisco, CA 94102-4689 

File Number: 211320 Date Passed: December 23, 2021 

Motion concurring in the December 17, 2021, Proclamation by the Mayor Declaring the Existence of 
a Local Emergency in connection with the sudden increase in drug overdoses in the Tenderloin, and 
concurring in actions taken to meet the emergency to: 1) require City employees and officers to take 
all steps requested by the Executive Director of the Department of Emergency Management ("DEM") 
to address the emergency conditions; 2) require all City employees and officers to take all steps 
requested by the Executive Director of DEM to qualify the City for funding as may be available to 
reimburse the City for the expenses it incurs in addressing this emergency; 3) allow departments to 
procure services, goods, and public works relating to the emergency using emergency procurement 
procedures, and waive any applicable requirement of Civil Service Commission approval of such 
contracts; and 4) allow the implementation in the Tenderloin of temporary facilities for purposes of 
offering services as part of the emergency response, and waive any provision in City law that limits or 
restricts the City's deployment of such facilities, and any applicable local requirements for public 
notice, the filing or approval of a permit application, or payment of fees related to that response. 

December 23, 2021 Board of Supervisors - Ar'r'ROVED 

Ayes: 8 - Chan, Haney, Mandelman, Mar, MelHar, Ronen, Safai and Stefani 

Noes: 2 - Preston and Walton 

Excused: 1 - Peskin 

File No. 211320 I hereby certify that the foregoing Motion 
was APPROVED on 12/23/2021 by the 
Board of Supervisors of the City and 
County of San Francisco. 

City and County of San Francisco Page I 
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Tenderloin 
Linkage Center 
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Come as you are. Help starts here. 
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Bienvenido al Centro de recursos 
del Tenderloin, un lugar seguro con 
comida y agua, servicios de higiene 
y apoyo social bajo un mismo techo. 

El Centro de recursos del 
Tenderloin esta ubicado en 

1172 Market Street (en UN Plaza). 
Acuda tal y como es. 
Aquf es bienvenido. 

You are welcome at the Tenderloin Linkage 
Center, a safe place with food and water, hygiene 

services, and social support under one roof. 
The Tenderloin Linkage Center is located at 

1172 Market Street (in UN Plaza). 
Come as you are. You are welcome here. 
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Jkaw ay inaanyayahan sa 
Tenderloin Linkage Center, isang 
Jigtas na lugar na may pagkain at 

tu big, mga serbisyo sa kalinisan, at 
suportang panlipunan. 

Ang Tenderloin Linkage Center 
ay matatagpuan sa 

1172 Market Street (sa UN Plaza). 
Halika na. lkaw ay inaanyayahan dito. 

City & County of San Francisco 
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"TO ADDRESS THE STRUCTURAL INEQUITIES THAT TOO MANY 

IN OUR CITY EXPERIENCE, IN PARTICULAR OUR AFRICAN-AMERICAN 

COMMUNITY, WE NEED FUNDAMENTAL CHANGE AND REINVESTMENT. THE 

CRIMINAL .nJSTICE SYSTEM CAN NO LONGER BE OUR ANSWER TO SOCIAL 

PROBLEMS. WE HA VE TO REIMAGINE A PUBLIC SAFETY SYSTEM IN WHICH 

RACE DOES NOT INFLUENCE OR DETERMINE THE OUTCOME" 

Mayor London N. Breed, September 2020 

/\nnounood in Juno 2020, Mayor London ~J. Breed'~ roadmap to changing the way that the City 

of San Francisco addresses structural inequalities and handles public safety includes a series of 

initiatives. One of the foci of her roadmap is geared towards ending the use of police as first 

responders to non-violent activity. As a part of this initiative, the City has committed to developing 

an effective and sustainable systematic response plan of alternative approaches to public safety. 

In an important step toward realizing this change, the San Francisco Human Rights Commission 

(HRC) convened an Alternatives to Policing Steering Committee, specifically tasked with 

exploring strategies and alternatives to policing. In order to include the input of all the relevant 

stakeholders as well as all the diverse San Francisco communities, the HRC also conducted 

broad and comprehensive community outreach. By means of large-scale surveys in multiple 

languages, targeted community focus groups, and the HRC Roundtable weekly sessions, over 

the course of several months, community members and community workers, service providers, 

and service beneficiaries, provided their opinions, knowledge, and suggestions with regards to 

public health and safety. These suggestions, rooted in the respondents' directly relevant life 

and/or work experiences were integrated with the suggestions generated through the Steering 

Committee's continuous sessions and discussions with the City's key experts and policymakers 

in the area of public health and safety. This process of critical data gathering through various 

methods and within various relevant contexts produced a robust and authentic set of bottom-up 

recommendations that can serve as a platform for a way forward. The views of the community 

members, the behavioral health and homelessness professionals and CBOs, and the Steering 
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Committee experts, converged in a number of areas, pointing to the indisputability of need as well 

as the shared desire to effect change. Three areas of concern that were particularly sharply drawn 

out include: 

The need to recognize that the notions of wellness have evolved from a specialized 

focus on a diagnosed problem solving, to focusing on the overall psychological and 

whole-person health. 

The imperative to acknowledge the rights to autonomy, choice, and dignity of persons in 

crisis 

The need to reimagine public health and safety in ways that place more critical 

importance on the involvement of the community, and on sharing both the work and the 

accountability 

• The caution that armed police should still remain first responders for situations where 

there is a risk of violence, thus, improving the strategies and means of risk assessment, 

may be necessary 

The consolidated recommendations that have come out of the research processes are substantial 

in number and quality. The specific suggestions concern, on the one hand, the method, 

consistency, inclusiveness, and versatility of existing public health and safety services, and on 

the other hand the creative, incisive, and verified alternative models. Recommendations fall into 

six broad categories, each encompassing several key areas with suggestions for improving, 

expanding, or reenvisioning the current systems and structures. 

Create a mobile, non-police response for non-violent situations involving individuals in 

behavioral health crises and unhoused individuals 

Provide housing and stability for individuals in crisis 

• Strengthen community engagement and equity 

Integrate harm reduction model throughout outreach and services 

Design an iterative and reflective process that measures the impact on outcomes 

ALTERNATIVES TO POLICING I Executive Summary 2615 2 



With intentional investment, political will, and public buy-in, it is possible and achievable to 

transition from a public safety system centered on policing and law enforcement to one that is 

focused on the needs of individuals in crisis, especially in communities of color. Over the past 

year, in particular, the entire society has changed, presenting both new challenges and new 

lessons on how to best respond to crisis and trauma. 

It will take time and planning to build a system that serves everyone more effectively, but this 

moment is an opportunity for the social innovators to create the blueprint for a more peaceful and 

just society. The constellation of ideas, knowledge, and lived experiences of all the crucial and 

diverse stakeholders whose responses have shaped this report, provides an authentic roadmap. 

ALTERNATIVES TO POLICING I Executive Summary 2616 3 
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BACKGROUND 

On June 11, 2020, Mayor London N. Breed announced her roadmap to fundamentally change 

the way San Francisco handles public safety. This announcement followed weeks of nationwide 

protests after the murder of George Floyd by a Minneapolis police officer, and many other Black 

and Brown individuals across the country. Increased national coverage of racially-charged 

incidents of violence at the hands of police, often without consequence, illuminated a harsh reality 

in America's communities of color: the economic apartheid resulting from generations of 

systematic inequality and the buildup of the carceral system has resulted in multigenerational 

harm to Black and Brown communities. For successive generations, localities across America 

have prioritized policing as a solution for situations rooted in poverty, behavioral health needs, 

and economic inequality. 

Our society as a whole has developed a near-total reliance on police and the criminal legal system 

as an answer for situations that arise as a result of a behavioral health crisis and/or the experience 

of homelessness. For example, the San Francisco County Jail serves as one of the main providers 

of medical care for individuals and those experiencing behavioral health crisis. San Francisco 

police officers are asked to respond to, and solve, situations for which they do not have recourse 

other than the criminal and carceral system; this is often the case in situations such as an 

individual who seeks shelter in a tent on a sidewalk or who has few options other than to use a 

public space when they have the human need to use a toilet. 

Mayor Breed's directive was necessary to address both needed police reforms and the structural 

inequities that have resulted in disproportionate injuries to the African American community. 

Departments were therefore directed to undertake the following: 

• End the use of police to respond to calls that can be addressed by unarmed civilians. 

• Address bias and strengthen accountability within the San Francisco Police Department 

(SFPD). 

• Demilitarize the SFPD and divest the department from the use of, and acquisitions of, 

military-grade weapons 

• Economic equity; invest in better outcomes for the African American community. 

A vital aspect of this plan includes ending the use of police as first responders to situations that 

involve behavioral health and/or homelessness as well as other non-violent calls that can be 
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safely handled by an unarmed, civilian response. Achieving this objective is not a short-term 

enterprise. Fundamentally changing a public safety system from one that has centered on policing 

and law enforcement to one that recognizes the needs of individuals in crisis as the focal point, 

especially within communities of color, is achievable with intentional investment, political will, and 

public buy-in. But it will take time and planning to build a better system that serves all of us more 

effectively. 

To advance this work, on September 8, 2020, Mayor Breed announced the formation of the 

Alternatives to Policing Steering Committee (the Steering Committee) convened by the San 

Francisco Human Rights Commission (HRC). HRC, led by Director Sheryl Davis, was selected to 

support this process because of their experience and success convening other complex 

conversations that engage the community and City staff, such as ongoing discussions about 

reparations and reinvestment of law enforcement dollars into the African-American community. 

Over the past five months, from October 14, 2020-March 24, 2021, the Alternatives to Policing 

Committee met regularly, worked with HRC to engage the community, and developed 

recommendations tor Mayor l::ireed. 
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PURPOSE AND SCOPE 
The objective of the Steering Committee is to provide guidance and recommendations on the 

City's response to non-violent emergency calls to 911 and 311, specifically in regards to situations 

that involve an individual who is experiencing homelessness and/or a behavioral health crisis. 

These recommendations will inform the Fiscal Year 2021-22 budget as the Mayor continues to 

implement her vision to end the use of police as first responders to situations that do not demand 

an armed police response. 

Identifying and implementing alternative responses to police is a complex process. There is a 

diverse range of perspectives about policing, so planning on when and how to limit police 

interactions for these two categories of situations can be fraught. Beyond that, the challenge of 

logistically implementing an alternative is underscored by the need for any alternative response 

to be able to serve as a safe replacement for one of our first responders agencies who are 

currently available 24 hours a day, 7 days a week, and the only group in the city authorized to use 

force. It is worth noting that across all discussions about alternatives to a police response, from 

community-of-interest focus groups to one-on-one interviews to steering committee meetings and 

survey takers, one consistent response was that an armed police response was still necessary 

for situations involving a high risk of violence. In these instances, the general consensus was a 

desire for the risk assessment to be continuously strengthened so that these determinations are 

as accurate as possible, but that police should still be our first responders. 

This work is also informed by, and is informing, related initiatives such as Our City our Home/Prop 

C allocations, and Mental Health SF and ongoing discussions about reparations and reinvestment 

of law enforcement dollars into the African-American Community. Combined, these initiatives 

intend to stimulate systems change and improve outcomes for similar groups of people. 

Alternatives to Policing Steering Committee 

The Mayor's priority in selecting committee members was to ensure strong and diverse 

community-based expertise founded upon practical policy expertise; she called on individuals to 

join the committee who understand that policies must work in reality, not simply on paper, and 

who have direct, firsthand knowledge of the existing system, its flaws, as well as those aspects 

that are effective or show strong promise. The Steering Committee is composed of community 

members, representatives of organizations, and city staff with extensive technical and substance 

knowledge that have a track record of working effectively to support people with a range of 
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behavioral health needs, experiencing poverty and homelessness, or a combination of these 

conditions. These members and organizations were selected because of a demonstrated 

commitment to centering community voices and people with lived experience, a willingness to 

challenge the status quo, and a dedication to exploring innovative and outcome-driven practices. 

The Steering Committee also has representatives from City agencies that intersect with 

Alternatives to Policing activities. 

Conveners: SF Human Rights Commission Director Sheryl Davis, Phelicia Jones, Kayleigh Lloyd, 

Noah Frigault, and Amelia M. Martinez-Bankhead 

Steering Committee: 

ORGANIZATION REPRESENTATIVE 

At the Crossroads Charles Lerner (he/him/they) 

City of San Francisco -
Department of Emergency Management Robert Smuts 

Department of Public Health Dr. Angelic Almeida (she/her) 

Fire Department, EMS-6 Unit Simon Pang 

Police Department Lt. Mario Molina 

GLIDE Dr. Kenneth Kim 

Hamilton Families Kyriell Noon 

HealthRIGHT 360 Dr. Vitka Eisen 

Hospitality House Joe Wilson 

Occupational Therapist Sheela lvlev, MS, OTR/L, CMHIMP (she/her) 

San Francisco AIDS Foundation Laura Thomas (she/her) 

Street Violence Intervention Project (SVIP) Arturo Carillo 

Taxpayers for Public Safety Roma Guy 

Urban Alchemy Dr. Lena Miller (she/her) 
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GUIDING PRINCIPLES 

This effort represents a watershed moment in reimagining public safety. A new vision is needed; 

a vision that requires thinking bolder, imagining better, and exploring uncharted waters. 

Committee members must challenge each other to lift up the best of our communities, to elevate 

and celebrate risk-taking, and potentially take to scale those smaller models that show promise. 

Indeed, by redirecting the investments necessary to implement new approaches - we can build 

the alternative we need, with the resources it needs, to reach the communities that need it. 

Ultimately, as we work to transform our public institutions - institutions that owe their creation to 

the communities they serve - we transform ourselves along the way. 

A commitment to rethink and reimagine current assumptions and practices has been at the core 

of the Committee's work. The Steering Committee members utilized their own deep expertise and 

extensive networks and invited input from local providers, local and national programs, and people 

with lived experience. To strengthen and inform the conversations, feedback was elicited through 

community meetings and a survey, which was open to the public and promoted to communities 

impacted by this issue. 

First, there was an acknowledgement and interest in exploring the tension between community 

expectations and the personal autonomy of an individual to make their own decisions about their 

health. Moreover, notions of wellness have evolved from a specialized focus on a diagnosed 

problem to solving for the overall psychological and whole-person health. The Committee also 

elevated the inherent racism and classism that people experiencing homelessness and behavioral 

health challenges face, and that it prevents those who want help from trusting existing systems 

of care. As such, the Steering Committee placed an emphasis on developing positive outcomes 

for populations that are overrepresented through arrests, incarceration, homelessness and 

behavioral health. 

Key tenets to realize alternatives to policing solutions should: 

1. Prevent crisis in the first place by focusing on health care, housing, and employment 

2. Re-think what we assume to be true, and be willing to adapt when something is not 

working 

3. Partner with community and be informed by people who will be served, their families and 

friends, and those who work with them 
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4. Focus on the outcomes we want to see, defining success from the perspective of people 

in crisis 

5. Tailor the system and delivery of services to meet a person's social, cultural, and 

linguistic needs 

6. Provide voluntary, trauma-informed services that utilize a harm reduction approach 

7. Develop programs and services in a way that does not regard people who are 

unhoused, those with mental illness and/or substance use disorder as a "disease to 

treat" but as individuals with dignity and humanity, and as members of the community 

8. Support efforts to coordinate and make services and resources accessible to people 

when, and where they need them the most. 

9. Avoid "shiny new objects" or short-term unsustainable pilots or initiatives. Instead focus 

on models that can build on existing successes, be long-term and flexible, in order to 

continuously improve. 1 

KEY TERMS: Trauma, Trauma-informed, Harm Reduction 

TRAUMA 
Trauma is any physical, emotional, or psychological experience that overwhelms or 
compromises individual integrity, sense of safety, control, and/or ability to carry out 
life-sustaining processes. It can include real , or perceived threat. Trauma can be a 
single event or a series of events compounded over time. Commonly understood 
forms of trauma include physical and sexual violence, childhood abuse and neglect, 
natural disasters and community violence (eg bullying, war, gang culture, rape); less 
well-understood but just as significant forms of trauma include racism, poverty, 
inequality, oppression and historical trauma (the legacy of entire groups having 
experienced violence such as slavery, the Holocaust, genocide, forced displacement) . 

TRAUMA-INFORMED 
The fundamental shift in providing support using a trauma-informed approach is to 
move from thinking 'What is wrong with you?' to considering 'What happened to you?' 

HARM REDUCTION 
Defined by Drug Policy Alliance, Harm-reduction is a set of ideas and interventions 
that seek to reduce the harms associated with both drug use and ineffective, racialized 
drug policies. Harm reduction stands in stark contrast to a punitive approach to 
problematic drug use-it is based on acknowledging the dignity and humanity of 
people who use drugs and bringing them into a community of care in order to minimize 
negative consequences and promote optimal health and social inclusion." 
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Community Engagement 

Community engagement is vital to reimagining, designing, and implementing alternatives to 

policing. To bring in as many perspectives as possible, the Human Rights Commission (HRC) 

elicited input from communities most impacted by policing disparities as well as difficult-to-reach 

populations of marginalized communities whose voices are often not heard or prioritized in City 

decision-making on this topic. This was accomplished through one on one conversations, listening 

sessions, and surveys. 

The survey was hosted online; translated into 

Spanish, Chinese, and Arabic; and open to 

responses for over three months. The survey 

was promoted through the San Francisco 

Human Rights Commission large array of 

partner organizations, including many 

community-based organizations and 

individuals working in various capacities in the 

fields relevant to mental and behavioral 

health, substance abuse homelessness, and 

community support and wellness. As a result, 

BEHAVIORAL HEAL TH - defined by 
Substance Abuse and Mental Health 
Services Administration, a part of the 
U.S. Department of Health and Human 
Services - The term "behavioral health" 
means the promotion of mental health, 
resilience and wellbeing; the treatment 
of mental and substance use disorders; 
and the support of those who 
experience and/or are in recovery from 
these conditions, along with their 
families and communities. 

the HRC ultimately received over 300 survey responses from a wide variety of stakeholders. 

During this time, the HRC held special sessions with target populations to gather additional 

feedback in keeping with the spirit of the survey. 

The demographic makeup of the survey respondents (see Figures 1-3 below) was as follows: 

Nearly half of the respondents (46%) identified as White, followed by Black or African American 

(15%), Latinx (11%), Asian (9%) and Multiracial (9%). Other racial / ethnic groups were 

represented by less than 5% of the respondents, each. Nearly half of the respondents (48%) 

identified as female, and nearly a third (30%) as male. One in five respondents did not wish to 

identify and 1 in five identified as Gender fluid, or Non-binary, or CIS-male/female, or 

Transgender. 
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The respondents age groups were concentrated in three categories between the ages 25 and 54. 

Although individuals in these age groups represent the majority of the working population in San 

Francisco, input from young adults (age 18-24) and individuals over 65 years of age was too low 

for reliability. 

RACE I ETHNICTY OF RESPONDENTS. N=298 

MiddlcEastcmorNL"1hAfrican , 

Native American !Alaska Na1i,·c 

Anolhcr mcc c.- c\hnici1y 

Multiracial or Mullic1hnic 

Askn - a:z:=--• 
Blade or African American --£:==--· 

White ------~== ---====::::n ______ _ 
l(r.. 30% 

Figure 1. Racial/ethnic makeup of the respondents. 

SELF-IDENTIFIED GENDER N=298 

CIS-FEMALE/MALE 4% 
GENDER FLUiD 2% 
TRANS2% 

NONE/NOT 
IDENTIFIED 9% 

Figure 2. Self-identified gender makeup of the respondents. 
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RESIDENTS AGE GROUP 
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25-34 

18-24 

0 5 10 15 20 25 30 

Figure 3. Age groups categories of the respondents. 

The HRC listening sessions happened in two formats: as structured community focus groups, 

and as part of the Human Rights Commission's regular weekly Roundtable sessions. Targeted 

focus groups recruited 15-30 participants each, of different ages, backgrounds and professions 

(see Appendix iii for full detail). Groups that were engaged, included: 

• San Francisco Latino Task Force, a coalition of over 50 CBOs and government agencies 
working together to meet the needs of our immigrants, families, elders, houseless, 
LGBTQ, youth, and other Latino populations who are experiencing challenging times 
during the pandemic; 

• MegaBlackSF, a coalition of community organizations that celebrates and recognizes 
the "megalithic, not monolithic" contributions of Black people in the San Francisco Bay 
Area; 

• Close Juvenile Hall Working Group, a City-facilitated group of community members, 
nonprofits, and local agencies formed to develop a Juvenile Hall closure plan and 
support community-based alternatives to detention; 

• LGBTQI Advisory Committee, first established in 1975, this committee is tasked with 
advising the HRC on issues affecting the LGBTQ community and it played a part in the 
creation of the city's LGBT Aging Policy Task Force, which produced policy proposals 
instituted at both the city and state level, making gender identity a protected category in 
San Francisco. 
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• TLCBD, The Tenderloin Community Benefit District established collaboratively by 
community leaders and property owners, works on implementing neighborhood 
improvements around the physical environment, economic development, and 
neighborhood pride, including: maintenance and safe passage of streets, a positive 
experience for visitors and residents, and coordination with City agencies. 

The HRC Roundtable weekly sessions are attended by 40-60 participants and contributors, and 

are intentionally structured to represent all the San Francisco neighborhoods and diverse race, 

ethnicity and faith-based groups, as well as CBOs and various City government agencies. Over 

several weeks, the HRC engaged with the Roundtable contributors in conversations about 

alternatives to non-violent responses to behavioral health and homelessness incidents, as well 

as their views on the reallocation of SFPD funds. 

O~v~1 di HRC R.uu11Lllc:11.JI~ s~sslum; were also spec111ca11y dedicated to the presentations of the 

work and suggestions relevant to these topics. For example, at one of the regular HRC 

Roundtable meetings the Street Level Drug Dealing Task Force featured the history, the work, 

and the ideas from a Tenderloin Community Council and a concept for an action plan and 

resources that includes police engagement, trauma informed systems, harm reduction, 

restorative justice, anti-violence programming with short and long-term improvements and ideas 

on how to coordinate existing resources. 

HRC Roundtable conversations and Steering Committee meeting discw;sions informed additional 

community outreach and data collection. This includes presentations at Steering Committee 

meetings by community and city teams working on aspects of this work. Additionally, follow-up 

one on one interviews were conducted with committee and community members who had more 

to share beyond what was available through the survey or listening sessions. 

,, The themes that emerged from the community surveys and focus groups aligned with those of 

the steering committee and focused on the notions of psychological wellness (mentioned by 

more than one third of the survey respondents). The importance of cultural competency in 

delivery of care was emphasized by one in four respondents. This suggestion also agrees with 

the findings from community focus groups, in particular the LGBTQI focus group, the Latinx focus 

group, and Tenderloin residents focus group. This suggestion too, aligns with repeated 

suggestions from Steering Committee experts. Other suggestions that were prevalent across all 
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the data sources include the importance of trauma informed approach, the value of 

compassion and respect for individuals; and focus on harm reduction. 

FINAL RECOMMENDATIONS AND NEXT STEPS 

These recommendations are consistent across different data sources, coming out steering 

committee meetings and community listening sessions, and input from community partners. They 

were also supported by the majority of the survey respondents who reported concerns in several 

areas with regards to dispatching the police for non-violent calls. Most notably, 58% of 

respondents said that dispatching the police represents and / or produces harm. One in four 

respondents (24%) said that the police lack proper training and/ or education, and 15% said that 

the police lack understanding and empathy. One is five (19%) thought that the police lack the 

necessary resources to appropriately divert the calls. One in ten were concerned about the 

inadequate response time and inadequate behavior of the police. 

In the light of these concerns many suggestions for alternatives were shared with the community 

(see Figures 4-6 below) and the experts. One of the strongest recommendations (65% of survey 

responses) was to create Professionally Trained Response Teams, that would comprise not 

only healthcare professionals and workers, but more peer outreach, and more 

acknowledgement of others, such as family members, in the response processes. 
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STRATEGIES AND PROGRAMMING 
Homelessness, Behavioral Health, Substance Abuse 

Educate clients, police and public 
r----~~ 

Treatment access, affordable care 
I--='-"--'----':....____---"'-"=-"-'""""-~-'--'-.:~ 

j,...-~~~----~.;...;.....""""'--.....1 
Wraparound care/weHness/ self help 

Harm reduction/ Preventative care 

___ ___. Other (choice, UBI, support CB0s) 

Change in the politics and laws 

__..._... ~treet outreach I Peer support 

More infrastructure and funding 

Trained Response Teams - - ............. -"'--'--~-----~ 

"---~---l 
Supportive Housing Access 

0 10 20 30 40 50 60 70 80 

• Homelessness D Behavioral Health D Substace Abuse 

Figure 4. Categorized responses regarding suggested improvements in strategies and 

programs. 
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WHAT NEEDS TO BE BUILT/CHANGED. 
WHAT lDEAS & MODELS ARE SUGGESTED. 

Education, data~ kn0'1.1'1ledge sharing 

Cooperation across services 
and agencies 

Police reform/ less violence 

Politicians to be more accountable 

Other (youth focus,. compassion.jobs) 

Community Partners/Collaboration 
/fypes of Policing 

Health & Medical Wellness 
(Al r AppUcatlons) 

Housing / Shelter 
/Noods Based PrO\IJsions 

Training/ strateg.ies -~~~ 
/protocols for engagement 

Long Term Supp:xxt /Solutions 

0 .2 

Long Training Housing/ Health & Community 
Term strategies Shelter/ Medical Partners/ 
Support/ /protocols for Needs Based Wellness (All Collaborallon/ 
SOIUUons- engagement Provisions Applications) Types of Policing 

21% 18% 15% 

19% 10% 5% 24% 39% 

34% 9% 14% 20% 27% 

.4 

• What should be built 

Ideas and models l 

Ideas and models 2 

.6 .8 1.0 

Other Politicians Police Cooperation 
(youth focus, to be more reform/ across 
compass ion, accountable Less services and 
jobs) violence agencies 

14% 10% 19% 18% 

Figure 5. Suggestion about what should be built, categorized ideas and models. 
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AREAS OF IMPACT: 
Individuals [ Community I Police 

~--->---~-! Education and training 

-~---'--~_,I Back to serve and protect 

·. Community investment 
"------'--'--=--....:......:...~""=--=--==~ 

29% 

I nstit~tiona I ac:c:01.mtability 

MM!lill!lillli!I:!~~~~ Providing safety 

~-~~~! Bulding relationships 

Support and empowerment 

Meeting needs (wraparound) 
I 

0 10 20 30 40 50 60 

• Individuals Community Police 

Figure 6. How should a successful program impact the individuals, communities and the police. 
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The recommendations are as follows: 

1. Create a mobile, non-police response for non-violent situations involving 
individuals in behavioral health crisis. 

People with untreated mental illness and psychosis due to substance use disorder face a 

higher likelihood of being killed by police or entering the justice system than any other 

population. While criminal legal settings are not an appropriate long-term treatment 

solution, our health system is also disproportionately impacted by those who frequent 

emergency rooms due to behavioral health challenges. A mobile, non-police response 

would be an effective way to intervene in high acuity situations in community. The 

Committee was convened at the early stages of a planned pilot and many of the 

community's recommendations were incorporated into the operations of a mobile crisis 

intervention. 

On Monday, November 301h, 2020 the Street Crisis Response Team (SCRT), a pilot 

program launched in partnership between San Francisco Department of Public Health & 

San Francisco Fire Department, with significant support from the SF Department of 

Emergency Management, launched in an effort to transition Behavioral Health calls away 

from police to a tailored health response. SCRT's goal is to provide the most appropriate 

clinical interventions and care coordination for people who experience behavioral health 

crises in public spaces in San Francisco. Each team includes one community paramedic, 

one behavioral health clinician, and one behavioral health peer specialist. The SCRT 

model is designed to address all three arms of the equity-oriented health care paradigm: 

Trauma- and Violence-Informed Care, by ensuring that a specialized behavioral health 

team is capable of responding real-time to those in need of urgent crisis support; Culturally 

Safe Care, by reducing the role of law enforcement in behavioral health crisis response; 

and Contextually Tailored Care, by addressing contextual factors like linkage to 

appropriate behavioral health and housing services. 

Currently the first two teams of the pilot have been deployed in Tenderloin (launched Dec 

1, 2020) and Mission/Castro neighborhoods (launched February 1, 2021) with Team 3 

launching in Bayview April 5, 2021 . Each team does 12 hours a day/ 7 days a week. 
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In the first three months of operation, 20% of the 

800 b (non-violent, mentally disturbed) 911 calls 

were diverted away from police to SCRT. Of the 

clients encountered by SCRT, 9% were 

transported to a social/behavioral health 

program, 17% were taken to an emergency 

destination. The majority of clients, 74%, were 

engaged by SCRT, offered assessments and 

therapeutic de-escalation, reconnected with 

their providers, and/or linked to case 

management to ultimately safely remain in 

community settings. These initial results are 

KEY TERM 
Definition of an BOOB call: 

800 is the police code for calls 
to 911 from the public that 
concern a mentally disturbed 
adult. "B" denotes the relative 
priority of the call and reflects 
a situation that is not an active 
"crime in progress" nor a 
situation involving the risk of 
immediate harm to the public 
or individual of concern. 

consistent with the experience of mobile crisis programs in other jurisdictions, which report 

about 71 % of their encounters as resolved in community. SCRT will continue to seek 

input from community about its implementation and service offerini::is. 

Key elements that were requested, for this mobile behavioral health crisis response, by 

community in the survey and focus groups include: 

• Teams of trained professionals, rather than police, should respond to non-violent 
homeless and behavioral health incidents; these individuals should be equipped with 
de-escalation techniques and where available there should be a peer response. 

• Responders should provide immediate trauma-informed, low-barrier, harm reduction 
services on location where possible. 

• Non-police response is especially important in addressing behavioral health 
challenges for Black, Indigenous, and People of color who may have trauma from 
previous encounters with law enforcement. 

• Services should be voluntary, non-coercive and should include linkage to destinations 
including housing shelter and treatment programs with reconnection to provider 

• This type of response should result in reduced burdens on the health care systems 
who see these patients in urgent care and psychiatric emergency settings, and should 
reduce the rate of incarceration for those who may be homeless with a behavioral 
health diagnosis. 

• Consider additional types of calls that the mobile response team could respond to 
beyond 800B to further reduce police interactions. 
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• Support mobile response roll-out and track outcomes to ensure it is effective at 
providing an alternative to police responses to nonviolent calls. 

2. Create a mobile, non-police response for non-violent situations involving 
individuals experiencing homelessness. 

This type of approach can be seen in different constellations throughout the country, 

generally focusing on trauma informed services, immediate needs, de-escalation, warm 

hand-offs to services, and the ability to be mobile and meet people where they are at. 

Concurrent to this Alternatives to Policing process, city teams met to evaluate calls and 

responses, and a facilitated community group met regularly to envision what it this might 

look like for San Francisco. As the city creates housing options for people experiencing 

homelessness, reactivates emergency shelter, and diversifies our health and safety 

response for people on the street, we are on track to decrease unsheltered homelessness. 

Key to the city's success will be ongoing investment in public-private solutions that can 

respond quickly to people experiencing crisis on the streets to support health and safety, 

and a commitment to evaluation so that when something works, it can be scaled up. To 

these ends, a new City staff position should: 

• Analyze data on publicly and privately funded outreach teams that work with people 

experiencing unsheltered homelessness. 

• Evaluate call-center data and data on who is served by outreach teams and develop 

a coordinated outreach plan 

• Actively coordinate public and private outreach teams to ensure interactions are 

intentional and support shared outcomes vs. being disorganized and blindly 

duplicative 

• Coordinate case conferencing as needed to support people with complex needs 

Throughout the city, there are a range of public and private teams providing some level of 

outreach on any given day. Services provided include relationship building, invitations to 

safer spaces, harm reduction and needle exchange, mobile primary care, and linkages to 

critical behavioral health resources and housing. Outreach teams need to be nimble, 
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flexible, and available to pivot at a moment's notice in order to provide care to people in 

crisis on the streets. This strength can also challenge the larger system to fully categorize 

and track all of the things that happen each day and measure outcomes at the system 

level (Are people getting housing? Are people safer? Are we diverting police calls?). 

Coordinating outcomes across teams and 

supporting people experiencing 

homelessness as a group can have an 

immediate impact for people experiencing 

homelessness and pinpoint what changes are 

needed, and where gaps exist. 

KEY TERM 
Definition of People in Crisis 

Individuals who are experiencing 
mental health and/or substance 
use crisis 

• Outreach teams should coordinate with Neighborhood Ambassadors to provide 

support and response when ambassadors encounter people in need. Ambassadors 

can also be supported with de-escalation, trauma informed strategies to 

communicate with people experiencing homelessness. 

• The City should contract with a community-based agency to provide training to 

outreach teams, neighbors and businesses to develop a shared understanding of 

what resources are available and what to do when people become aware of 

someone experiencing homelessness. 

• The City should explore the logistics of 311/911 protocols in order to handle 

alternative calls; consider new phone number, looking at integrating new models of 

response into existing infrastructure of dispatch systems citywide. The City should 

evaluate the option for a new phone number and/or a centralized call center for 

dispatching to serve diverse needs and on-going training for call takers and 

dispatchers, especially re: risk assessment. 

• A broad range of City and community partners should convene to evaluate system 

changes and determine if increasing the number of teams on the street, adapting the 

roles of existing street teams, and/or creating new support teams can decrease 

reliance on police for other non-violent, low-priority calls 

• Based on learnings from the coordinated outreach approach, community-based 

training, and evaluation of 311/911 calls, and with input from City and community 
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partners, the City should revisit outreach contracts coming up for renewal to ensure 

the programs can be adapted to support alternatives to policing strategies. 

3. Provide housing and stability for individuals in crisis 

When it comes to homelessness in particular, community input and the stakeholder 

meeting, supported by about one in five respondents, called for more investment in 

housing and respite supports, as well as more "one stop shop" solutions where a range of 

different basic needs of the unhoused, besides just shelter, can be met. There was a 

recognition that while this exists within the city and can be a good example, it needs to be 

more accessible to have an impact. 

• Design services and welcoming 24-7 sites in San Francisco communities that can 

offer support before, during, and after crisis occurs. Ensure people accessing these 

sites can also access the full suite of services offered by the city. 

• Build smaller, more localized service centers rather than one big space because 

people will walk within no more than a 6-block radius to access a service (e.g. safe 

injection). 

• Advocate with the state to use Medi-Cal to serve this population and use local 

flexible funding to ensure that no matter what, people can walk in the door and get 

support. 

• Increase the number of transitional housing opportunities that are low barrier housing 

first. 

• Expand step-down programs for longer-term, intensive, out-patient support after 

exiting residential treatment. 

• Through the Mayor's Homelessness Recovery Plan and aligned local, state, and 

federal investments in housing, including local Our City, Our Home Funding: 

increase pathways to housing by investing in a range of housing options that are 

paired with adequate services and supports. 
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Supportive Housing for people experiencing homelessness was identified by the Steering 

Committee and community, including over 50% of the survey respondents as a critical 

resource to create environments where people's needs can most effectively be supported. 

Some concrete suggestion for improving existing programs included: 

• Providing more low-barrier places like Dore Urgent Care Clinic which serves as a 

voluntary alternative to hospital emergency services for those experiencing 

escalating psychological crisis or who might require support for detoxification. Dore 

provides rapid engagement, assessment, and intervention in order to prevent further 

deterioration into an acute crisis or grave disability 

• Ensure that people extremely low income have access to safe, stable hosing options 

and address unintended consequences of developing affordable housing. "When 

the city turned [the TL Hotels that offered nightly stays for $40] into housing, that left 

e lot of hu!tli11g ho111ele!! people really homele!!11 

• Create mare housing throughout the r.ity so thr.1t people r.an pick their neighborhood 

of choice and avoid bad influences. 

• Providing more permanent, supportive housing for people with severe mental 

illnesses, that have behavioral health services and social programming because, as 

one respondent put it, "Many people thrive in that environment, but once they leave, 

they decompensate and cycle back through the system only to land there again, 

worse off than the last time." 

• Consider the L.A.'s work in "housing as healthcare" and use it as a model. 

• Increase taxes on tech companies and use those funds to increase affordable 

housing provision and space in shelters. 

4. Strengthen community engagement and equity 

Partner with the community to build awareness and support among the population served, 

the public, and those designated to provide services. 
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• Develop a public education campaign about who to call, why and when. The public 

needs to be provided with clear information about what they can expect in regards to 

the government's response when the public 

reaches out for help. 

• Outreach and service providers should 

represent the people being served and they 

should be paid a living wage. 

• Support Black & Brown communities to 

participate in the development and expansion 

of employment opportunities that are 

emerging from Alternatives to Policing. 

Government should create an intentional 

career pipeline as the field expands. 

• Design meaningful employment opportunities 

and support for peer specialists. This is a 

Bay Area Youth EMT in 
Oakland is a program that 
works with the Alameda 
County Fire Department and 
Fremont Fire Department 
with a specific mission of 
increasing diversity in the 
first responder profession by 
instructing inner-city youth in 
the EMT and Fire 
curriculum, to create civic­
minded EMTs and 
firefighters. All students are 
required to participate in 
volunteer events scheduled 
by the program and with 
schools, non-profits, 
churches, and CBOs. 

unique group of people who have lived experience with mental health and/or 

substance use disorder and many have the capacity to help others suffering from 

these crises in a way that clinicians, police, well-intentioned volunteers, cannot. But 

meaningful training and support is critical to ensure that they are not retraumatized 

In several one-on-one interviews steering committee members shared insight from 
their organizational peer advocate programs, including best practices and pitfalls to 
avoid. It is important to consider the needs of a peer advocate/counselor/specialist 
who is in life-long recovery from substance use disorder, for example, and ensure that 
they have support for vicarious trauma often experienced when engaged in direct 
service work with traumatized individuals. Proper training is also needed, such as in 
regards to the privacy rights of individuals. 

through this work. 

• Integrate new models of response with workforce training, job placement, and a 

pipeline into community-based public safety work. 

• Create ongoing positions and leverage paid interns and committed volunteers to 

enrich the environment and foster learning instead of filling gaps. 
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• Take input from the community on how services can be presented - process for 

registering concern and reporting crisis, signage, location, uniforms, etc. 

• Find ways for the community to easily access the information about what services 

and resources are available in a way that can be easily updated as programs and 

services change. 

• Consider creating a public-facing dashboard to capture and communicate progress, 

status, updates, and provide public with easy ways to provide feedback and access 

these alternatives. 

Responses from the community surveys and focus groups strongly emphasized the need 

to engage with the community, particularly in ways that lead to Building Relationships 

that are deep and lasting, and that promote a culture that "everyone belongs here, we are 

all neighbors and this is our r.ity. " SomA of thA i:-1 IOOARtArt wnyi:. tn thnt wArA" 

• providing opportunities for positive communication and compassion, channels for 

getting community input and feedback on programs and initiatives, and ways for 

families, parents, children and youth to communicate their specific needs and feel 

supported. This could include 

o Community Forums 
o Arts and Cultural Enrichment programming activities 
o Community Storytelling projects to uplift the stories and experiences of 

community 
• providing education for better understanding of behavioral health issues by 

community 

• more consistent messaging from program leaders on how community can support 

• establishing regular meetings of community members with city officials on a weekly 

basis. 

• inviting City officials and the Mayor to walk the street with outreach teams, especially 

in the Tenderloin , to get a real sense of the need. 
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Providing safety suggested area of focus for strengthening community engagement, 

and the respondents particularly emphasized the need for safer streets, could be 

achieved by: 

• doing a better and more consistent work with cleaning the city streets, 

• supporting CBOs who work with children to making sure that children feel safe, 

• doing a better job of informing people of resources, such as was done with COVID19 

campaigns that included posters regarding face coverings and testing sites, 

• more programs that focus on children's safety, especially in the Tenderloin, 

• Treating the Tenderloin as all other neighborhoods, and not like a ghetto. 

In addition, when survey respondents were asked "What should be built?" suggestions 

were consistent with the earlier responses to "What works?" and "What models and 

strategies would you suggest?" Respondents were asked to provide three suggestions 

and the majority provided at least two. The strongest suggestion (by over 80%) was to 

build Community Partnerships/Collaborations, including multidisciplinary response 

teams that would bring together mental and behavioral health professionals, social 

workers, therapists, peers, and community organizations. In line with the earlier outline 

general themes from across the data, in these responses too, the police were not 

excluded, rather their participation was suggested to be conditional on training. In addition 

to these partnerships being collaborative, further suggestion included: 
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• Specially trained arm of the police and no 

police from outside of San Francisco 

• Mentorship programs (big brother /big sister 

model) 

• More Care Ambassadors throughout the 

communities 

• Citizens run for seats on their neighborhood's 

section of a larger committee 

• Allowing business owners to join in on 

meetings reporting what is going on in their 

area 

For participanti in all th~ for.1.1i groL1pi onP. of thP 

top priorities was creation of Community Wellness 

Hubs, Moblle Units, or Cummu11lly Ci:H"Hvc:1m, 

that could serve as safe spaces to access 

resources, bring health-focused activities to the 

neighborhood and address spatial inequality by 

SFPD's recent grant from the 
California Violence 
Intervention Program (CalVIP) 
is a good example of this type 
of mentorship. This pairs up a 
Life Coach with lived 
experiences growing up or 
living among a community 
where there is a high risk of 
interpersonal violence with a 
small number of youth of color 
who are experiencing the 
same. The Life Coach's 
mission is to help provide 
youth with the support, 
resources, and coaching 

placing basic resources (food, bathroom, water, and housing) for the community, , in one 

place rather than multiple locations. This was especially true for youth and LGBTQI 

community members. The idea of Community Ambassadors from community members 

with lived experience was also widely supported. 

5. Integrate harm reduction model throughout outreach and services 

Both the Steering Committee and community respondents called out improvements in the 

approach to services and outreach across the continuum of solutions for people 

experiencing homelessness as well as those with behavioral health challenges. By far the 

most consistent message was about offering compassionate services by genuinely 

engaging with clients from a trauma-informed, respectful and empathetic perspective. A 

calm and inquisitive approach to people with obvious severe mental illness instead of [the 

police use of] overt verbal aggression, name calling and physical force could change the 

need for a physical interaction. Furthermore, alternative solutions should be designed in 

ALTERNATIVES TO POLICING I April 2021 Report 2642 29 



a way that does not threat the homeless and people with behavioral health issues as a 

"disease to treat" but as individuals with dignity and humanity, and as members of the 

community - hallmarks of the harm reduction approach. There was a request to engage 

with people well before a crisis occurs, not just addressing someone who is in an acute 

situation; this would require meeting someone where they are without violating their 

privacy. 

Recommendations from community surveys and focus groups aligned with these 

priorities, and included some further elaborations. Almost half (45%) of all the survey 

respondents suggested there needs to be better access to treatment, affordable care, 

better infrastructure of care, improving access to care and communication between 

different agencies. The suggestions converged mostly around the idea of zero-barrier 

access to mental health clinics and providers where clients can walk in without 

appointments and at locations that are near. More than one third of the respondents 

included in that the need for more healthcare and wellness infrastructure, including 

• Wraparound care and alternative care; 

• Growing more programs that go beyond 9-5 business hours; 

• Supporting programs that provide wellness, therapy and self-help resources. 

• Strengthening different modalities and approaches such as preventative care, 

based on harm reduction models; 

• Expanding language accessible programs, as most programs are in English only. 

• Better use of technology: Apps that help people with common interests connect, and 

apps inform about (free) services and free access to fun events or places in the city; 

An app that quickly and easily gives options besides calling 911 and an advertising 

campaign to make that app be known and accessible 

• Cross-agency information and form sharing and clear, unified protocols for 

engagement. 

• Starting early - more resources for addressing mental and behavioral health in 

schools K-12 

• More education, better data collection and structured opportunities for knowledge 

sharing 

• More institutional / politicians' accountability and transparency 

• Developing consistent training programs that are mandatory for all partners involved 

in the collaboration or service delivery 
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• Provide safe consumption sites. 

Furthermore, more than one in 4 survey respondents (29%) underscored the need to focus on 

Support and empowerment of the client, such that a successful program would focus on helping 

the clients help themselves. Components of that kind of an approach could include: 

• career pathways for people of diverse populations, 

• positive/affirming messaging throughout city, 

• psycho-education about some basics of behavioral health for all city depts, 

• contracted agencies and mobile therapy service at various locations throughout the 

city 

• therapy/mental health supports where it can happen confidentially, 

• uplifting culturally sensitive services including music, art, indigenous, healing circles, 

• transformative/restorative justice practices 

Ayc::1lr1, Wlll::!11 ~UIVl::!Y 11::!~!JUIIUt:!lll~ Wt:!11::! c::1~k.ell "Wl1c::1l ~l1uulll I.JI::! 1.Julll ?" UVl::!I eO% µ1 lurll!L.1::!U uuiluir 1y 

Health and Wellness solutions, that include not only expanded access to traditional healthcare 

but to models based on wellness, self-help, therapy and harm reduction, and over 50% suggested 

building Long term Support and solutions on case management basis, finding better ways to 

track that case work, and providing food and shelter and clean city streets for the benefit of those 

who do not have shelter as well and as the benefit of all in those communities. 

6. Design an iterative and reflective process that measures impact on 

outcomes and can adapt as needed 

• This process should be rooted in the commitment to a continuous improvement plan and 

data-informed decisions. Such a process would include convening an interagency 

public/private group to drive this work and create accountability. A vehicle or forum 

tasked with ensuring that recommendations are implemented, communities are being 

engaged and included, and that the alternatives remain a funding priority beyond a 
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single mayoral administration and that can withstand turnover of the Board of 

Supervisors. 

o E.g. Office of Justice Innovation, Office of Accountability housed within Mayor's 

Office 

o E.g. MA Office of Child Advocate as one example of an independent body 

created through legislation that is outside of a mayoral administration 

This group could be tasked with the 

type of evaluation and learning 

suggested by survey respondents, 

steering committee members, focus 

group participants: 

o Get consistent input and 

feedback directly from 

communities most impacted by 

police violence, including 

unhoused/j ustice-involved 

individuals, service providers, 

and peer specialists using 

multiple modalities from 

community input sessions to 

surveys. 

o Engage and coordinate with 

KEY TERM - Prop C 

Prop C - A gross receipts tax initiative to 
fund homelessness services was on the 
ballot for San Francisco voters in San 
Francisco County, California, on 
November 6, 2018. It received 61 percent 
approval, and San Francisco city officials 
certified the measure as approved. 

A yes vote was a vote in favor of 
authorizing the city and county of San 
Francisco to fund housing and 
homelessness services by taxing certain 
businesses at the following rates: 
0.175 percent to 0.69 percent on gross 
receipts for businesses with over $50 
million in gross annual receipts, or 1.5 
percent of payroll expenses for certain 
businesses with over $1 billion in gross 
annual receipts and administrative offices 
in San Francisco. 

existing community task forces and work groups, such as Mental Health SF's 
Implementation Working Group and the Prop C Oversight Committee to ensure 
alignment with goals, strategies, and resources. 

o Ongoing collaboration and information-sharing between San Francisco's 
alternatives and other programs across the country with an eye towards sharing 
and integrating best and promising practices. 

• Long-term investment is absolutely critical. Pilots and short-term (1-2 year) initiatives are 

difficult to stand up and make an impact over such a short period of time and challenging 

to hire and staff. 
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• Develop a community learning group (i.e., COVID testing group) that includes providers, 

community leaders, and share best practices across neighborhoods to increase 

coordination and efficacy. 

• Consistent, regular review and evaluation of alternative models of response that are 

established, especially collecting 

data regarding outcomes, that are 

uniform across programs and can 

be compared easily to existing 

metrics used to gauge policing 

outcomes. The Controller's office 

currently evaluates and provides 

a performance scorecard on a 

rP011lnr hn"-ic, r1nrl r.rn 1lrl pntPnfo=1lly 

perform this type of measurement 

di IU di ldlyi:.ii:.. 

KEY TERM: - Scorecard 

City Performance Scorecards provide timely 
information on the efficiency and 
effectiveness of San Francisco government 
in eight service areas. The goal is to provide 
citizens and policy makers with information 
that makes the government smarter and 
more effective while delivering the best 
results for taxpayers. 

See https://sfgov.org/scorecards 

o Prioritize measurement of outcomes: change in criminal legal system 
engagement as a result of street level interaction or crisis; decrease in number of 
police interactions or responses; increase in connection and use of services, etc. 

In relation to creating teams for both homelessness and behavioral health responses, more than 

a third (35%) of survey respondents suggested creating a non-police, state-wide, multidisciplinary 

panel (comprising educators, therapists, counselors, builders-contractors, politicians, teachers, 

social workers, mental health experts, and foundations and philanthropic funders) tasked with 

jointly developing, a financially and politically realistic (given the diversity of perspectives and 

expertise on the panel), plan to address mental and behavioral health and homeless issues. 

Making this panel state-wide would allow exchange of experiences and best practices between 

different cities and counties. 

Focus groups discussions echoed many of the above suggestions for strengthening the 

procedures and processes. Suggestions included supporting, and adding more organizations like 

Urban Alchemy and Care Ambassadors; creating Mediation Teams made up of LGBTQI people, 

people of color, people who are multilingual, and other diverse groups; supporting Community 

Patrolling as a model of community self-determination, with a point of contact in multiple districts; 

engaging the Fire Department whenever possible instead of the police; and establishing an 
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Oversight Committee that would hold all parties in the partnership, including the government 

departments, accountable for their roles and duties. 
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APPENDIX I 
Steering Committee Meeting Summary Notes 

January 20. 2021 

MAIN TAKEAWAYS 

Support for the SCRT multi-disciplinary team made up of a community paramedic, a 

behavioral health clinician, and a behavioral health peer specialist, as an alternative to police 

involvement with nonviolent situations pertaining to homelessness and behavioral health. SCRT 

would have a yearly response capacity of 11,000-17,000 calls which would replace the Police 

Department responses in this area of work. The piloting stage of SCRT showed that 5-8 

individuals can be served in a 12-hour shift; that community paramedics need to be given time 

and space to reach people and focus on their needs; that the team was able to provide 

alternatives to hospitalii.c:1liu11, l11c1l "5150" were avoided due to de-escalation; 

Funding for CompaBBionate Altem~Livt:: R1::1~µu118t.! Tt.!am (CART) a community-based and 

community-driven model that would respond to Priority C Calls and support people experiencing 

homelessness. It should have a call-line separate from 911/311, and extensive peer supports 

and training. 

For the purpose of further and transparent community engagement, a "community dashboard" 

for data access will include input from communities that may be underrepresented from the 

existing data. 

March 13. 2021 

MAIN TAKEAWAYS 

Community Engagement and getting input and ideas from the community in a number of 

ways: 

1. HRC community focus groups. Steering Committee Members will receive an invite to 

listen in. 

2. Community Survey 
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3. Recommendations for the next phase on what community engagement should look like 

March 10. 2021 

MAIN TAKEAWAYS 

Defining the shared language. Developing a glossary of terms that would include defining the 

meaning of key concepts that are part of plans and objectives. In addition, naming of dispatch 

codes for easier communication. 

EXAMPLES OF TERMS TO DEFINE 

Economic Equity 

Behavioral Health 

Crisis 

Threatening 

Trauma-Informed 

Harm reduction 

Beds 

February 24. 2021 

MAIN TAKEAWAYS 

EXAMPLES OF DISPATCH CODE NAMES 

601 - Trespass: unauthorized person 
occupying premises of another 

910-Wellbeing check 

915 - Unhoused person, encampment-+ Routed to 
311/HSOC 

916 - Suspicious person in a car 

917 - Suspicious person 

919 - Sit/lie ordinance violation 

920 - Aggressively panhandling 

Discussion about safety concerns. How to address clients feeling unsafe, and being worried 

about how the alternatives to policing will impact their ability to access protection and security. 

Excelsior neighborhood: replacing the police with peers needs to ensure safety for the peers 

and effective communication to help people understand what the work is on and addressing 

fears. Tenderloin area: a practitioner got stabbed in the face by someone having a psychiatric 

break; overdoses that cannot be reversed; traumatic for people doing the work - the importance 

of taking care of them. Training needs to happen regularly enough so as people step into new 
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roles, they have access. 

Data collection/sharing. As alternatives for different purposes and different communities are 

developed need to make sure that all collect the same set of data using metrics that are easy to 

compare to the police. 

Central communication plan. System to coordinate services, mapping what services exist, 

and where the gaps are, better insight into how services coordinate and how they overlap. 

Centralized call center for dispatching all needs and better training for those 

dispatchers. Continuous public information sharing on status and updates. A way for the 

residents to be able to give feedback and access alternatives. The goal should be to assure that 

wherever you are, you should be within walking distance from a safe space. More safe spaces 

that are easy to access/get to (SFPL, rec centers, neighborhood houses, etc.) 

Creation of a training program for community members in recovery to work as outreach 

providers/ navigators and to give back, to have purpose, to develop skills. 

Addressing Accountability. Having regular intervals to check in for accountability (every 3 

months) and an annual opportunity for community feedback and report. Establish an Office of 

Accountability tasked to ensure ongoing community engagement, accomplishment of action 

items (and if not, why). Approach this by creating an accountability structure in the community 

too. Identify practitioners on the ground doing the work - to "hand over the keys of 

accountability" to. Build in specific auditing for accountability - if there are quarterly budget and 

outcome reports, it is easier to improve. 

Assuring sustainability. Plugging in directed community and youth too - to have compensation 

to help support and sustain the work - if it is in a commission or through nonprofit or CBO, pay 

them. 
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February 17. 2021 

MAIN TAKEAWAYS 

Points from Dir. Davis presentation that should be principles: 

• Inappropriate policing triggers and produces harm 

• Empathy without resources is not empathy; empathy is not just another referral 

• Setting realistic expectations -won't be done by end of year but is an ongoing effort 

• What has to happen to build trust and hope 

Themes seen in the survey responses so far: 

• Access to resources, basic needs 18.61% 

• Education 4.38% 

• Training 20.44% 

• Empathy/ Understanding 14.60% 

• represents/ produces harm 58.03% 

• Response time/ behavior/ 9.12% 

• Need the police/ consequences for criminal activity/ accountability 5.84% 

• safety of nonpolice 4.74% 

February 10. 2021 

MAIN TAKEAWAYS 

Concern about HOT team relationship to the police - there needs to be clear departmental 

guidance to the HOT team regarding referring situations to the police. What happens if HOT 

encounters something presumptively illegal? Building an alternative response without reliance 

on police. HOT tries not to be an extension of the police. While HOT de facto does not call 

police when HOT members witness/observe illegal activity, it is appropriate for them to call 

police when there is violent/abusive activity that requires intervention. There should be clear 

policy for HOT so that they are clear re: use of police for aid. 
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No Prop C funds should be used in the alternative response to police - should be another 

funding source. 

Communication and info. Mental Health SF 

reimagining what the Mental Health Service can look 

like. More advertising, more billboards, e.g. a lot of 

people don't know about 1380 Howard. The waiting 

room is usually empty, first thing people see is 

sheriff deputy in the lobby - this is intimidating. 

If multiple people engage with the same messages 

and similar offers - great. But if it is conflicting (stay 

here, no move, we have housing, no we don't) -- it 

erodes trust that people have, which is already thin. 

There is fatigue that people may experience from 

having multiple outreach teams talking to them. 

Expansion of service to include the 

undocumented. Messaging needs to get to folks 

that they are not going to be turned in or that the 

police will not be called - if applying for service (e.g . 

Healthy SF). Remove the huge cultural 

communication barrier to build trusting 

relationship. 

KEY TERM: 
Mental Health SF 

A program created by the city and 
county of San Francisco to 
provide access to mental health 
services, substance use 
treatment, and psychiatric 
medications to all adult San 
Francisco residents with mental 
illness and/or substance abuse 
who are homeless, uninsured, or 
enrolled in Medi-Cal or Healthy 
San Fra, 1<.:i::;cu. Tile ordinance 
establishes a Mental Health SF 
Implementation Working Group 
(IWG), a 13-member board, to 
advise its d0velopment and 
implementation and eventually to 
present final recommendations 
concerning the design and any 
sleµs that may be required to 
ensure a successful 
im lementation of Mental Health 

Establish a central dispatch, to dispatch teams based on need - even if they call 311/911, it 

would be referred to the central dispatch to determine what team to call. There should be a 

standard criterion for assessment and referrals, and a way for teams to coordinate if they need 

assistance. This would take burden off the caller, if there is only one point of contact for the 

public. 
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January 27. 2021 

MAIN TAKEAWAYS 

Evaluation of Police Calls. Goal is to get a sense of priorities from the steering committee on 

what calls should be diverted. Priority A, crime in progress cases, violent situations - those are 

the most challenging. CART is not intended to respond to incidents where someone has a 

weapon and/or is threatening harm. 

SCRT Follow-up. Team 2 launch in one week. Onboarding additional staff to build in threshold 

languages, for both clinicians and community paramedics. 

Families and children. Develop a plan for addressing needs of children/ families with CPS 

involvement. Maybe divert calls regarding children to comp crisis without revealing the age of 

the child. 

Collaboration. Devise a way for the system around SCRT to respond. Outreach workers, 

community ambassadors etc. - need to devise a way to provide treatment before diagnosis, too. 

Clarify the ways that CBOs can get into a collaboration with SCRT without duplicating efforts. 

Make sure there is good coordination and solid oversight between different specialized units. 

Cooperation to make sure that other teams with other specialties can coordinate to meet 

people's unique needs - a lot of the teams are trying to build an ongoing relationship - how do 

you make crisis response and ongoing relationship building teams coordinate to share 

information and strengthen support for people. Include Mental Health SF in recommendations 

for collaboration (not coordination). 

Cost efficiency. Concerns of the cost of SCRT is high vs. total interactions the team is 

having. If this is non-governmental how should the budget be structured to make sure it does 

not create barriers relating to outcomes deliverables. What about the overhead admin costs for 

non-profits? 

January 20. 2021 

MAIN TAKEAWAYS 
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Funding and budget for CART. Important facet of this is that the initiative be community-driven 

and funded, not dependent on city leadership so that the communities are responsible and not 

always depend on government. The budget should be based on the CAHOOTS model, adjusted 

up in salary based on cost of living and added to the number of calls staff will respond to. Find 

the right balance between budgeting for street response and upstream resources/longer-term 

supporU"interventions" is needed to address the common experiences of reaching people but 

not being able to offer them the resources that they need. 

Tracking. Way of tracking is needed about whether or not residents make fewer calls to SFPD 

once they know that an alternative resource is available. 

January 13. 2021 

MAIN TAKEAWAYS 

Change Laws/Enforcement Discussion. Open-air drug use and selling should not be 

criminalized, but cannot be openly allowed. A lot of people selling the drugs are human 

trafficking victims, there needs to be a way to address this. When things are not built in or 

mandatory they end up not being enforced. It is important to look at this from the perspective of 

people's rights, and these are also people's children, loved ones. Safe injection sites are a real 

alternative and there should be more. 

Better communication of work to the community. Better communicate what harm reduction 

means, and what is available, and what is on the horizon, people should know about the City's 

creativity in addressing this. People also need to feel welcome, 24-hour, low barrier sites to be 

connected to services. 

October 14. 2021 

MAIN TAKEAWAYS 

Discussion on 311 calls. 311 service cannot provide breakdown of calls by nature, it can only 

provide information on how many calls are transferred to 911- most calls are transferred to non-
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emergency. 311 also does not collect demographic information on the caller, nor their GPS 

location. 311 does not make direct transfers to SF Suicide Prevention Hotline, but it does 

provide the number. Most 311 calls concern street cleaning, graffiti, etc. Currently calls about 

Covid too. Needs analysis is necessary to comparing the calls coming in, to what alternatives 

there are in place (or being underutilized) and what capacities they have. Then id the gaps. 

Ask SF HOT Team, Street Medicine and Mobile Crisis to provide some info on their current 

capacity - and if it was doubled or tripled, would that be helpful? 

Organize a Public Education campaign on proper route for compassionate responses. 

September 16. 2021 

MAIN TAKEAWAYS 

Important to think outside the box and think upstream about preempting police intervention. 

Prioritize recommendations about what kind of alternatives people want to recommend. 

Be clear that the Steering Committee's charge is the structural redesign and building 

community-based infrastructure that makes policing unnecessary/less necessary than it is now. 

Lifting up and resourcing the expertise that is already in the community and making that the 

standard, not the exception. Form subcommittees for specific goals and reconvene in those 

larger groups. 

Be critical-minded about who is not included in the data and why, in order to put a critical lens 

on the data sets understand what those are telling us. Build a community around those who 

might be vulnerable and disconnected/unheard/unnoticed. Not to forget family members 

involved with the person in crisis. If a member is in crisis, the entire family is in crisis! 

Consider models that could work. Criminal justice profiles and "heat map" are good models of 

data that were helpful to guide conversations previously around reform. 

Outreach/Engagement: members want to make sure we are reaching out to the public and 

stakeholders identified by members through the survey. Consider who are the other 
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players: School district? What are the student resource officers doing? Further, ADP, JPD, 

closure of CJ4, Reentry - to be included. 

Being Solution-Oriented. Prioritizing what initial steps to take, what is the low hanging fruit that 

allows acting now vs. later. 

There are untapped ideas or strategies in communities that we have never heard of and don't 

know about - solicit and incorporate community engagement. 

Need a combination of building community capacity that doesn't exist yet AND supporting 

existing capacity. Alternative to police should not end up being poor people policing other poor 

people. 
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APPENDIX II 
STEERING COMMITTEE MEMBERS: 

Community Stakeholders 

ARTURO CARRILLO 
Director, Street Violence lnteNention Program (SFSVIP) 
under HealthRIGHT360 

The SFVIP is a street outreach and crisis response initiative to reduce 
and intervene in street violence in the City and County of San 
Francisco. The SFSVIP consists of three components: street outreach, 
crisis response, and public education and community mobilization. We 

- are responsible for the hot spot areas of the city to include the 
Western Addition, Tenderloin, SOMA, Mission/Excelsior, Bayview/Potrero Hill, Visitation Valley 
districts. 

Mr. Carrillo has worked for Walden House/HealthRIGHT360 and is a diversely qualified 
professional with over 40 years' administrative, clinical and management experience in the non­
profit behavioral health arena. Areas of expertise include Operations/Facilities Management, 
Systems Development, Program Administration, Training & Development, Fiscal Management, 
and Violence Intervention/Prevention. 

VITKAEISEN 
President and Chief Executive Officer 
HealthRIGHT 360 

Vitka is the President and Chief Executive Officer of HealthRIGHT 360, 
a healthcare provider for very low income and otherwise marginalized 
Californians. With over 30 years of experience in human services, Vitka 
has dedicated her career to supporting people and communities 
struggling with addiction and incarceration through the provision of 
integrated, compassionate, and relevant care. Since being appointed to 
her current role in 2010, Vitka has led HealthRIGHT 360 through a 

series of mergers, growing the organization to serve over 30,000 people annually. 

A frequent speaker on innovative practices, Vitka is the president of the board of directors of the 
California Council of Community Behavioral Health Agencies, the vice president of the board of 
directors of the California Association of Drug and Alcohol Program Executives, and a member 
of the board of directors of the National Council for Behavioral Health. Vitka earned an M.S.W. 
from San Francisco State University, and a Doctorate from the Harvard Graduate School of 
Education. Vitka is a former injection heroin user; she participated in substance use disorder 
treatment over 30 years ago at the agency she now leads. 
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ROMA GUY 

Roma Guy has been a community activist in San Francisco since the 
1970s. She was born in Maine and earned a Masters in Social Work 
after which she worked in Africa for nine years. Her work has focused 
on women's and LGBTQ rights, and she is a founder of the San 
Francisco Women's Building, La Casa de las Madres, SF Women 
Against Rape, and The Women's Foundation of California. She has 

Roma Rides served on the statewide Health Access Board of Directors, the San 
c: ... ....... llovolutio. \ 

Francisco Mayor's Local Homeless Board, Juvenile Justice Reform 
Blue Ribbon Panel, among many others. 

In 2018 she was chosen by the National Women's History Project as one of its honorees for 
Women's History Month in the United States. Roma Guy currently serves on the Board of 
Directors of Metta Fund, a private foundation committed to San Francisco's aging population 
and those furthest from access and opportunity. 

SHEELA IVLEV 

As a South Asian occupational therapist born and raised in San 
Francisco, Sheela understands health and wellness from diverse 
perspectives and values the connection of culture and healing. She 
became a Certified Mental Health Integrative Medicine Provider to 
incorporate traditional and holistic methods with her clinical education 
and training. 

Early in her career, Sheela learned to provide her patients with the highest level of care while 
working for top Bay Area hospitals, including Stanford Health Care, Sutter Health's Mills­
Peninsula, and San Francisco VA Health Care System. As an occupational therapist, Sheela 
treats both physical and mental health and addresses every aspect of a person's life. 

In her experience as a clinical educator, while running an independent occupational therapy 
mental health clinic, and working in hospitals, Sheela has found that the greatest gaps in care 
were in mental health, wellness, and advocacy. Her focus is on helping individuals and 
professionals meet their· goals to improve daily life and work performance. 
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, DR. KENNETH KIM 
Senior Director of Programs 
GLIDE Foundation 

Dr. Kenneth Kim is Senior Director of Programs at GLIDE Foundation, 
where he leads the design, implementation and evaluation of an 
integrated community engagement and dynamic service system for 

~ the homeless and marginalized communities living in San Francisco's 
111,., '/ ' hr ,ii a,· . Tenderloin neighborhood. He joined GLIDE as Clinical Director in 

2015. Kenneth represents GLIDE as a member of the Community Advisory Committee for 
TLHIP, San Francisco's Domestic Violence Consortium, as well as other collaborations with Bay 
Area community-based organizations and city agencies. Kenneth is a licensed clinical 
psychologist specializing in community mental health, foster care system, and treatment of 
trauma and has worked in human services for over 20 years. His volunteer, training, and work 
experience include but not limited to programs addressing violence prevention, severe mental 
illness, substance use, psychological evaluation, and crisis intervention. Kenneth is an advisor 
for the Korean American Community Foundation of San Francisco and board member at TNDC. 
Kenneth earned his doctorate in Clinical Psychology from The Wright Institute in Berkeley and 
bachelor's degree in Social Work from UC Davis. 

,;1 CHARLES LERNER 
Executive Director 
The Crossroads 

Charles Lerner has served as the Executive Director of At The 
Crossroads since May 2019. In Charles' first year at ATC, the 
organization increased its revenue by 69% and began working on three 
key strategic initiatives including a strategic plan, a program evaluation 
project with Stanford University, and a social marketing campaign. Prior 
to joining ATC, Charles was the founding Executive Director of Boston 
CASA (Court Appointed Special Advocates). Charles' previous work 

has also included leading the first LGBTQ foster-to-permanency program in California as well as 
teaching at multiple universities including California State University, East Bay and Harvard 
University. He holds a master's degree in marriage and family therapy. 
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LENA MILLER 
Founder & CEO Urban Alchemy 

Lena Miller is the founder and Chief Executive Officer of Urban Alchemy 
a non-profit organization based in San Francisco. Urban Alchemy was 
founded to bring a sense of peace and respect to America's most 
chaotic urban areas that are struggling with the intersection of extreme 
poverty, addiction mental illness, and hopelessness. Urban Alchemy 
prioritizes employing former long-term offenders who have rededicated 
their lives to healing and redemption through service. UA currently 
employs over 700 individuals to provide services to the community 
through contracts with Los Angeles and San Francisco's Department of 

Public Works, BART, the Department of Human Resources, San Francisco's Homeless & 
Housing Services, Hastings Law School, Light House for the Blind, and Supreme. 

Lena is the founder and former Director of the Bayshore Navigation Center under 5 Keys 
Charter School, a 127-bed facility for homeless individuals in San Francisco. She resigned from 
this position in August of 2019 in order to begin her internship to complete her PsyD degree. 

Lena is also the founder and former Executive Director, for over 24 years, of the Hunters Point 
Family agency and is a life-long resident of the Bayview Hunters Point district of San Francisco. 
She has over twenty- five years of experience working with at-risk youth in group homes, 
schools, and camps. She has worked for Hunters Point Family since its inception in 1997. 

Through her work at the Hunters Point Family, Lena has written, developed, and implemented 
youth development/leadership programs that serve the African American and Pacific Islander 
families in 8 public housing communities throughout San Francisco's Bayview Hunters Point 
community. She has also implemented various environmental programs, including community 
gardens in public housing communities, a Farmers market, and street greening and 
beautification. 

A graduate of the University of California at Berkeley, she holds a Masters Degree in Social 
Work from San Francisco State University, a Masters Degree in Psychology from University of 
San Francisco, and a Doctorate in Psychology (PsyD) degree from the University of San 
Francisco. 

Prior to her work at HPF, she was a Special Assistant to the Mayor under Mayor Willie L. Brown 
Jr's Administration, in the Office of Equity Programs where she helped to resolve discrimination 
complaints among City employees and ensured fair participation for Minority and Women 
Business Enterprises in City contracting. 

Lena was appointed to the San Francisco's Mental Health Board in 2011 after serving on San 
Francisco's Urban Forestry Commission from 2005-2009. 

Lena has been an Adjunct Professor for the University of San Francisco's Masters in Behavioral 
Health Program. She has provided Crisis Intervention training for the SFPD in the areas of 
Complex Trauma and Emotional Intelligence and has trained over 600 officers over the last 
three years. She has also provided this training for over 200 former long term-offenders and 
over 200 public housing residents. 
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KYRIELL NOON 
CEO, Hamilton Families 

Kyriell Noon is the CEO of Hamilton Families-the leading nonprofit 
service provider to families experiencing homelessness in the San 
Francisco Bay Area. Kyriell Noon joined Hamilton Families as the 
CEO in October 2020. Prior to Hamilton Families, Noon served for 20 
years in the SF non-profit sector at Juma Ventures, Youth and Family 
Enrichment Services, STOP AIDS Project, San Francisco AIDS 

Foundation, and GLIDE. As Chief Impact Officer at GLIDE, he oversaw the organization's 
Programs, Church, Center for Social Justice, and Data, Strategy, and Evaluation teams. As part 
of their Senior Leadership, he provided critical strategic leadership on matters related to 
GLIDE's community-facing programming. Originally from New York City, Noon attended Vassar 
College and Harvard University, is engaged to be married, and has two teenage sons. 

• 
. "•, \ .,~ ',1.,·1 

:~ ~~ PO\ 

ll#tlU 
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LAURA THOMAS 
Director of Harm Reduction Policy 
San Francisco AIDS Foundation 

Laura Thomas is the Director of Harm Reduction Policy for the San 
Francisco AIDS Foundation where she is leading work on drug user 
health, harm reduction, and access to treatment, with a focus on 
efforts to open supervised consumption services in San Francisco. 
She has been advocating on HIV and public health issues in San 

Francisco for over 30 years, since becoming involved in AIDS activism through ACT UP in San 
Francisco. She has worked for the Drug Policy Alliance, community-based organizations in San 
Francisco's Tenderloin neighborhood, the San Francisco Department of Public Health, and as a 
health policy consultant. She was appointed to the Entertainment Commission in 2016, where 
she serves in the public health seat. She is a member of the San Francisco HIV Community 
Planning Council. She volunteers with the Golden Gate Raptor Observatory and SFAF Syringe 
Access Services. She's a former co-president of the Harvey Milk LGBT Democratic Club and 
was a founding organizer of the SF Dyke March. She graduated from the University of 
California, Berkeley with a Masters in Public Health and a Masters in Public Policy. 
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Joe Wilson 
Executive Director, Hospitality House 

Joe began his time with the Hospitality House as a shelter resident in 
1983 after finding himself homeless in San Francisco, and his career 
started here. He was a volunteer and soon after became the shelter 
manager. For the next 20 years, Joe continued to gain experience and 
knowledge working in various leadership roles at other nonprofits and 
labor unions, and led policy reform, community organizing , and budget 
advocacy campaigns. In 2012, Joe came back to Hospitality House and 
had been leading our community building and policy advocacy work for 

the past five years and became the Executive Director after a national search in 2017. 

"We considered dozens of candidates in a competitive hiring process, and Joe emerged as the 
clear front runner," said Jeanie Bunker, Board President. "To have a former shelter resident 
become the leader of our organization is the ultimate example of how our peer-based model 
truly works." 

'This community has cared about me; welcomed me. nurtured me, and inspired mP. fnr mnre. 
than half my life. As we (continue) our next half-century of civic renewal, I'm humbled by the 
sense of purpose and commitment by the entire Hospitality House family. Above all, I'm excited 
about the promise of self-determination, community empowerment, and new possibilities, as our 
journey of discovery continues, together." 

STEERING COMMITTEE MEMBERS: 
CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO 

Angelica Almeida, Director, Forensic/Justice Involved Behavioral Health Services, 
SF Department of Public Health 

Umecke Cannariato, Director of Outreach and Temporary Shelter, 
SF Department of Homelessness and Supportive Housing 

Lt. Mario Molina, 

Simon Pang 

Robert Smuts 
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APPENDIX Ill 
Multilingual Survey Tools 

English Version 

Survey on Alternatives to Policing 

In September 2020, Mayor London N. Breed announced 
the formation of a Steering Committee to help guide the 
City's process for identifying alternatives to police 
response for non-violent calls to 911 and 311. Ending the 
use of police as first responders to situations that 
involve behavioral health and or homelessness and 
other non-violent calls is part of the Mayor's roadmap 
to fundamentally changing the way that the City 
handles public safety, which Mayor Breed announced in 
June. 

SAMHSA a division of The United States Department of 
Health and Human Services explains behavioral health 
- The term .. behavioral health" in this context means 
the promotion of mental health, resilience and 
wellbeing; the treatment of mental and substance use 
disorders; and the support of those who experience 
and/or are in recovery from these conditions. along with 
their families and communities. 

1. After reading the description above, do you agree with 
the SAMHSA definition? 

~ 

, , yes 

no 

Other (please specify) 
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2. What (if anything) would you add or take away from 
the SAMHSA definition? 

3. Have you ever witnessed or personally had an 
exchange with the police for a nonviolent incident, that 
might include behavioral health or substance abuse? 

LJ No 

U Other (please specify) 

4. If yes, based on your experience, what would you 
suggest happen in a similar situation? 
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survey on Alternatives to Poucmg 

The City and County of San Francisco uses the Federal 
Definition of Homelessness: 

Living in a supe1-vised publicly or privately operated 
shelter designated to provide a temporary living 
arrangement; or 
With a primary nighttime residence that is a public or 
private place not designed for or ordinarily used as a 
regular sleeping accommodation for human beings, 
including a car, park, abandoned building, bus or train 
station, airport, or camping ground. 
The City and County of San Francisco also uses an 
expanded definition of homelessness which includes 
persons who are "doubled-up" in the homes of family or 
friends; individuals staying in jails, hospitals, or 
rehabilitation facilities; and families living in Single 
Room Occupancy (SRO) units 

• 5. Have you ever witnessed or personally had an 
exchange with the police fo( a nonviolent incident. that 
might include homelessness? 

:_ : Yes 

~ i No 

-~ Other (please specify) 

6. If yes. based on your experience, what would you 
suggest happen in a similar situation? 
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7. What if any concerns do you have with dispatching or 
not dispatching the police for nonviolent calls? 

8. What is working when it comes to behavioral health 
and homeless inte1·ventions on the street? 

9. What strategies or programming would you 
recommend in the areas of homelessness or behavioral 
health - that doesn't include the police? 

Homelessne 
ss 

Behavioral 
health 

Substance 
abuse 

Other areas· 

10. What would a successful program look like? What 
would change? What would be the outcomes/impact on 
the individual and community? 

Individuals 

Community 

Police 

Other 

:1 \\/hat needs to be built. =(paneled or char.ged tu gc~ 
berrer out::ornes? 
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12. Please share any examples. models 01· ideas you 
have for alternatives to policing. 

Suggestion 
1 

Suggestion 
2 

Suggestion 
3 

13. What is your race or ethnicity? 

,~.sian 

Black or Af, ican .\merican 

Lat nx 

t-.liddt~ Ea$terr. or North African 

Muttiracia'. or ~·1Ultfethn:c 

f'.iative American or Alaska Native 

fl.Jative Ha1:1aiian or ether Pacific !stander 

Another race or ethnicity please describe below 

Self-desc, ioe below: 

..;. :,~ -

---i:, 

1S. What is your gender? 

Spanish Version 
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Alternativas a la vigilancia policial 
En septiembre de 2020, la alcaldesa London N. Breed anunci6 la formaci6n de un 
Comite Directive para ayudar a guiar el proceso de la ciudad para identificar 
alternativas a la respuesta policial para las llamadas no violentas al 911 y 311. Poner 
fin al uso de la policia como socorristas a situaciones que involucran salud conductual o 
falta de vivienda y otras llamadas no violentas es parte del plan de la alcaldesa para 
cambiar fundamentalmente la forma en que la ciudad maneja la seguridad publica, que 
la alcaldesa de Breed anunci6 en junio. 

SAMHSA una division del Departamento de Salud y Servicios Humanos de los Estados 
Unidos explica la salud conductual - El termino "salud conductual" en este contexto 
significa la promoci6n de la salud mental, la resiliencia y el bienestar; el tratamiento de 
trastornos mentales y de consume de sustancias; y el apoyo de aquellos que 
experimentan y/o estan en recuperaci6n de estas condiciones, junto con sus familias y 
comunidades. 

1. Despues de leer la descripci6n anterior, lesta de acuerdo con la definici6n 
de SAMHSA? 

a. Si 
b. no 
c. Otro (especificar) 

2. lQue (si hay algo) agregaria o quitaria de la definici6n de SAMHSA? 

3. lAlguna vez ha presenciado o ha tenldo un intercambio personal con la 
policia por un incidente no violento, que podria incluir salud conductual o 
abuso de sustancias? 

a. Si 
b. No 
c. Otro (especificar) 

4. 4. Si su respuesta es si, en su experiencia, lque sugiere que suceda en 
una situaci6n similar? 
La ciudad y el condado de San Francisco utiliza la Definici6n Federal de 
Desamparados: Vivir en un refugio supervisado de manera publica o privada 
designado para proporcionar un arreglo de vida temporal; o con una residencia 
nocturna principal que es un lugar publico o privado no disefiado para o 
normalmente utilizado como un alojamiento habitual para los seres humanos, 
incluyendo un coche, parque, edificio abandonado, estaci6n de autobus o tren, 
aeropuerto, o camping. La ciudad y el condado de San Francisco tambien utiliza 
una definici6n ampliada de personas sin hogar que incluye a las person as que 
estan "dobladas" en los hogares de familiares o amigos; personas que 
permanecen en carceles, hospitales o centres de rehabilitaci6n; y familias que 
viven en unidades de ocupaci6n de habitaci6n individual (SRO) 
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5. lAlguna vez ha presenciado o ha tenido un intercambio personal con la 
policia por un incidente no violento, que podria incluir la falta de vivienda? 

a. Sf 
b. No 
c. Otro (especificar) 

6. Si su respuesta es si, en funci6n de su experiencia, lque sugiere que 
suceda en una situaci6n similar? 

7. lCual, si tiene alguna, es su preocupaci6n con que envien o no envien 
policia para llamadas no violentas? 

8. lQue funciona cuando se trata de salud conductual e intervenciones para 
personas sin hogar en la calle? 

9. l Que estrategias o programaci6n recomendaria en las areas de falta de 
vivienda o salud conductual, que no incluya a la policia? 

a. Vivienda 
b. Salud conductual 
c. Abuso 
d. Otras areas 

10.lC6mo seria un programa exitoso? lQue cambiaria? lCuales serian los 
resultados/impacto en el individuo y la comunidad? 

a. lndividuos 
b. Comunidad 
c. Policfa 
d. Otro 

11. lQue necesita ser construido, ampliado o cambiado para obtener mejores 
resultados? 

12. Por favor, comparta cualquier ejemplo, modelo o idea que tenga para 
alternativas a la vigilancia. 

a. Sugerencia 1 
b. Sugerencia 2 
c. Sugerencia 3 

13.lCual es su raza o etnia? 
a. Asiatico 
b. Negro o afroamericano 
c. Latino/a , Latinx, Hispano/a 
d. Del Oriente Medio o Norte de Africa 
e. Multirracial o Multietnico 
f. Nativo Americana o Nativo de Alaska 
g. Nativo hawaiano u otro isleno del Pacifico 
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h. Blanco 
i. Otra raza o etnia, por favor describa a continuaci6n 

Descripci6n de otra raza: 

14.lCual es tu edad? 
a. 13 o menos 
b. 14 a 24 
C. 18 a 24 
d. 25 a 34 
e. 35 a 44 
f. 45 a 54 
g. 55 a 64 
h. 65 a 74 
i. 75 afios o mas 

15. lCual es tu genero? 

Arabic Version 

-
11~_µ1 ~I"~ ~y,'.il ~\......j'JI wL.~I_, ~I o)j-., rwi ~, /SAMHSA c....:.:..J:u 
~w_, ~1 wl./):....;=.':11 e::)lc_, :~l9)13 ~..,_;...11_, ~1 ~1 ~y.j Ji+,.111~ _}~':?ill 

-~~-' ~_rai _}l ~L...;;,.;!~ ,wJ..}aJI o~ 0-> u.J9~ )I.Ju.Ji~ (.):ill ~_,i ~::..J !wl_J~I 

Question Title 
fSAMHSA ~~ (Jill ~pl~ ~\ji ~ ,o')k.l ~}\ o~I_) ~ .1 

ALTERNATIVES TO POLICING I Appendix Ill - MultilingiMJ"Slirvey Tools 

~ 
';I 

(~~\ ~y) ~~ ..>P 

Question Title 

57 



Question Title 
Jd;i:i ~ ,\.k ~ 'i AjjG._ u~ 4..b_y:;JI ~ 11, a.:...~, wLW -91 w~Ll ul ~ &.-" ~ .3 

Ywl.J~l ~w) ~__µ1 ~\ 

~ 
':I 

( ~~\ (r. J:) sill~ ..Ji;, 

?~ )A ~1.::,_:,.., ...:..i4.i:i y ~ _jil ~ ~l:.. ..,i rtz. wly:;,J w.:o.:i LS.JL:. c.} ~I 
4-..\JJ 01.S...,S ~jlz. r~ ..,i ~ JP ual:.. ..,i rtz. 01.S..a lJ"' w..l~ Liill i.ff'""L..iYI ~I uS,..JI c.} ..,i 
31 , .Jl..hl ..,i u)\jb 4..k..., ..,i , .J.r.'+" ~ ..,i , u\).:i,,.,, u§ >" _,I , wlj~I -cll~ ~ ~ , µ '-?.::.\.c 

.f";l'' u,<:i) ..,i '.Jl.b..., 

JJu..,.} 0.~ 0.:i\1 ~b...::iYI ~ .::.µ tb..iy ~_y-:i 1~;.,_:i ~I.) oL..i ~~.J ~.::....i r~ 
;;.::.tz.J t..9-9\y .JI d/1,':,, .. ,J\ ..,i 0~1 ~ L)~ 0.:ill .::.\.)'i\3 ?11

~~ .::.1.::.cV ~\J~YI .JI 4-tWI 
(SRO) ;;::._fa ;jj_p J~! i..::..i\~3 _}~~I y.,'i13 ?~WI 

Question Title 
Jd;i:i ~ ,tk. ~ 'i AjjG.. u~ 4..by:;JI ~ ,1. a.:..,':, wLW 3 1 w~Ll 01 ~ &.-" ~ .5 

y j y:;,:;.11 

~ 
'} 

(~~\ ~_}.) -cll~ JP 

Question Title 
Y~~ ~y ~ <Ci-9.l:.l.. cfo '?JI W '~?. c..:._k ~~ ,~ ~~'11 w.i\.S \jJ .6 

Question Title 
~ 'i ~\ wWl&J1 4..b y:;JI JL .Jl r.k- -91 JL .Jl (j~ w _j~ (,?I 4i-ll c_i,j\.S ) \jl., . 7 

Yt1c 

Question Title 
~t) .. ::JI ~ (Y.j_y'.;..J\3 ~ .}.Jl ~I w)\...:...~ y'J\ ~ Li~ ('.:? ··1 '?JI Li .8 
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Question Title 
~I - ~)..JI ~I _,i ~~I w';/~ ~ ~ ~ji ~I ~\.):Ill _,i w1J?Jilfa)II ~ Li .9 

y~~l~'i 
J_µI 

~_,1.Jl~I 
wl.J~l~t....:i 

w'J4-,.JI L>"' ~j _;i;. 

Question Title 
Ye";? JI_, ~..ftll ~ _»i'i.:!Jl/~t.:illl ~ Li Y~ '-:?~I Li_, Y~ull ~IJ..):lll 0~ ~ .1 Q 

J\_)YI 

~\ 
~~\ 
~j _);C-

Question Title 
Y~i ~Q ~ J~ o~ _,l ,~ji Ji ,oj1-l;i ~ '-:?~I Li .11 

ALTERNATIVES TO POLICING I Appendix Ill - MultilingQll/7&Jrvey Tools 59 



Question Title 
Y~i ~W ~ Jy-=.ll o~) ,~_/J) ,o_)~ ~ '?~I Li .12 

J_, ')\ Jl_;...11 
~Ill\ JI _;..JI 
-::.Jill I JI _;..JI 

Question Title 
Y~'/1 ~i .Ji ~.JC y, Li .13 

- l.:?-»"' I J...<, l lY' 

O~..ft)'I O~y'l\ _,I .:i_,..JI 
,A'i 

\..w ,g\ JW l .b... YI - . >~\ .. 
- -...r' -' -' (j Y""' (.)-" 

ujy\ .l.l.Ua i -1 YI .l.l.Ua - ' -' (j..JC 
~'111.5....iYi o~ lY' _,l ~l ~yl 

ts.:il~I ~I_) tS..fa.YI .)j,JI ot5....i -.,l (.51-.,4,.l o~'ll ots....JI 
- - . l 
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Question Title 
Y~I 04~~ .14 

Jgi) 13 
24 ~l 14 
24 ~! 18 
34 ~! 25 
44 .)! 35 
54 .)! 45 
64 ~! 55 
74 ~J 65 

_fi. i _,I t;, t.c 7 5 

Question Title 
Y~I &_J,i y, Li .15 
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Chinese Version 

{~(i: ~ ~,L. ~ t:k -r-P,. --f=; .ti2 
1N±: o~ f J:l ~ I==/ \J. ./ J * 
20201f=- 9 ~, London N. Breed rn*'§:;(ij#~JJX:ll rfgf~~~@-J (Steering 
Committee) J;I, ·~fJ)JJf($J!frf,/ffi&w{~JJ°$, 0,~:t'I 911 ~ 3111*~!t1}~1Jim 
w~•~~~fr~&fi~••&~•*~n~~~~-JJ~ffi~~m~, w 
~-~-~~~w~~-A~~~~, ~**~~fi*rn•:t'I0~*~~JJ°~ 
l!1'rtB:*'~i~ ~13"J~tif, _§_ Breed rn*Efr 6 ~ '§:;(ijJ!:f'JJJ:trfnfMffo 

SAMHSA ~~~ffi1:&0~~~f!!~ (U.S. Department of Health and Human 
Services) ~Ta"Ji~rt ~ft1'r~·~13"Jfol~ff - *pg$9=113"J r1T~·~J -iAJ{~ 
*fit!J 1L'l'I~~~ tJJi~1&*$ ; f~~ 1L'l'I&~tlo/J~ffl *m ; 0,&~r~~&1~1~ 
~~Mm~~~A, ~~~*A~~~-m~~~mo 

Question Title 
1.iE~~f ~J:~WiJZl!f.&, 1&H!:a~~~lm SAMHSA a"JJE~? 
~ 
~ 
t=l 

Question Title 
2 .16f-tt SAM H SA s"J JE ~~:a W!~J~Jr±i :@<: fll}U ~ s"J pg?£¥ ( ?& ~) ? 

Question Title 
3.1m~~tt*~ § !l11=~n~'f* CPJ~l§B-£-fr~~m~~tmr~m) :@<:lz;]llt 
rm ~w~~i@J~1fiE? 
~ 
:a 
~{tl! Cl~ i1 ey:J ) 

Question Title 
4.~~$~ 1 ~J , tFJt1~s"J*~·~ , 1~iE~l±.IHl~'HfftJLa~~xt[it;;U&PW 
!l=~frtb ? 
fi1~J1.Jrn~t~ (City and County of San Francisco) {~J=fHttt~®:Rtftnt~*~ltri 
a~AE~ : 
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~tt~~A~-~0*~UA-~~~~ffi, ~-~~ffi~tt~~~~-~~ 
it*1il: ; ~i& 
m~~~~OO~tt~~0~~u~•~. {B~~~~**~~~~W~Affi~ 
-~~~·ffi, fil~~-.0~.--~~-~.0-~*-~··-~--
!illio 

•~~*•~~~m•~~~*~•~•. ~~fil~~*A~M~*~ r~m 
mOOJ ~A;~~ni~. tt~~iik-~~~~ffi~A;~&tt~¥Am00 
(SRO) ¥{:t[~*!J!o 

Question Title 
s.1~~~tt*~ § ~~l:~JJlH4 CPJ~~§-£-~*PJlwa~A) ~IEl!ltrm~,r 
~ ~ i&15t iriE ? 
i& 
~ 
r:::1 

Question Title 
6.~~$~ 1 £J , t.ltt~f~a"Jf~.~, 1~Z:E~i1:.ffi~fjf,£a~-@"J:l~f7tEJ&im 
JI:ti1Tmil? 

Question Title 
7 .f~tt:o~~N~~fft"tl ~,r~*~:E_lfp~JJ imffl~im.[l:t,~ _;, C~~) 9 

Question Title 
8 J~JrHtf J:s~1T ~~ ~fo ~*J:iJliw-=f fj a~, p~JI:ti rtrnm J:iJ ~iw ft ffl ? 
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Question Title 
10.-11JvG~a"JitiU~fitJtl? ,ft~1r~J!? !tif~11AfUt±~l3"1~*/j&. 
~fitJ? 
1@,A 
f±~ 
w~ 
~ft!! 

Question Title 
11.~~~iL, -~~~J!1t~, ::trI~~1~J!:E]!~13"J~*? 

Question Title 
12Jf5t:~1~!t~*l~ ii3'R~f~J,$13'-J{f:fitJ~fjiJ-. ffl?!~~1l¥fto 
~~ 1 
~a 2 
~~ 3 

Question Title 
13.1~1¥.J~fl~~ fi:;jj'~ ? 
illiVH.A. 
J!.J\.~ ! F~~~A 
t'LTfM 
q::i JllJ\.~::ltfFA 
~~ffif~~.a:;~ 
~ l~H=P t-t!tt2 A~~iiJ t'IWf JJD m( f:t a:; 
JL~~m( f1.a::~Jtft!!x ~r$~ a:: 
BA 
jtft!!fi~~Jx~, ~itETif~~ 
1:ErifEJ~~~: 
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Question Title 
14 .1~ 13") if::. l{I ? 
13 ~~0-T 
14 ~ 24 ~ 
18 ~ 24 ~ 
25 ~ 34~ 
35 ~44~ 
45~54~ 
55~64~ 
65~ 74~ 
75 ~~0-1: 

Question Title 
15.f~a"J·~i!iJIJ ? 
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Leger, Cheryl (BOS) 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 

Cc: 
Subject: 
Attachments: 

Dear Ms. McDonald, 

Lim, Victor (DEM) 
Thursday, June 16, 2022 4:59 PM 
gina@MothersAgainstDrugDeaths.org; Gina Mcdonald; 125534-94670199 
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

Victor Wai Ho Lim, MPA I 1*1$ii 
Liaison to Electeds & Board of Supervisors 
Government & AAPI Affairs Manager 
External Affairs Officer I 9~~t~iJN~ ~ 
Department of Emergency Management I - Jfrn/1!~ ~"!Ifc:J 
415-554-4827 direct I A~ 
4"15-748-UUL8 cell I ·=:Ml 
415-558-2712 media line I ~9! 

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

Victor Wai Ho Lim, MPA I **1$~ 
Liaison to Electeds & Board of Supervisors 
Government & AAPI Affairs Manager 
External Affairs Officer I 9~~t~iJN~~ 
Department of Emergency Management I - iif$}!!~, ~Ilfc:J 
415-554-4827 direct I ~jj 

415-7 48-0028 cell I -=¥-~I 



415-558-2712 media line I ft~l 

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

Thank you . 

Victor Wai Ho Lim, MPA 11*1$5i 
Liaison to Electeds & Board of Supervisors 
Government & AAPI Affairs Manager 
External Affairs Officer I 9~~tt5m•~ 
Department of Emergency Management I - ~"$fi,j~,~Il,Fo:J 
415-554-4827 direct I 1i~j 
415-7 48-0028 cell I -=ft! 
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

Cheryl. Leger@sfgov.org 

Tel : 415-554-7724 

Fax: 415-554-5163 

https://url .avanan.click/v2/ www.sfbos.org .YXAz..OnNrnZHQyOmE6bzphZikwYjk4M2VmNTdmZWZhN2EOMDZmOT 
FjNjMwMzkxYjo20mJiNmE6ZmE4NDl2ZjkxZDc3YIU1 MTc0MWM4MGZmMTgyYzY5MDdiYzc3ND1jMzFINTY2YzRkMGU 
wM212MzBmOGU4M2NkMDpOOIQ 

1998. 

(I Click here to complete a Board of Supervisors Customer Service Satisfaction form. 

The Legislative Research Center provides 24-hour access to Board of Supervisors legislation, and archived matters since August 

Disclosures: Personal information that is provided in communications to i/Je Board of Supervisor"S is subject to disclosure under tlie 
California Public Records Act and the San Francisco Sunshine Orclinance. Personal information provided YVill not be 
reciacted. Members of the public are not required to provide personal identifying info1mation when they communicate with the Boarcl 
of Supe;visors and its committees. All written or oral communications that members of the oublic submit to the Cle11('s Office 
regarding pending legislation or hearings will be made available to all members of the public for inspection and copying. The Cler/i's 
Office does not redact any information from these submissions. This means that personal information-including names, phone 
numbers, addresses and similar information that a member of the public elects to submit to the Boal°d and its committees-may 
appear on the Board of Supervisors website or in other public documents that members of the public may inspect or copy. 

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

2 6"43 l 



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

Victor Wai Ho Lim, MPA I ~f$5~ 
Liaison to Electeds & Board of Supervisors 
Government & MPI Affairs Manager 
External Affairs Officer I 5'~m1~5*~~ 
Department of Emergency Management I - Jim.lJ!1J!, ~IlfoJ 
415-554-4827 direct I 1i~i 
415-7 48-0028 cell I -¥:fl 
415-558-2712 media line I ~~ 

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

Please try gina@MothersAgainstDrugDeaths.org 

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
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Victor Wai Ho Lim, MPA I #ft5i 

Liaison to Electeds & Board of Supervisors 

Government & MPI Affairs Manager 

External Affairs Officer I $1~~t~5J&-~ 
D rt t f E M t I - ~ , 1$" § ~I:83 e epa men o mergency anagemen -=-,ffl" rni11s-,e., I§ a:.1"J 

415-554-4827 direct I ~~ 

415-748-0028 cell I-¥~ 

415-558-2712 media line I it~l 

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

I am not receiving them through this yahoo email but am able to access them on Muckrock. Not sure why they are not 
coming through on here. 

Is Cheryl or the task force able to receive them? 

Gina McDonald 

On Thursday, June 16, 2022 at 02:00:32 PM PDT, Lim, Victor (DEM) <victor .. lim@sfgov.org> wrote: 

Hello Ms. McDonald, 

I just resent the first of the two emails from yesterday, and included your original 
Muckrock email address. 
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Please let me know if that went through. I will process with the same process if you 
successfully received the email. Thank you. 

Victor Wai Ho Lim, MPA I ;M-{f5i 

Liaison to Electeds & Board of Supervisors 

Government & AAPI Affairs Manager 

External Affairs Officer I J~~t~;JN~~ 
Department of Emergency Management I - jf$ffi~, fgII.rc:i 
415-554-4827 direct I Htt 

415-7 48-0028 cell I -=1=-m 

415-558-2712 media line I {t:9j 

From: Gina Mcdonald <gina.mcdee@yahoo.com> 
Sent: Thursday, June 16, 2022 12:14 PM 
To: SOTF, (BOS) <sstf@sfgov.org>; Lim, Victor (DEM) <victor.llm@sfgov.org> 
Cc: DEM Records Request <RecordsRequestDEM@sfqov.org> 
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

On Thursday, June 16, 2022 at 11:52:37 AM PDT, Lim, Victor (DEM) <vic.tor.lim@sfgov.org> wrote: 
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

Victor Wai Ho Lim, MPA I #f¥5i!r 

Liaison to Electeds & Board of Supervisors 

Government & AAPI Affairs Manager 

External Affairs Officer I J~mt~5J&~ffe! 
Department of Emergency Management I - ,if$ff!~, ~Illa:J 
415-554-4827 direct I ~~l 

415-7 48-0028 cell I -¥~ 

415-558-2712 media line I f.t~l 

From: Gina Mcdonald <gina.mcdee@yahoo.com> 
Sent: Thursday, June 16, 2022 11 :38 AM 
To: SOTF, (BOS) <sotf@sfgov.org>; Lim, Victor (DEM) <victor.lim@sfgov .. org> 
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

Victor Wai Ho Lim, MPA I #1¥5i 

Liaison to Electeds & Board of Supervisors 

Government & AAPI Affairs Manager 

External Affairs Officer I si~m*~iJiHJ~ 
Department of Emergency Management I =;if$)1!~, >gIJ}aj 
415-554-4827 direct I H~'R 

415-7 48-0028 cell I -=H! 

415-558-2712 media line I f.W~!t 
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

On Tuesday, May 31, 2022 at 08:49:14 AM PDT, SOTF, (BOS) <sotf@sfgov.om> wrote: 
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

Fax:415-554-5163 

https://urj.avanan.click/v2/ www.sfbos.org .YXAz.OnNmZHQyOmE6bzphZikwYjk4M2VmNTdrnZWZhN2EOMDZmOT 
FjNjMwMzkxYjo20mJiNmE6ZmE4NDl2ZjkxZDc3YjU1 MTcOMWM4MGZmMTqyYzY5MDdiYzc3NDljMzFINTY2YzRkMGU 
wM212MzBmOGU4M2NkMDpOOIQ 

1998. 

O Click here to complete a Board of Supervisors Customer Service Satisfaction form. 

The Leqislatille Research Center provides 24-hour access to Board of Supervisors legislation, and archived matters since August 

Disclosures: Personal information that is provided in communications to the Board of Supe,visors is subject to disclosure under the 
California Public Records Act and the San Francisco Sunshine Ordinance. Personal information provided will not be 
redacted. Members of the public are not required to provide personal identifying information when they communicate with the Board 
of Supe;visors and its committees. All ~'lritten ol° oral communications that members of the public submit to the Clerk's Office 
regarding pending legislation or hearings will be made available to all members of lhe public for inspection and copying. Tile Clerk's 
Office does not redact any information from thes:CJ submissions. This means that personal information-including names. phone 
numbers, addresses and similar information that a member of the p11blic elects to submit to the Board and its committees---may 
appear on the Board ol Supe1visors website or in other public documents that members of the public may inspect or copy. 

From: Gina Mcdonald <gina.mcdee@yahoo.com> 
Sent: Monday, May 30, 2022 9:50 PM 
To: SOTF, (BOS) <sotf@sfgov.org>; Lim, Victor (DEM) <vlctor.lim@sfgov.org> 
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

Gina Mcdonald <gina.mcdee@yahoo.com> 
Thursday, June 16, 2022 12:14 PM 
SOTF, (BOS); Lim, Victor (DEM) 
DEM Records Request 
Re: Case 22035 - Supporting emails/texts Dept. Of Emergency Management 

Can you please try sending to this email again in a new email chain. Sometimes that clears it up. 

Also CC the rnuckrock since that is for public viewing . 

Thanks so much Mr. Lim! 

Gina McDonald 

On Thursday, June 16, 2022 at 11 :52:37 AM PDT, Lim, Victor (DEM) <victor.lim@sfgov.org> wrote : 

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

Victor Wai Ho Lim, MPA I ~i¥5~ 

Liaison to Electeds & Board of Supervisors 

Government & AAPI Affairs Manager 

External Affairs Officer I J~~t~i*.W~ 
D fE M I - :;!;I,;: ' lllE'§M;:EBE:!. epartment o mergency anagement -=- lg rf)JJ&'<,u I§ I.:1:.1cJ 

415-554-4827 direct I ~~ 

415-7 48-0028 cell I -¥11 

415-558-2712 media line I f!Hl 



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

I have not received anything yet. Are you sending them directly to this email address or uploading to my original request 
that I sent through the Muckrock site? 

Thanks, 

Gina McDonald 

On Thursday, June 16, 2022 at 11 :25:15 AM PDT, Lim, Victor (DEM) <victor.lim@sfgov.org> wrote: 

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

Victor Wai Ho Lim, MPA I **~ 5i!r 

Liaison to Electeds & Board of Supervisors 

Government & MPI Affairs Manager 

External Affairs Officer I >HM~mHJ~ 
Department of Emergency Management I =-rim!l~-~W.Fc:J 
415-554-4827 direct I 1i~ 

415-7 48-0028 cell I -=ffflt 

415-558-2712 media line l 'ft9l 

From: Gina Mcdonald <gina.mcdee@yahoo.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, June 8, 2022 2:52 PM 
To: Lim, Victor (DEM) <Victor.lim@sfgov.org>· SOTF, (BOS) <sotf@sfgov.org> 
Subject: Re: Case 22035 - Supporting emails/tex:ts D_ept. Of Emergency Management 

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

https://url.avanan.click/v2/ www.sfbos.org .YXAzOnNmZHQyOmE6bzphZjkwYjk4M2VmNTdmZWZhN2EOMDZmOT 
FjNIMwMzkxYio20mJiNmE6ZmE4NDl2Zikx.ZDc3YjU1 MTc0MWM4MGZmMTgyYzY5MDdiYzc3ND1jMzFINTY2YzRkMGU 
wM212MzBmOGU4M2NkMDpOOIQ 

1998. 

'.·· Click here to complete a Board of Supervisors Customer Service Satisfaction form. 

The Legislative Research Center provides 24-hour access to Board of Supervisors legislation, and archived matters since August 

Disclosures: Personal information that is provided in communications to ihe Boat'd of Supervisors is subject to disclosure under the 
California Public Records Act and the San Francisco Sunshine Ordinance. Personal info1mation provided will not be 
redacted. 1\tlembers of the public are not required to provide prHsonal identifying information when they communicate with the Board 
of Supe1visors and its committees. All written or o,-a/ communications that members of the public submit to the Cle,'k's Office 
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regarding pending legislation or hearings will be made available to all members of the public for inspection and copying. The Clerk's 
Office does not redact any information from these submissions. This means that personal information-including names, phone 
numbers, addresses and similar information that a member of the public elects to submit to the Board and its committees-may 
appear on the Board of SupeNisors website or in other public documents that members of the public may inspect or copy. 

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

125534-94670199@requests.muckrock.com 
Friday, June 17, 2022 6:42 PM 
Lim, Victor (DEM) 
gina@MothersAgainstDrugDeaths.org; Gina Mcdonald; DEM Records Request; SOTF, 
(BOS) 
RE: California Public Records Act Request: Tenderloin Linkage Center Communications 
(Department of Emergency Management) 

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrusted sources. 

Department of Emergency Management 
PRA Office 
1011 Turk Street 
SF, CA 94102 

June 17, 2022 

This is a follow up to a previous request: 

One more follow up. Please continue to use my yahoo email for communication and records as well as Muckrock as 
that's what seems to work best for attachments. 

Thanks again, 

Gina 

View request history, upload responsive documents, and report problems here: 
https://url.avanan.click/v2/_https://accounts.muckrock.com/accounts/login/?next=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.muckrock. 
com%2Faccounts%2Flogin%2F%3Fnext%3D%252Faccounts%252Fagency_login%252Fdepartment-of-emergency­
management-8080%252Ftenderloin-linkage-center-communications-department-of-emergency-management-
125534%252F%253Femail%253Dvictor.lim%252540sfgov.org&url_auth_token=AAAdJxAETqCps-U29PPrGEzc­
Bc%3Alo2NTe%3ASYhN442hlFSgiOgYVOSTyFA6KWd2WDSzsyXPcsbxm2k_.YXAzOnNmZHQyOmE6bzpiYmNkOTY2YTdi 
YzEwMzkyOGl30Tl4ZmJmMGNkZGVmNTo20jUyMWU6Y2MwZDgOYmZjY2VjN2RkMTdiMWY2MzhiMDU1YzJiY2Y1ZjllNjd 
hMTViNjlwNmYzOTISOGJhZDMyNGQl YTZhNjpOOIQ 

If prompted for a passcode, please enter: 
YMVLUAYE 

Filed via MuckRock.com 
E-mail (Preferred): 125534-94670199@requests.muckrock.com 

PLEASE NOTE OUR NEW ADDRESS 
For mailed responses, please address (see note): 
MuckRock News 
DEPT MR 125534 
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263 Huntington Ave 
Boston, MA 02115 

PLEASE NOTE: This request is not filed by a MuckRock staff member, but is being sent through MuckRock by the above in 
order to better track, share, and manage public records requests. Also note that improperly addressed (i.e., with the 
requester's name rather than "MuckRock News" and the department number) requests might be returned as 
undeliverable. 

On June 17, 2022: 
Subject: RE: California Public Records Act Request: Tenderloin Linkage Center Communications (Department of 
Emergency Management) 
Thank you Mr Lim. 

The emails that you sent to my yahoo and .org were unsuccessful with the attachment. However, I am able to receive 
them on Muckrock. 

I appreciate your effort on this and that you will release more on a rolling basis. 

Gina McDonald 

On June 16, 2022: 
Subject: FW: Case 22035 - Supporting emails/texts Dept. Of Emergency Management 
Dear Ms. McDonald, 

We are resending you the second batch of documents originally emailed out yesterday, 6/15/2022 at 4:50PM. 

Please confirm receipt of email. Thank you. 

Victor Wai Ho Lim, MPA I *-*ft;~ 
Liaison to Electeds & Board of Supervisors 
Government & AAPI Affairs Manager 

External Affairs Officer I 91-~ft)mW.~ 
Department of Emergency Management I .=.~$1!!~, ~~~ 
415-554-4827 direct I wUi 
415-748-0028 cell I =¥-ti 
415-558-2712 media line I {!Ht 

On June 16, 2022: 
Subject: Fw: Case 22035 - Supporting emails/texts Dept. Of Emergency Management 
Hello Ms. McDonald, 

Resending the email we emailed out yesterday at 4:47PM to you and including the Muckrock email address from your 
original request. 

Please confirm reciept of this response. Thank you. 

Victor Wai Ho Lim I *-*ft;~ 
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Liaison to Electeds & Board of Supervisors 

Government & AAPI Affairs Manager 

External Affairs Officer I 91-~1~5/RW~ 
Department of Emergency Management I .=Jirn~~ lgJf~ 
415-558-2768 direct I ~t?i 
415-748-0028 cell I -=¥-:ti 
415-558-2712 media line I fWYl 

On April 27, 2022: 
Subject: Re: SOTF - Complaint Filed with the Sunshine Ordinance Task Force - File No. 22035 
Dear Mr Lim, 
I also have a response to this and supporting documents that I will provide shortly that show several email chains with 
DEM. I received these from the other SF Government agencies that all complied with this same exact request. 
There are also email chains and texts to the controllers office discussing how to gather and measure data that I will 
supply. 
Unless these communications were DELETED, I am just wondering why they haven't been released under this request to 
DEM as they were with every other agency that was involved with the Tenderloin Linkage Center. 
Thank you, 
Gina McDonald 

Sent from Yahoo Mail for iPhone 

On April 27, 2022: 
Subject: RE: SOTF - Complaint Filed with the Sunshine Ordinance Tusk Force - rile No. 22035 
Dear Mr. Young, 

Please replace the documents we submitted yesterday with the attached revised response letter and supporting 
documents. Thank you. 

Victor Wai Ho Lim, MPA I *Ml;i!i-
Liaison to Electeds & Board of Supervisors 
Government & AAPI Affairs Manager 

External Affairs Officer I 91-~f~5/RW~ 
Department of Emergency Management I =~rn~~- lg:@.~ 
415-554-4827 direct I ~*! 
415-748-0028 cell I -=¥-:ti 
415-558-2712 media line I 1W.Yl 

On Feb. 27, 2022: 
Subject: 
To Whom It May Concern: 

Pursuant to the California Public Records Act, I hereby request the following records: 

I am requesting all electronic communication, including email, text message, any messaging service or app used in 
communication regarding the Tenderloin Linkage Center and it's fenced in area . This is to include communication 
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between all government and non governmental agencies involved in the operation of the linkage center, including 
communications with non profit agencies. 

I am requesting that all records be preserved until this request is completed . 

The requested documents will be made available to the general public, and this request is not being made for 
commercial purposes. 

In the event that there are fees, I would be grateful if you would inform me of the total charges in adyance of fulfilling 
my request. I would prefer the request filled electronically, by e-mail attachment if available or CD-ROM if not. 

Thank you in advance for your anticipated cooperation in this matter. I look forward to receiving your response to this 
request within 10 calendar days, as the statute requires. 

Sincerely, 

Virginia McDonald 

View request history, upload responsive documents, and report problems here: 
https:// u rl.ava nan .cl ick/v2/_https:// accounts. m uckrock.com/ acco u nts/logi n/?next=https%3A%2 F%2 Fwww. m uckrock. 
com%2Faccounts%2Flogin%2F%3Fnext%3D%252Faccounts%252Fagency_login%252Fdepartment-of-emergency­
management-8080%252Ftenderloin-linkage-center-communications-department-of-emergency-management-
125534%252F%253Femail%253Dvictor.lim%252540sfgov.org&url_auth_token=AAAdJxAETqCps-U29PPrGEzc­
Bc%3Alo2NTe%3A5YhN442hlF5giOgYV05TyFA6KWd2WDSzsyXPcsbxm2k_.YXAzOnNmZHQyOmE6bzpiYmNkOTY2YTdi 
YzEwMzkyOGl30Tl4ZmJmMGNkZGVmNTo20mE4ZGE6ZWl3YzRIZTM1YTYyZGFmOTQONzkwZmUwOGVIOWMONGRIOGY 
50TcxZTVIYTA4Y2ViNTA3MzAwOTg5MmY3ZGMOMDpOOIQ 

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
M uckRock News 
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

12S534-94670199@requests.muckrock.com 
Friday, June 17, 2022 6:41 PM 
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

Thank you Mr Lim . 

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
https:// u rl.ava na n.click/v2/_https:// accounts. m uckrock. com/ acco unts/login/?next=https%3A%2 F%2 Fwww. m uckrock. 
com%2Faccounts%2Flogin%2F%3Fnext%3D%252Faccounts%252Fagency_login%252Fdepartment-of-emergency­
management-8080%252Ftenderloin-linkage-center-communications-department-of-emergency-management-
125534%252F%253Femail%253Dvictor.lim%252540sfgov.org&url_auth_token=AAAdJxAETqCps-U29PPrGEzc­
Bc%3A1o2NRw%3AUzooESf0izkjimdPTihAu4cPuRDiVkwLFl8TB7njaV8_.YXAz0nNmZHQyOmE6bzo4MzBiYTAwNDZkM 
TE20TMwYTE5NjdiNTA2YTQSMWZiMTo20jk3ZDl6NmQxMGQ10TMOMWl2ZjYwODE10WNkZjl3ZjJhMzAw0Dk0MzViZjU 
zNzM1NTM3ZDFIZDdhYzcSNDQzYWYxYTU2ZDpOOIQ 

If prompted for a passcode, please enter: 
YMVLUAYE 

Filed via MuckRock.com 
E-mail {Preferred): 125534-94670199@requests.muckrock.com 

PLEASE NOTE OUR NEW ADDRESS 
For mailed responses, please address (see note) : 



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

Victor Wai Ho Lim, MPA I **flfii 
Liaison to Electeds & Board of Supervisors 
Government & AAPI Affairs Manager 

External Affairs Officer I 9'1-~fl5JNW.~ 
Department of Emergency Management I = ~$ff!1@!gJ!.la:J 
415-554-4827 direct I wHl 
415-748-0028 cell I .:J:.ttlt 
415-558-2712 media line I {!Hl 

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

Victor Wai Ho Lim I **flfii 

Liaison to Electeds & Board of Supervisors 

Government & AAPI Affairs Manager 

External Affairs Officer I 9'1-~fl5JNW.~ 
Department of Emergency Management I = ~rnff!1@'gI!.la:i 
415-558-2768 direct I ~Ul 
415-748-0028 cell I .:J:.ttl 
415-558-2712 media line I fW~l 
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
Subject: RE: SOTF - Complaint Filed with the Sunshine Ordinance Task Force - File No. 22035 
Dear Mr. Young, 

Please replace the documents we submitted yesterday with the attached revised response letter and supporting 
documents. Thank you. 

Victor Wai Ho Lim, MPA I *-*il;'i!i 
Liaison to Electeds & Board of Supervisors 
Government & AAPI Affairs Manager 

External Affairs Officer I 91-ffit~}JiHJ~ 
Department of Emergency Management I .=.~$11!~ lfWmi 
415-554-4827 direct I rer~ 
415-748-0028 cell I ~~ 
415-558-2712 media line I fiyt 

On April 26, 2022: 
Subject: RE: SOTF - Complaint Filed with the Sunshine Ordinance Task Force - File No. 22035 
Dear Ms. Leger, 

Please find attached DEM's formal response to File No. 22035 and the supporting documents. Thank you. 

Victor Wai Ho Lim, MPA I **il;i5 
Liaison to Electeds & Board of Supervisors 
Government & AAPI Affairs Manager 

External Affairs Officer I 91-~1~},NW~ 
Department of Emergency Management I - ~$11!~ ~!!mi 
415-554-4827 direct I ~$i 
415-748-0028 cell I -=¥-~ 
415-558-2712 media line I f!Yl 

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
communication regarding the Tenderloin Linkage Center and it's fenced in area. This is to include communication 
between all government and non governmental agencies involved in the operation of the linkage center, including 
communications with non profit agencies. 

I am requesting that all records be preserved until this request is completed. 

The requested documents will be made available to the general public, and this request is not being made for 
commercial purposes. 

In the event that there are fees, I would be grateful if you would inform me of the total charges in advance of fulfilling 
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
https:// u rl.ava nan .cl ick/v2/_https:// acco u nts.m uckrock.com/ accounts/logi n/?next=https%3A%2 F%2 Fwww. m uckrock. 
com%2Faccounts%2Flogin%2F%3Fnext%3D%252Faccounts%252Fagency_login%252Fdepartment-of-emergency­
management-8080%252Ftenderloin-linkage-center-communications-department-of-emergency-management-
125534%252F%253Femail%253Dvictor.lim%252540sfgov.org&url_auth_token=MAdJxAETqCps-U29PPrGEzc­
Bc%3A1o2NRw%3AUzooESfOizkjimdPTihAu4cPuRDiVkwLFl8TB7njaV8_.YXAzOnNmZHQyOmE6bzo4MzBiYTAwNDZkM 
TE20TMwYTE5NjdiNTA2YTQ5MWZiMTo20mMONTM6MDgyNGMxMmY2MDBkNzUxZWMOYmUwYzYOMGU2MjdjMjJhM 
WIOODVINjhjYjllMWQyYjl2MTBkYjE4ZWYxNTY2NTpOOIQ 

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
Monday, June 27, 2022 3:47 PM 
Gina Mcdonald; 125534-94670199@requests.muckrock.com; 

g i na@M othersAga i nstDrug Deaths.a rg 
DEM Records Request; SOTF, (BOS) 
RE: Case 22035 - Supporting emails/texts Dept. Of Emergency Management 
DEM Records Request shared the folder "Kristin Hogan-Ready" with you. 

We have released two additional batches of additional responsive records to your 
request. 

Please note, due to the voluminous size and number of responsive records we need to 
provide you, we have uploaded the records onto Microsoft OneDrive, and have granted 
access to the following emails: 

1. gina.mcdee@yahoo.com; 
2. 125534-94670199@requests.muckrock.com; 
3. gina@MothersAgainstDrugDeaths.org 

You should have mceived an email in your three mailboxes providing you a link to a 
OneDrive folder (which should look similar to the sample email provided on this 
response as an attachment) 

After opening the email specifically addressed to you, please click on the word "Open", 
and it will prompt you to input the specific email address you are currently login 
into. For example, if you are opening the email on your Yahoo mailbox, please type in 
"gina.mcdee@yahoo.com" and press enter. 

It will the prompt the system to send you a one-time verification login code sent as an 
email. Go back to your mailbox, look for that email with the one-time verification code, 
and input that code onto the browser to open the OneDrive folder. (Please check spam 
or junk mail folders if you do not see it within your "lnbox") Once you are in the 
OneDrive folder, you may choose to view or download any of the fiies you wish. 

This will help speed up the process to provide additional responsive documents, given 
that some email severs have a 25 l\!18 limit for the size of attachments you may 
receive. VVe have several hundred fV1Bs of responsive documents that we need to 
provide. 
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Please note, personal contact information has been redacted to protect personal 
privacy in portions of some responsive records. See Gov. Code§ 6254(c), California 
Constitution, Art. I, Sec. 1. Please also note that certain conference call dial-in 
information intended only for internal use have been redacted pursuant to the official 
information privilege. Cal. Evid. Code § 1040. 

Please let me know if you have any questions. Thank you. 

Victor Wai Ho Lim, MPA I *1¥5~ 
Liaison to Electeds & Board of Supervisors 
Government & AAPI Affairs Manager 
External Affairs Officer I 9~~1~51&-~ 
Department of Emergency Management I - ~ rffff!~ lWllrc:i 
415-554-4827 direct I .1Ul 
415-7 48-0028 cell I -=¥-ti 
415-558-2712 media line 11'~ 

From: Lim, Victor (DEM) <victor.lim@sfgov.org> 
Sent: Thursday, June 16, 2022 4:55 PM 
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
External Affairs Officer I 9~~1~51&• ~ 
Department of Emergency Management I - ilmff!~, lWllrc:i 
415-554-4827 direct I E.~ 
415-7 48-0028 cell I -=¥-ti 
415-558-2712 media line I ffi:Yl 

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
On Thursday, June 16, 2022 at 02:26:14 PM PDT, Lim, Victor (DEM) <victor.lim@sfqov.org> wrote: 

Hello Ms. McDonald, 

Did you receive it on the Muckrock platform? It might just be a Yahoo email 
issue. Please confirm and let us know. Thank you. 

Victor Wai Ho Lim, MPA I #1l5! 

Liaison to Electeds & Board of Supervisors 

Government & AAPI Affairs Manager 

External Affairs Officer I 9~~1~;J&.$:~ 
Department of Emergency Manngement I -· Ji$}!!~, ffIImi 
415-554-4827 direct I 1iti 

415-7 48-0028 cell I -¥#! 

415-558-2712 media line 11'9} 

From: Gina Mcdonald <qina.mcdee@yahoo.com> 
Sent: Thursday, June 16, 2022 2:24 PM 
To: SOTF, (BOS) <sotf@sfgov.org>; Lim, Victor (DEM) <victor.lim@sfgov.org> 
Cc: DEM Records Request <RecordsReguestDEM@sfgov.org> 
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

2706 



Gina McDonald 

On Thursday, June 16, 2022 at 02:00:32 PM PDT, Lim, Victor (DEM) <victor.lim@sfgov.org> wrote: 

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

External Affairs Officer I 5'~~t~5*~~ 
Department of Emergency Management I - ~ "$)!-~, ~Illa:i 
415-554-4827 direct I 1Uv'R 

415-7 48-0028 cell I -¥ti 

415-558-2712 media line 11l~l 

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

On Thursday, June 16, 2022 at 11:52:37 AM PDT, Lim, Victor (DEM) <victor.lim@sfgov.org> wrote: 

Ms. McDonald, 

I sent it directly to this Yahoo email address you are currently using. Would you like 
me to send it to the original Muckrock email to see if it goes through? "·- -- - -· ~ , --- -r-- -· 

Please let me know. Tha·nks! 

Victor Wai Ho Lim, MPA I ~f•5l 

Liaison to Electeds & Board of Supervisors 

Government & AAPI Affairs Manager 

External Affairs Officer I si~ffitt)J&~~ 
Department of Emergency Management I - Jim/!~ ~IlfcJ 
415-554-4827 direct I .ati 

415-7 48-0028 cell I .:f-;f1l 

415-558-2712 media line I ~91 

From: Gina Mcdonald <gina.mcdee@yahoo.com> 
Sent: Thursday, June 16, 2022 11 :38 AM 
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To: SOTF, (BOS) <sotf@sfgov.org>; Um, Victor (DEM) <victor.lim@sfgov.org> 
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

Victor Wai Ho Lim, MPA I #f$5t 

Liaison to Electeds & Board of Supervisors 

Government & AAPI Affairs M~mager 

External Affairs Officer I >'~~*h*•~ 
Department of Emergency Management I .=:if$J.I~, ~Jlfaj 
415-554-4827 direct J 1it\ 

415-7 48-0028 cell I ~-

415-558-2712 media line J 1'~ 

From: Gina Mcdonald <gina.mcdee@yahoo.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, June 8, 2022 2:52 PM 
To: Lim, Victor (DEM) <Victor.lim@sfgov.org>; SOTF, (BOS) <sotf@sfgov.org> 
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

On Tuesday, May 31, 2022 at 08:49:14 AM PDT, SOTF, (BOS) <sotf@sfaov.org> wrote: 

Dear Ms. McDonald and Mr. Lim: In the future please provide documents in pdf format. It is much easier to work with. 
Thank you. 

Cheryl Leger 

Assistant Clerk, Board of Supervisors 

Cheryl.Leger@sfgov.org 

Tel: 415-554-7724 

Fax: 415-554-5163 

https://url .avanan.click/v2/ www.sfbos.org .YXAzOnNmZHQy0mE6bzphZjkwYjk4M2VmNTdmZWZhN2EOMDZmOT 
FiNjMwMzkxYio20mJiNmE6ZmE4ND12ZjkxZDc3YjU1 MTc0MWM4MGZmMTgyYzY5MDd1Yzc3ND1jMzFINTY2YzRkMGU 
wM212MzBmOGU4M2NkMDpOOIQ 

Click here to complete a Board of Supervisors Customer Service Satisfaction form. 

The Legislative Research Center provides 24-hour access to Board of Super,isors legislation, and archived matters since August 
1998. 
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Disclosures: Personal information that is provided in communications to the Board of Supen;isors is subject to disclosure under !he 
California Public Records Act and the San Francisco Sunshine Ordinance. Personal information provided will not be 
redacted. Members of the public are not required to provide personal identifying information when they communicate will! tile Board 
of Supe1visors and its committees. All wlitten or oral communications that members of the public submit to the Clerk's Office 
regarding pending legislation or hearings will be made available to ail members of tile public for inspection and copying. The Clerk's 
Office does not redact any information from these submissions. This means that personal information-including names, phone 
numbers, addresses and similar information that a membr:,r of the public elects to submit to the Board and its committees-may 
appear on the Board of Supei11isors website or in oti1er public documents that members of tile public may inspect or copy. 

From: Gina Mcdonald <gina .mcdee@yahoo.com> 
Sent: Monday, May 30, 2022 9:50 PM 
To: SOTF, (BOS) <sotf@sfgov.org>; Lim, Victor (DEM) <vfctor. lim@sfqov.org> 
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

Hi Victor, 

Gina Mcdonald <gina.mcdee@yahoo.com> 
Monday, June 27, 2022 5:36 PM 
125534-94670199@requests.muckrock.com; gina@MothersAgainstDrugDeaths.org; 
Lim, Victor (DEM) 
DEM Records Request; SOTF, (BOS) 
Re: Case 22035 - Supporting emails/texts Dept. Of Emergency Management 

I have not received an invite to OneDrive. Just this email in all of the provided emails. Please 
resend. 

Thanks 

Gina 

On Monday, June 27, 2022, 03:47:17 PM PDT, Lim, Victor (DEM) <victor.lim@sfgov.org> wrote: 

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

You should have received an email in your three mailboxes providing you a !ink to a 
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
or junk mail folders if you do not see it within your "lnboxll) Once you are in the 
OneDrive folder, you may choose to view or download any of the files you wish. 

This will help speed up the process to provide additional responsive documents, given 
that some email severs have a 25 MB limit for the size of attachments you may 
receive. We have several hundred MBs of responsive documents that we need to 
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

Victor Wai Ho Lim, MPA I *it5! 

Liaison to Electeds & Board of Supervisors 

Government & AAPI Affairs Manager 

External Affairs Officer I 9~t%-t~5*-~ 
Department of Emergency Management I - ~rfj"./J!~, 1gIJIU§:i 
415-554-4827 direct I lUl 
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415-7 48-0028 cell I -=¥-fl 

415-558-2712 media line I jHJ 

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

Victor Wai Ho Lim, MPA I **1t5t 

Liaison to Electeds & Board of Supervisors 

Government & AAPI Affairs Manager 

External Affairs Officer I 9~~t15JiHJ~ 
D rt t fE M ti -:::l:l;:-±lll;;13~I1He epa men o mergency anagemen ..=.,ffi" 11J J:&.,,0,, f§l ;.3cioJ 

415-554-4827 direct I E.7.il 

415-7 48-0028 cell I -=¥-tm 

415-558-2712 media line 111::!il 

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

On Thursday, June 16, 2022 at 02:26:14 PM PDT, Lim, Victor (DEM) <victor. lim@sfgov.org> wrote: 

Hello Ms. McDonald, 

Did you receive it on the Muckrock platform? It might just be a Yahoo email 
issue. Please confirm and let us know. Thank you. 

Victor Wai Ho Lim, MPA I #f,5t 

Liaison to Electeds & Board of Supervisors 

Government & AAPI Affairs Manager 

External Affairs Officer I 9~~1~51&-~ 
Department of Emergency Management I - lf$ JJ§ ~, ~I!fc:i 
415-554-4827 direct I 1iil 

415-7 48-0028 cell I .:ft! 

415-558-2712 media line I -ft9l 
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

On Thursday, June 16, 2022 at 02:00:32 PM PDT, Lim, Victor (DEM) <victor. lim@sfgov.org> wrote : 

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

Victor Wai Ho Lim, MPA I *1$5i 

Liaison to Electeds & Board of Supervisors 

Government & AAPI Affairs Manager 

External Affairs Officer I $7~~1~5m~~ 
Department of Emergency Management I - ;1$ )!-~, >gI]ILFo:J 
415-554-4827 direct I ii~v'R 

415-7 48-0028 cell I -¥#1! 
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415-558-2712 media line I 1'Yl 

From: Gina Mcdonald <gina.mcdee@yahoo.com> 
Sent: Thursday, June 16, 2022 12: 14 PM 
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

On Thursday, June 16, 2022 at 11 :52:37 AM PDT, Lim, Victor (DEM) <victor.lim@sfgov.org> wrote: 

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

Victor Wai Ho Lim, MPA I -**i$5i 

Liaison to Electeds & Board of Supervisors 



Government & AAPI Affairs Manager 

External Affairs Officer I $7~:mt~5*~ ~ 
Department of Emergency Management I -nif$J!!~-11!Itfo:i 
415-554-4827 direct I Ht'R 

415-7 48-0028 cell I -=¥-#! 

415-558-2712 media line 11'~1 

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

Victor Wai Ho Lim, MPA I ~fl5~ 

Liaison to Electeds & Board of Supervisors 

Government & AAPI Affairs Manager 

External Affairs Officer I >'~f,Wi,;J&~~ 
Department of Emergency Management I =mf$ffi~, /g:EJ.fc:i 
415-554-4827 direct I 1I~i 

415-748-0028 cell I .cf11 

415-558-2712 media line I 1$:!il 

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

On Tuesday, May 31, 2022 at 08:49:14 AM PDT, SOTF. (BOS) <sotf@sfgoy.or > wrote: 

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

https://url .avanan .cllck/v2/ www.sfbos.org .YXAzOnNmZHQyOmE6bzphZjkwYjk4M2VmNTdmZWZhN2EOMDZmOT 
FjNjMwMzkxYjo20rnJiNmE6ZmE4NDl2ZjkxZDc3YjU1 MTcOMWM4MGZmMTgyYzY5MDdiYzc3NDljMzFINTY2YzRkMGU 
wM212MzBmOG U4M2NkMDoOOIQ 
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1998. 

C Click here to complete a Board of Supervisors Customer Service Satisfaction form. 

The legislative Research Center provides 24-hour access to Board of Supervisors legislation, and archived matters since August 

Disclosures: Personal information that is provided in communications to the Board of Supervisors is subject to disclosure under the 
California Public Records Act and the San Francisco Sunshine Ordinance. Personal info1mation provided will not be 
redacted. Members of the public ate not required to provide personal identifying information •Nhen they communicate with the Board 
of SupeiVisors and its committees. All written or oral communications that members of the public submit to the Cleric's Office 
regarding pending legislation or hearings will be made available to all members of the public for inspection and copying. The Clerf('s 
Office does not redact any information from these submissions. This means that personal infom1ation-inclucling names, phone 
numbers, addresses and similar information that a member of tl1e public elects to submit to the Board and its committees-may 
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

Below are a few of the emails we discussed at the last meeting regarding my Sunshine Task Force 
complaint #22035. I am providing photos as I am not aware of your policy regarding attachments. 

These are a few examples provided by the Mayors office, DPH and text messages between SF Controller 
Ben Rosenfield and Mary Ellen Carroll of DEM. 

As we talked about during the hearing, this is only a sample of what I received from other agencies, and 
am only providing a few a specified by the task force board. There are hundreds. 
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

DEM Records Request shared a folder with you 

Here's the folder that DEM Records Request shared with you. 

Kristin Hogan-Ready 

@This link only works for the direct recipients of this message. 

Microsoft Prlv:acv Starernent 
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Leger, Cheryl (BOS) 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 

Cc: 
Subject: 
Attachments: 

Hello Gina, 

Lim, Victor (DEM) 
Tuesday, June 28, 2022 11 :22 AM 
Gina Mcdonald; 125534-94670199@requests.muckrock.com; 
gina@MothersAgainstDrugDeaths.org 
DEM Records Request; SOTF, (BOS) 
RE: Case 22035 - Supporting emails/texts Dept. Of Emergency Management 
DEM Records Request shared the folder "Francis Zamora-Ready" with you. 

My colleague just re-sent the invite again. It should look like the attachment on this 
email. 

Did you also try checking the Muckrock or the gina@MothersAgainstDrugDeaths.org 
inboxes, and you should check your spam or junk mail boxes if you do not see it in 
your lnbox. I remember last time you were able to receive our documents on 
Muckrock. 

Please let me know if you have any additional questions. 

Thank you. 

Victor Wai Ho Lim, MPA I #1$5~ 
Liaison to Electeds & Board of Supervisors 
Government & MPI Affairs Manager 
External Affairs Officer I 5'~~1~i,1&~~ 
D rt t f E M t I - --l-+-- ' 1$" § ~I:EE E'. epa men o mergency anagemen -=-nifi'n111l;'.,e,, I§ x/cJ 

415-554-4827 direct I .:~J,'R 
415-7 48-0028 cell I -¥ti 
415-558-2712 media line j ffijj 

From: Gina Mcdonald <gina.mcdee@yahoo.com> 
Sent: Monday, June 27, 2022 5:36 PM 
To: 125534-94670199@requests.muckrock.com; gina@MothersAgainstDrugDeaths.org; Lim, Victor (DEM) 
<victor.lim@sfgov.org> 
Cc: DEM Records Request <RecordsRequestDEM@sfgov.org>; SOTF, (BOS) <sotf@sfgov.org> 
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

You should have received an email in your three mailboxes providing you a link to a 
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

Victor Wai Ho Lim, MPA I #1$5i 

Liaison to Electeds & Board of Supervisors 

Government & AAPI Affairs Manager 

External Affairs Officer I $11':mi~5JiUJ ffe! 
Department of Emergency Management I - $ rff ~~, ~I!,Fcj 
415-554-4827 direct I _g_i,~ 

415-7 48-0028 cell I -¥ti 

415-558-2712 media line I~~ 

From: Lim, Victor (DEM) <victor.lim@sfqov.org> 
Sent: Thursday, June 16, 2022 4:55 PM 
To: Gina Mcdonald <qina.mcdee@yahoo.com>; SOTF, (BOS) <sotf@sfqov.org> 
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

Victor Wai Ho Lim, MPA I 1*fl5t 

Liaison to Electeds & Board of Supervisors 

Government & AAPI Affairs Manager 

External Affairs Officer I 5'~~1~5*~ ~ 
Department of Emergency Management I - tirn.lf!.~, ~Il}aj 
415-554-4827 direct I Hil 

415-7 48-0028 cell I -=¥-~ 

415-558-2712 media line I ~:!it 

From: Gina Mcdonald <qina.mcdee@yahoo.com> 
Sent: Thursday, June 16, 2022 2:35 PM 
To: SOTF, (BOS) <sotf@sfqov.org>; Lim, Victor (DEM) <victor.lim@sfqov.org> 
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

Please try gina@MothersAgalnstDrugDeaths.org 

Thanks 

Gina 



On Thursday, June 16, 2022 at 02:26:14 PM PDT, Lim, Victor (DEM) <victor.l im@sfgov.org> wrote: 

Hello Ms. McDonald, 

Did you receive it on the Muckrock platform? It might just be a Yahoo email 
issue. Please confirm and let us know. Thank you. 

Victor Wai Ho Lim, MPA I #{;5t 

Liaison to Electeds & Board of Supervisors 

Government & AAPI Affairs Manager 

External Affairs Officer I 5'~~t~5JN~~ 
Department of Emergency Management I - lfftf ff!~ ~I!rc!i 
415-554-4827 direct I 1i~ 

415-7 48-0028 cell I -¥#.t 

415-558-2712 media line I 1'"9t 

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

On Thursday, June 16, 2022 at 02:00:32 PM PDT, Lim, Victor (DEM) <victor. lim@sfgov.org> wrote: 
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

External Affairs Officer I >7~~1~5,IN--~ 
Department of Emergency Management I - ~ "$ffl~, ~I!rc:1 
415-554-4827 direct I ~~ 

415-7 48-0028 cell I -¥;fl 

415-558-2712 media line I ffi:Pt 

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

On Thursday, June 16, 2022 at 11 :52:37 AM PDT, Lim, Victor (DEM) <victor.lim@sfqov.org> wrote : 

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

Victor Wai Ho Lim, MPA I ~1t5i 

Liaison to Electeds & Board of Supervisors 

Government & MPI Affairs Manager 

External Affairs Officer I 9~~1~5~-~ 
Department of Emergency Management I - 5ir/JJ!f.1ti, t1I.1Fc:J 
415-554-4827 direct I A~'R 

415-7 48-0028 cell I -¥ffl 

415-558-2712 media line I ~91 

From: Gina Mcdonald <gina.mcdee@yahoo.com> 
Sent: Thursday, June 16, 2022 11 :38 AM 
To: SOTF, (BOS) <sotf@sfgov.org>; Lim, Victor (OEM) <victor.lim@sfgov.org> 
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

Victor Wai Ho Lim, MPA I ~w5~ 

Liaison to Electeds & Board of Supervisors 
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Government & AAPI Affairs Manager 

External Affairs Officer I 5'r~~ 5JiHJ~ 
Department of Emergency Management I .=iim.@~, ~I!Fc:J 
415-554-4827 direct I ii.~ 

415-7 48-0028 cell I -¥#.!! 

415-558-2712 media line 11'~ 

From: Gina Mcdonald <gina.mcdee@yahoo.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, June 8, 2022 2:52 PM 
To: Lim, Victor (DE:M) <victor.llm@sfgov.org>; SOTF, (BOS) <sotf@sfgov.org> 
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

https://url.avanan.click/v2/ www._sfbos.org .YXAzOnNmZHQyOmE6bzphZjkwYlk4M2VrnNTdmZWZhN2EOMDZmOT 
FjNjMwMzkxYjo20mJiNmE6ZmE4ND12ZjkxZDc3YjU1MTcOMWM4MGZmMTqyYzY5MDdiYzc3NDljMzFINTY2YzRkMGU 
wM2121'v1.?:B11JOGU4M2NkMDpOOIQ 

1998. 

• 6 ' Click here to complete a Board of Supervisors Customer Service Satisfaction form. 

The Legislative Research Center provides 24-hour access to Board of Supervisors legislation, and archived matters since August 

Disciosures: Personal info1mation Iha! is provided in communicaticn:s to the Board of Supef\Jisors is subject to disclosure under the 
Califomia Public Records Act and the San Francisco Sunshine Ordinence. Perscnai infcm;ation proiricled will not be 
redactecl. ,\!/embers oft/Jr~ pubiic are not required to provide personal iden!ifying ir.fo1mation rYhen they communicate with the Board 
of .Supe1visors and its committees. All written or oral communications t/7at m9mbers of the public submit to the Clerk's Office 
regarding pending legislation or hearings will be made available to :;iii members of the public for inspection and copying. The Cler/('s 
Office does not redact any information from ihesa submissions. This means !'h:1t personal infom1ation-inc!uding names, phone 
numbers. addresses and similar information I/Jal a member of the public elects to submit ta the Board and its committees-may 
:Jppear on the Board of Supe;visors website or in other puL,/ic dowments tha! mem/Je,-s cf the public may inspect er copy. 



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

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untmsted sources. 

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

@ This link only works for the direct recipients of this message. 

• Microsoft 
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Leger, Cheryl (BOS) 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 

Cc: 

Subject: 

Attachments: 

SOTF, (BOS) 

Monday, July 10, 2023 11:59 AM 
Michael Petrelis; Safai, Ahsha {BOS); Preston, Dean (BOS); Barnes, Bill (BOS); Chung, 
Lauren (BOS); Carrillo, Lila (BOS); Kilgore, Preston (BOS); Bolen, Jennifer M.(BdS); 
Hernandez, Melissa G (BOS); San Francisco Living Wage; Bukowski, Kenneth (ADM); Perl, 
Charles (PUC); Ruski Augusto Sa, Mayara (PUC); gizellejane215@gmail.com; Maria 
Schulman; Alberto, Justine Eileen (ADM); gina.mcdee@yahoo.com; Carroll, Maryellen 
(DEM); Bourne, Megan (FAM); leerossh@gmail.com; Chu, Carmen (ADM) 
Somera, Alisa {BOS); Calvillo, Angela (BOS); Young, Victor {BOS); 
myankee.sotf@gmail.com; jenn.sotf@gmail.com; Chris Hyland; Bruce Wolfe; 
lstein.sotf@gmail.com; DSchmi4@aol.com; Thao Hill; lilalahood.sotf@gmail.com 
SOTF - Notice of Appearance; Sunshine Ordinance Task Force, Special Meeting; July 25, 
2023; 4:30 PM, Room 408, City Hall, San Francisco, CA 94102 
SOTF - Complaint Procedure 2019-10-02 FINAL.pdf 

Good Morning: 

In order to prevent any confusion regarding hybrid in-person/remote meetings due to changing meeting 
requirements we wanted to provide additional information via the below revised Notice of Hearing. Thank you 
for your patience. 

You are receiving this notice because you are named as a Complainant or Respondent in the following 
complaints scheduled before the Sunshine Ordinance Task Force to: 1) hear the merits of the complaint; 2) issue 
a determination; and/or 3) consider referrals from a Task Force Committee. 

Date: July 25, 2023 

Location: Hearing Room 408, City Hall, San Francisco, CA 94102 

Special Meeting Convenes - 4:30 p.m. Time: 
Complaint Hearings - 5:00 p.m. 
(Note: Hearings on complaints will begin no earlier than 5:00 P.M.) 

Remote Access and/or In-Person Participation 

The Sunshine Ordinance Task Force and its committees convene hybrid meetings that 
allow in-person attendance, in-person public comment, remote access for petitioners and 
respondents, and remote public comment via teleconference (via Webex). 

W ebex Remote Link/Log-in: 
https://tinyurl.com/458ekx9~v 

Password: sunshine 
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Telephone Call-in: 
1 (415) 655-0001 I Meeting ID: 2592 715 5953 # # 

(press *3 to enter the speaker line) 

Complaints Scheduled for Hearing on July 25, 2023 will begin no earlier than 5:00 p.m. The Petitioner 
and the Respondent are required to attend this hearing. 

CONSENT AGENDA - The Sunshine Ordinance Task Force shall review File Nos. 22132 and 22133 
to affirm that the Sunshine Ordinance Task Force has jurisdiction; that the noted violations of the 
Sunshine Ordinance, Brown Act, or California Public Records Act occurred· and, if applicable, to issue 
an Order of Determination and refer matters to a committee for monitoring. The Complainant and 
Respondent are not required to attend the July 25, 2023 Special Sunshine Task Force meeting but may 
attend to provide testimony during the public comment period for this item related to the above-listed 
determinations. 

File No. 22132 Complaint filed by Michael Petrelis against Supervisor Ahsha Safai Board of 
Supervisors for allegedly violating Administrative Code (Sunshine Ordinance) Section( 
67 .29-5, by failing to respond to a request for Proposition G Calendar in a timely-and/or 
complete manner. 
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File No. 22133 Complaint filed by Michael Petrelis against Supervisor Dean Preston Board of 
Supervisors, for allegedly violating Administrative Code (Sunshine Ordinance), Secti.on(s) 
67.29-5, by failing to respond to a request for Proposition G Calendar in a timely and/or 
complete manner. 

File No. 22031: Comp"Jaint filed by Gizelle Rabi and Karl Kramer against City Administrator Carmen 
Chu and th.e Office of the City Administrator for allegedly violating Administrative Code (Sunshine 
Ordinance) , Section(s) 67.21 by failing to respond to a request for public records in a timely and/or 
complete manner. 

File No. 22032: Complaint filed by Gizelle Rabi and KarJ Kramer against Charles Perl and the San 
Francisco Public Utilities Commission for allegedly violating Administrative Code Sunshine 
Ordinance) Section(s) 67 .21 by failing to respond to a request for public records in a timely and/or 
complete manner. 

File No. 21128: Complaint filed by Maria Schulman against Mayara Ruski, Augusto Sa, and the San 
Francisco Public Utilities Commission (SFPUC) for allegedly violating Administrative Code, (Sunshine 
Ordinance) Section(s) 67.21 , 67.26(b) and67.27, and California Public Records Act Section 6253(d), 
by failing to respond to a request for public records in a timely and/or complete manner and failing to 
provide written justification for withholdings. 

File No. 21150: Complaint filed by Maria Schulman against Justine Alberto and the Animal Care and 
Control Department for allegedly violating Administrative Code (Sunshine Ordinance), Section(s) 
67 .21, by failing to respond to public records request in a timely and/or complete manner. 

File No. 22035: Complaint filed by Gina McDonald against the Department of Emergency Management 
for allegedly violating Administrative Code (Sunshine Ordinance), Section(s) 67.21 by failing to 
respond to a request for public records in a timely and/or complete manner. 

File No. 22052: Complaint filed by Lee Heidhues against Megan Bourne and the Fine Art Museum for 
allegedly violating Administrative Code (Sunshine Ordinance), Section(s) 67.25, by failing to respond to 
an Immediate Disclosure Req_uest in a timely and/or complete manner. 

NOTE: if you have any additional supplemental/support documents for inclusion into the agenda packet they 
must be submitted by 5:00 PM, July 19, 2023 (Wednesday). 
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

The Legislative Research Center provides 24~hour access to Board of Supervisors legislation, 
and archived matters since August 1998. 

Disclosures: Personal bgormatio,1 that is pro ided in communications to the Board of 
Supervisors is subject /JJ disclosure under the California Public Records Act and the San 
Francisco Sunshine Ordinance. Personal information pro, ided l1 ill not be redacted. Members 
of the public are not required to provide p ersonal idenn/j ing i,~f'ormation wh0 n they 
e-ommunicaf,:, with the Board of Supen isors and it commiffees. Al/ 1,,vritten or oral 
communications that members of the public submit to the Clerk's Ojfice regarding pending 
legislation or heari1Zgs will be rnade available to all m0 mber of the public for inspection and 
cop} ing. The Cle1'k1 Office doe · not redact mn i1;fonnation from these 'ubmission . This means 
that personal il~formation-including names, phone numbers, addresses and ·imilm· information 
that a member qf the public elects to submit to the Board and its committee -maJ appear on the 
Board of Supervisor, ebsite or in other p~ blic documents that members of the public may 
inspect or copy. 
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
receive. \/Ve have several hundred MBs of responsive documents that we need to 
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

Victor Wai Ho Lim, MPA I 1*{f5i!r 
Liaison to Electeds & Board of Supervisors 
Government & AAPI Affairs Manager 
External Affairs Officer I $'~~t~5JK~ ~ 
Department of Emergency Management I - ;i"$ff! ~, \'gilfo:i 
415-554-4827 direct I ~t'R 
415-7 48-0028 cell I -¥1i 
415-558-2712 media line I ilHl 

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
External Affairs Officer I $'~~1~51&.W~ 
Department of Emergency Management I - ;1"$/J!~, \'gilfo:i 
415-554-4827 direct I ~~! 

415-7 48-0028 cell I -¥f~ 
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

Please try glna@MothersAgainstDrugDeaths.org 

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

Victor Wai Ho Lim, MPA I #i~Ji 

Liaison to Electeds & Board of Supervisors 

Government & AAPI Affairs Manager 

External Affairs Officer I 9~;ffl1~5JN~~ 
Department of Emergency Management I - ~rff Jffifti_ lH!rc:i 
415-554-4827 direct 11t~ 

415-7 48-0028 cell I -¥~ 

415-558-2712 media line I fl::!!.¥ 

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

On Thursday, June 16, 2022 at 02:00:32 PM PDT, Lim, Victor (DEM) <victor. lim@sfqov.org> wrote: 

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

Victor Wai Ho Lim, MPA I ~1$5i 

Liaison to Electeds & Board of Supervisors 

Government & MPI Affairs Manager 

External Affairs Officer I )"~mt~5*~~ 
Department of Emergency Management I - ~""$ff!~, lgI!,Fc:J 

415-554-4827 direct I J~Jl 

415-7 48-0028 cell I -=¥-m 

415-558-2712 media line I 1~H! 

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

On Thursday, June 16, 2022 at 11:52:37 AM PDT, Lim, Victor (DEM) <vicmr.lim@sfgov.org> wrote: 

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

Victor Wai Ho Lim, MPA I *1f5! 

Liaison to Electeds & Board of Supervisors 

Government & AAPI Affairs Manager 

External Affairs Officer I 9~ffit~IJN~ ~ 
Department of Emergency Management I - ;i""$iff£,. ~,1iilfc:i 
415-554-4827 direct I ~f.;l 

415-7 48-0028 cell I -=¥-ti 

415-558-2712 media line I 1i~J 

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

I have not received anything yet Are you sending them directly to this email address or uploading to my 01iginal request that I sent through 
the Muckrock site? 

Thanks, 

Gina McDonald 

On Thursday, June 16 2022 at 11:25:15 AM PDT, Lim Vicwr (DEM) <victor.lim@sfgov.org> wrote: 

Hello Ms. McDonald, 

Thank you for your follow up email. 

I wanted to check if you received my two emails send yesterday afternoon with our first 
two batches of additional responsive records. 

'vVe sent the two emails at approximately 4:48PM and 4:50PM. However, I received a 
delivery error message but I was not sure if both emails failed to deliver. 
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Could you kindly let me know if you were able to receive one or both of the 
emails? Thank you. 

Victor Wai Ho Lim, MPA I #fl5t 

Liaison to Electeds & Board of Supervisors 

Government & AAPI Affairs Manager 

External Affairs Officer I 5'~~t~5JN-~ 
Department of Emergency Management I =ii"$J!!~,~Il]aj 
415-554-4827 direct I ~~ 

415-748-0028 cell J -'f:11 

415-558-2712 media line I 'ft~ 

From: Gina Mcdonald <gina.mcdee@yaboo.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, June 8, 2022 2:52 PM 
To: Lim, Victor (DEM) <v1ctor. lim@sfgov.org>; SOTF, (BOS) <sotf@sfgov.org> 
Subject: Re: Case 22035 - Supp01ting emails/texts Dept. Of Emergency Management 

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

On Tuesday, May 31, 2022 at 08:49:14 AM PDT, SOTF, (BOS) <Sotf@sfgov.org> wrote: 

Dear Ms. McDonald and Mr. Lim: In the future please provide doc~ments in pdf format. It is much easier to work with. 
Thank you. 

Cheryl Leger 

Assistant Clerk, Board of Supervisors 

Cheryl. Leger@sfgov.org 

Tel: 415-554-7724 

Fax: 415-554-5163 

https ://url.avanan .click/v2/ www .sfbos.org . YXAzOnN mZHQyOmE6bzphZikwYik4M2VmNT dmZWZhN2EOM DZmOT 
FjNjMWMzkxYjo20mJiNmE6ZmE4ND12ZikxZDc3YjU1 MTcDMWM4MGZmMTgyYzY5MDdiYzc3NDUMzFINTY2YzRkMGU 
wM212MzBmOGU4M2NkMDpOOIQ 

·~_:, Click here to complete a Board of Supervisors Customer Service Satisfaction form. 

The Legislative Research Center provides 2.1,-hour access to Board of Supervisors legislation, and archi'!ed matters since August 
1998. 



Disclosures: Personal information that is provided in communications to tlw Boarci of SupeJVisors is subject to disclosure under !he 
Ca/ifomia Public Records Act ancl !he San Francisco Sunshine Ordinance. Personai information providecl will not be 
redacted. Members of the public are not .-equi,-ec! to provide personal identifying info,malion when they communicate wit/1 the Board 
of Supe,visors ancl its committees. Al! wriiten or oral communications that members of the public su./Jmit to the C!et"k's Office 
,-egarding pencling legislation or hearings will be made available to all members of tile public for inspection and copying. T/Je Clerk's 
Office does ,10t redact any information from these Jubmissions. Tllis meaos that pe,-sonal info,malion-inc!uding names, phone 
numbers. "1ddresses ancl similar informc1tion that a membe,- o,F the public 9/ects to submit to the Boa,rf ,ind its committees-may 
appear en the Board of .Supe1visors website o,- in other puNic documents that members of the public may inspect o,- copy 

From: Gina Mcdonald <gina.mcdee@yahoo.com> 
Sent: Monday, May 30, 2022 9:50 PM 
To: SOTF, (BOS) <sotf@sfgov.org>; Lim, Victor (DEM) <victor. lim@sfgov.org> 
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
125534-94670199@requests.muckrock.com; g i na@MothersAga i nstDrug Deaths.org; 
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

1 gina.mcdee@yahoo.com; 
2. 125534-94670199@requests.muckrock.com; 
3 gina@MothersAgainstDrugDeaths.org 

\ 

You shou!d have received an email in your three mailboxes providing you a link to a 
OneD1·ive folder (which should look similar to the sample email provided on this 
response as an attachment) 
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After opening the email specifically addressed to you, please click on the word "Open", 
and it wlll prompt you to input the specific email address you are currently login 
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
privacy in portions of some responsive records. See Gov. Code § 6254(c), California 
Constitution, Art. I, Sec. 1. Please also note that certain conference call dial-in 
information intended only for internal use have been redacted pursuant to the official 
inforrr,ation privilege. Cal. Evid. Code § 1040. 

Please let me know if you have any questions. Thank you. 

Victor Wai Ho Lim, MPA I 1*1¥5E 

Liaison to Electeds & Board of Supervisors 

Government & MPI Affairs Manager 

External Affairs Officer I '.>7~~t~~!J~ 
Department of Emergency Management I - ;I"$ ff!~, ~Ilro:i 
415-554-4827 direct I 1fJ.,i 
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415-7 48-0028 cell I -=¥-m 

415-558-2712 media line 1 'ft~l 

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

Please let me know if the new email you provide receives the documents. Thank· you. 

Victor Wai Ho Lim, MPA I #1f~ 

Liaison to Electeds & Board of Supervisors 

Government & AAPI Affairs Manager 

External Affairs Officer I 9~~t~5J1Ul~ 
Department of Emergency Management I - ~rffff!~,~Ilrc:J 
415-554-4827 direct I~~ 

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

Please try gina@MothersAgainstDruqDeaths.org 

Thanks 

Gina 

On Thursday, June 16, 2022 at 02:26:14 PM PDT, Lim, Victor (DEM) <victor.lirn@sfgov.org> wrote: 

Ht;llo Ms. McDonald, 

Did you receive it on the Muckrock platform? It might just be a Yahoo email 
issue. Please confirm and let us know. Thank you. 

Victor Wai Ho Lim, MPA f **1':5l 

Liaison to Electeds & Board of Supervisors 

Government & MPI Affairs Manager 

External Affairs Officer I 9~~lt5~~~ 
Department of Emergency Management I - ~ rff }!!7J;i, tiilfc:i 
415-554-4827 direct I 1itl 

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

On Thursday, June 16, 2022 at 02:00:32 PM PDT, Lim, Victor (DEM) <victor.llm@sfgov.org> wrote: 

Hello Ms. McDonald, 

I just resent the first of the two emails from yesterday, and included your original 
Muckrock email address. 

Please let me know if that went through. l \Nill process with the same process if you 
successfully received the email. Thank you. 

Victor Wai Ho Lim, MPA 11*1i5~ 

Liaison to Electeds & Board of Supervisors 

Government & AAPI Affairs Manager 

External Affairs Officer I J~:mt~5J&~ ~ 
D tfE M 1

- :;:1:E 'i:$"-g,¢.:£:;HJE'. epartmen o mergency anagement -=- ,fir m111s;<,c.., ~ fa10J 

415-554-4827 direct I 1it, 

415-7 48-0028 cell I -=¥-11 
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415-558-2712 media line 111:ill 

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

On Thursday, June 16, 2022 at 11 :52:37 AM PDT, Lim, Victor (DEM) ~llictor.lim@sfgov.org?' wrote: 

Ms. McDonald, 

I sent it directly to this Yahoo emai! address you are currently using. \Nould you like 
me to send it to the original Muckrock email to see if it goes through? 

Please let me know. Thanks! 

Victor Wai Ho Lim, MPA I #f~S~ 

Liaison to Electeds & Board of Supervisors 



Government & AAPI Affairs Manager 

External Affairs Officer I 9~~1151&$ ~ 
Department of Emergency Management I - ~ mff!fli, fgilla:J 
415-554-4827 direct I ~~ 

415-7 48-0028 cell I -=fl! 

415-558-2712 media line I 1'91 

From: Gina Mcdonald <gina.mcdee@yahoo.com> 
Sent: Thursday, June 16, 2022 11 :38 AM 
To: SOTF, (BOS) <sotf@sfqov.org>; Lim, Victor (DEM) <victor. lim@sfgov .org> 
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

Hello Ms. McDonald , 

Thank you for your follow up email. 
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I wanted to check if you received my two emails send yesterday afternoon with our first 
two batches of additionai responsive records. 

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

Victor Wai Ho Lim, MPA I ~it5i 

Liaison to Electeds & Board of Supervisors 

Government & AAPI Affairs Manager 

External Affairs Officer I :9~~t~.f*~~ 
Department of Emergency Management I =.~""$}!~, ~:E!Ja:i 
415-554-4827 direct 11!~ 

415-7 48-0028 cell I .:f ,11 

415-558-2712 media line 11$~ 

From: Gina Mcdonald <qina.mcdee@yahoo.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, June 8, 2022 2:52 PM 
To: Lim, Victor (DEM) <victor.l lm@sfgov.org>; SOTF, (BOS) <sotf@sfgov.org> 
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



Cheryl , 

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

Cheryl . Leger@sfgov.org 

Tei: 415-554-7724 

Fax: 415-554-5163 

https://url .avanan.cllcklv2/ www.sfbos.org .YXAzOnNmZHQyOmE6bzphZjkwYjk4M2VmNTdmZWZhN2EOMDZmOT 
FjNjMwMzkxY)o20mJiNmE6ZrnE4ND12ZjkxZDc3YjU1 MTcOMWM4MGZmMTqyYzY5MDdiYzc3NDljMzF1NTY2YzRkMGU 
wM212MzBrnOGU4M2NkMDpOOIQ 
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~ Click here to complete a Board of Supervisors Customer Service Satisfaction form. 

The Legislative Research Center provides 24-hour access to Board of Supervisors legislation, and archived matters since August 

Disclosures: Personal information that is prov/clod in communications to tho Board al SupeJYisors is subj,.?ct to disclosure unc/Gr the 
Califomia Public Records Act and the San Francisco SwisNne Orciinance. Personal :niormation provided 'Iii/I not be 
redacted. ,'vtembets of !he public are not required to provide pe(sona! identifying information :vhen they communicate Nilh !he Boarrl 
of Supervisors and iis committees. All written or oral communir,ations U1ai members of the public submit to lhe C/erfr's Office 
regarding pending legislation Qr hearings :.Yi/I be maclo ''lvai/aoie io a!I memb:Hs of the public for inspection and copying The Cl,Hk's 
Office does not redact c1M information from these su.bmissions rhis means that personal inforrnation-including names, phone 
numbers, addresses and similar info11nation that a m'3mber of the puhlic elects to submit to the Board and its ccmmitlees-ma!1 
3ppear on the Boatd of Supe1'lisors website oi" in other public documents that members of the public may inspect or copy 

From: Gina Mcdonald <gina.mcdee@yahoo.com> 
Sent: Monday, May 30, 2022 9:50 PM 
To: SOTF, (BOS) <sotf@sfqov.org>; Lim, Victor (DEM) <victor. lim@sfgov.org> 
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

• Micro.soft 
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Leger, Cheryl (BOS) 

From: Lim, Victor (DEM) 
Sent: Tuesday, June 28, 2022 11 :22 AM 
To: Gina Mcdonald; 125534-94670199@requests.muckrock.com; 

g i na@MothersAgai nstDrug Deaths.org 
Cc: DEM Records Request; SOTF, (BOS) 
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

Did you also try checking the fVluckrock or the gina@MothersAgainstDrugDeaths.org 
inboxes, and you should check your spam or junk mail boxes if you do not see it in 
your lnbox. I remember last time you were able to receive our documents on 
Muckrock. 

Please let me know if you have any additional questions . 

Thank you . 

Victor Wai Ho Lim, MPA I **ff5i 
Liaison to Electeds & Board of Supervisors 
Government & AAPI Affairs Manager 
External Affairs Officer I J~~t~iJ&~~ 
Department of Emergency Management I - ~ "$ff!~ fgIJ.!a:J 
415-554-4827 direct 11.J! 
415-7 48-0028 cell I -=Hi 
415-558-2712 media line I 1l:,t 

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
2_ 125534-94670199@requests.muckrock.com; 
3. gina@MothersAgainstDrugDeaths.org 

You should have received an email in your three mailboxes providing you a link to a 
OneDrive folder (whlch should look similar to the sample email provided on this 
response as an attachment) 

After opening the email specifically addressed to you, please click on the ·word "Open", 
and it will prompt you to input the specific email address you are currently login 
into. For example, if you are opening the email on your Yahoo mailbox, please type in 
"gina.mcdee @yahoo.com" and press enter. 

It \Nill the prompt the system to send you a one-time verification login code sent as an 
email. Go back to your mailbox, look for that email with the one-tlme verification code, 
and input that code onto the browser to open the OneDrive folde1·. (Please check spam 
or junk mail folders lf you do not see it within your "inbox") Once you are in the 
OneDrive folder, you may choose to view or download any of the files you 1..vish. 



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
information privilege. Cal. Evid. Code§ 1040. 

Please let me know if you have any questions. Thank you. 

Victor Wai Ho Lim, MPA I #1f5i 

Liaison to Electeds & Board of Supervisors 

Government & AAPI Affairs Manager 

External Affairs Officer I 5'~~1~5JN~ ~ 
Department of Emergency Management I - ~ITTJ!!~,'gil..Fc:J 
415-554-4827 direct 11Hl 

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

27§4 



I will now resend the second email from yesterday, and will include your Yahoo, 
Muckrock, and gina@MothersAgainstDrugDeaths.org emails on the email. 

Please let me know if the new email you provide receives the documents. Thank you. 

Victor Wai Ho Lim, MPA I #{$5!-

Liaison to Electeds & Board of Supervisors 

Government & AAPI Affairs Manager 

External Affairs Officer I 9~~t~51&~~ 
Department of Emergency Management I - lirff }!;~, ~Il.Fc:J 
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

Please try gina@MothersAqc;1instDrugDeaths.org 

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

Victor Wai Ho Lim, MPA I #fl5i 

Liaison to Electeds & Board of Supervisors 

Government & AAPI Affairs Manager 

External Affairs Officer I $7~~t~5JlUJ~ 
Department of Emergency Management I - ~m~7&', fgI!,FcJ 
415-554-4827 direct I 1Ul 

415-7 48-0028 cell I -=¥-#.I 

415-558-2712 media line I {~HI 

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

On Thursday, June 16, 2022 at 02:00:32 PM PDT, Lim, Victor (DEM) <victor.lim@sfqov.org> wrote : 
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

Victor Wai Ho Lim, MPA I ~1t5i!i 

Liaison to Electeds & Board of Supervisors 

Government & AAPI Affairs Manager 

External Affairs Officer I 9~;f1H~5JN~~ 
D rt t fE M ti --;:!;k_' ll5'-§~:83E'. epa men o mergency anagemen .=..tia' rn111l;s,.,,, ~ I.:1:,cJ 
415-554-4827 direct 11Ul 

415-7 48-0028 cell I .:f#.l 

415-558-2712 media line I W9l 

From: Gina Mcdonald <gina.mcdee@yahoo.com> 
Sent: Thursday, June 16, 2022 12:14 PM 
To: SOTF, (BOS) <sotf@sfgov.org>; Lim, Victor (DEM) <victor. lim@sfgov.org> 
Cc: DEM Records Request <Rec_ardsRequestDEM@sfgov.org> 
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

On Thursday, June 16, 2022 at 11 :52:37 AM PDT, Um, Victor (DEM) <victor.lim@sfgov.org> wrote: 

Ms. McDonald, 

I sent it directly to this Yahoo email address you are currently using. Would you !ike 
me to send it to the original Muckrock email to see if it goes through? 

Please let me know. Thanks! 

Victor Wai Ho Lim, MPA I t,t-1$~ 

Liaison to Electeds & Board of Supervisors 

Government & AAPI Affairs Manager 

External Affairs Officer I >'~~t~5JN~~ 
Department of Emergency Management I - ;I"$]!;~, ~Ilfc:i 
415-554-4827 direct I .a~ 

415-7 48-0028 cell I -¥ti 

415-558-2712 media line I 11JJ:!il 

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

Victor Wai Ho Lim, MPA I #if5! 

Liaison to Electeds & Board of Supervisors 
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Government & AAPI Affairs Manager 

External Affairs Officer I >Hit~,*~~ 
Department of Emergency Management I .=.jfrp,ff,!fli, ~flfc:i 
415-554-4827 direct I .H~ 

415-7 48-0028 cell I -¥;ti 

415-558-2712 media line 11$~ 

From: Gina Mcdonald <qina.mcdee@vahoo.com> 
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

Pleas·e am'v'i.se. 

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

https ://url .avanan .click/v2/ www .sfbos.orq . YXAzOnN mZH QyOmE6bzphZjkwYj k4 M2VmNT dmZWZh N2 EOM DZmOT 
FjNIMwMzkxYjo20mJiNmE6ZmE4ND12ZjkxZDc3YjU1MTcOMWM4MGZmMTgyYzY5MDdiYzc3NDljMzFINTY2YZRkMGU 
wM212MzBrnOGU4M2NkMDpOOIQ 
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Click here to complete a Board of Supervisors Customer Service Satisfaction form 

The Legislative Research Genter provides 24-hour access io Board of Supervisors legislation, and archived matters since August 

Disr;/osures: Personai i11fcrmation that is provid·Jd i.n commi.:nicai.lons to the Boer~/ of SupeNisors is sul;j:xt tc disc/osun, under the 
Salifo,·nia Public Records A,~t ar,d the San .~rancf.sco Sunshine Ordineo~&. Pe1·.,cna1 ,,,!:,,·.'Tla{.'cr. ,1;,-ovidad Viii/ not be 
r-edaci,Jcl Membf.'rs of the public are not ,-squir;;d to provide personal ic!er;!i,vrr; ;n(or.11a!1or. ,·Ynen ,hey communicate ,vith !he BoarJ 
oi' Supe,vi:3ors a('d its committees. Aii ,vtitten or oral communications !hat ,Tem;;ers of tlie publ!c 3WJmii re ths Cl<::t'·(s Ci'fice 
•egar· ing pending fr~gf.,lafion or hearings will be made ,Naifeble to al! mem{;e,-3 of the :Juo/,,; ~?r ;nspectior. and copying. The C/e,-k's 
~frir:9 does r;ot redact any info1maiicn from these submissions. :his means !het per,ona/ 1r,i'orrn,tion-inc/ucii11g name3, phone 
.1un1iJe!·.s, ~~ldr:-.:s51:JS and sirn;far inforrnatic-n that a member :Jf !~9 'Jublic 0Jt9cf3 t~ .sut.mir ttJ the Boarc/ ana· ![s C:.J:71mittees-1nay 
appear on tf'9 Board of SLJparvisors ,..,absite or .1n other pubiic dcG'Jtn=:,~ts fhc;~ tne.r:'rhs-1:s :Jf rhe p1 ,.blir. .:-?:::,y inspect Ci" copy 



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

This message is from outside the City email system. Do not open links or attachments from untrnsted sources. 

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

• ~ Microsoft 



Leger, Cheryl (BOS) 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 

Cc: 

Subject: 

Attachments: 

SOTF, (BOS) 

Monday, July 10, 2023 11 :59 AM 
Michael Petrelis; Safai, Ahsha (BOS); Preston, Dean (BOS); Barnes, Bill (BOS); Chung, 
Lauren (BOS); Carrillo, Lila (BOS); Kilgore, Preston (BOS); Bolen, Jennifer M.(BOS); 
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

Somera, Alisa (BOS); Calvillo, Angela (BOS); Young, Victor (BOS); 
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
complaints scheduled before the Sunshine Ordinanc~ Task Force to: 1) hear the merits of the complaint; 2) issue 
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

Webex Remote Link/Log-in: 
http s: / / tinvurl. co 1n/ 4 5 8 ekx9)v 

Password: sunshine 



Telephone Call-in: 
1 (415) 655-0001 / Meeting ID: 2592 715 5953 # # 

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
Sunshine Ordinance, Brown Act, or California Public Records Act occurred; and, if applicable, to issue 
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

File No. 22132 Complaint filed by Michael Petrelis against Supervisor Ahsha Safai, Board of 
Supervisors, for allegedly violating Administrative Code (Sunshine Ordinance), Section(s) 
67.29-5, by failing to respond to a request for Proposition G Calendar in a timely and/or 
complete manner. 



File No. 22133 Complaint filed by Michael Petrelis against Supervisor Dean Preston, Board of 
Supervisors, for allegedly violating Administrative Code (Sunshine Ordinance), Section(s) 
67.29-5, by failing to respond to a request for Proposition G Calendar in a timely and/or 
complete manner. 

File No. 22031: Complaint filed by Gizelle Rabi and Karl Kramer against City Administrator Carmen 
Chu and the Office of the City Administrator for allegedly violating Administrative Code (Sunshine 
Ordinance), Section(s) 67.21 by failing to respond to a request for public records in a timely and/or 
complete manner. 

File No. 22032: Complaint filed by Gizelle Rabi and Karl Kramer against Charles Perl and the San 
Francisco Public Utilities Commission for allegedly violating Administrative Code (Sunshine 
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
Ordinance), Section(s) 67.21, 67.26(b) and 67.27, and California Public Records Act Section 6253(d), 
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
67.21, by failing to respond to public records request in a timely and/or complete manner. 

File No. 22035: Complaint filed by Gina McDonald against the Department of Emergency Management 
for allegedly violating Administrative Code (Sunshine Ordinance), Section(s) 67.21 by failing to 
respond to a request for public records in a timely and/or complete manner. 

File No. 22052: Complaint filed by Lee Heidhues against Megan Bourne and the Fine Arts Museum for 
allegedly violating Administrative Code (Sunshine Ordinance), Section(s) 67.25, by failing to respond to 
an Immediate Disclosure Request in a timely and/or complete manner. 

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

:: Click here to complete a Board of Supervisors Customer Service Satisfaction form. 

The Lee::islative Research Center provides 24-hour access to Board of Supervisors legislation, 
and archived matters since August 1998. 

Disclosures: Personal information that is provided in communications to the Board of 
Supervisors is subject to disclosure under the Callornia Public Records Act and the San 
Francisco Sunshine Ordinance. Personal in.formatr:on provided will not be redacted. ),!embers 
of the public are not required to provide personal identifying information when they 
cornmunicate with the Board of St~pervisors and its committees. All ·written or oral 
communications that members of the public submit to the Clerk's Office regarding pending 
legislation or hearings rvill be made available to all members of the public for inspection and 
copying. The Clerk1s Office does not redact any information from these submissions. This means 
thai personal information-including names, phone numbers, addresses and similar iriformation 
that a member of the public elects to submit to the Board and its committees-may appear on the 
Board of Supervisors website or in other public documents that members of the public may 
inspect or copy. 




